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EUREKA COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD 
P.O. Box 540 *** Eureka, Nevada 89316 *** Telephone: 775-237-5263 

 

 

Marty Plaskett, Chairman * Rich McKay, Vice Chair * Michael Schoenwald, Member 

Sheriff Miles Umina, Member * District Attorney Ted Beutel, Member * Katherine J. Bowling, Clerk Recorder 
 

 

Posted by December 12, 2024 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Eureka County Liquor Board will meet on December 17, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. in 

the Commission Chambers at the Eureka County Courthouse located at 10 South Main Street, Eureka, 

Nevada.   

AGENDA 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. Call meeting to order. 

 

LIQUOR BOARD AGENDA 

1. Approval of agenda notice. (For Possible Action) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & DISCUSSION 

1. Public comment and discussion.  NOTE:  No action may be taken on an issue raised under 
public comment until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item 
upon which action will be taken. (Discussion) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of minutes for the September 17,2024 Liquor Board meeting. (For Possible 

Action) 

 

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS / QUARTERLY RENEWALS 

1. Discuss, approve or deny new liquor license applications, including single event 

applications if any. Note: A single event license is typically issued to a party licensed in 
another county, who wishes to serve/sell liquor at a specific event in Eureka County. (For 

Possible Action) 

2. Report from Sheriff on issuance of any special event licenses approved for the quarter. 

Note: A special event license allows a Eureka County license holder to serve/sell liquor at 
an event that takes place away from their normal place of business. (Discussion) 

3. Discuss, approve or deny liquor license quarterly renewals. (For Possible Action) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & DISCUSSION 

1. Public comment and discussion. NOTE: No action may be taken on an issue raised under 

public comment until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item 

upon which action will be taken. (Discussion) 
Notice:  The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for future 

meetings. 
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ADJOURNMENT 

1. Adjournment of meeting. (For Possible Action) 

 
Supporting materials for this meeting may be requested by contacting Eureka County Clerk Recorder’s Office, PO Box 540, 
Eureka, NV 89316, or by calling (775) 237-5263, or faxing (775) 237-4610. To save time and cost, persons are encouraged to 
request these materials by email: BOCC@eurekacountynv.gov.  Times listed on the agenda are approximate. Items may be 
taken out of order at the discretion of the Chair. Items may be removed from the agenda prior to, or during, the meeting. 
Related agenda items may be combined for discussion or action. The phrase “(For Possible Action)” means the Board may, 
but is not required to, take action on the item. This agenda was posted at the following locations in Eureka; County 
Courthouse; County Administrative Facility (Annex); US Post Office; and public bulletin board at 10 S. Main St. This agenda 
was posted electronically at Eureka County’s website (https://events.eurekacountynv.gov/meetings) and Nevada’s public 
notice website (www.notice.nv.gov). Notice to persons with disabilities: If you require special assistance, please notify the 
Commissioners’ Office prior to the meeting at the email address, mail box, phone number, or fax number listed above. 

 

mailto:BOCC@eurekacountynv.gov
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BOARD OF EUREKA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
    Rich McKay, Chairman                       P.O. Box 540 * Eureka, Nevada 89316 * Telephone: 775-237-5263 Mike Schoenwald, Member 
    Marty Plaskett, Vice Chair                                              Posted on or before December 12, 2024                                                   Kathy Bowling, Clerk 

 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Eureka County Commissioners will meet pursuant 

to law on December 17, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. in the Commission Chambers at the County Courthouse 

located at 10 South Main Street, Eureka, Nevada. Note: The meeting will be available telephonically 

for LISTENING PURPOSES ONLY.  To listen to the meeting by phone please dial 1-888-537-7715 and 

enter code 74368702# when prompted.  Please make sure that your phone is muted upon connection.  It 

is not necessary to announce that you are participating in the meeting. No public comment will be taken 

from phone participants. 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

9:30 - CALL TO ORDER 

1. Approval of the agenda notice with addition of any emergency item and/or deletion of any item. 

Unless otherwise stated, items may be taken out of the order presented on the agenda, in the 

direction of the Chair. (For Possible Action)  

2. Pledge of allegiance.  

 

9:35 - PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comments may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion)  

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: The 

public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment period 

or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for future 

meetings. (Discussion)  

 

9:40 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  Approval of minutes for November 15,2024 and December 3, 2024 Commission meetings. (For 

Possible Action)  

 

9:45 - COUNTY COMPTROLLER – Kim Todd, Comptroller 

1.   Payment of expenditures. Notice: Expenditures received after action has been taken under this 

Comptroller section may be presented and acted upon throughout the day. (For Possible Action)  

2.   Review Fund Balance Report. (Discussion)  

3.  Discuss, approve or deny updating the travel per diem amounts and adding an additional per diem 

for Las Vegas and Carson/Reno/Tahoe with an effective date of January 1, 2025. (For Possible 

Action) 

 

9:55 - EIDE BAILLY, LLP-Teri Gage, Partner 

1. Report on Eureka County’s Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit. (Discussion) 

2.  Discuss, approve or deny accepting Eureka County’s Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit and 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented. (For Possible Action) 

3.  Report on Eureka County Television District’s Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit. (Discussion) 

4.  Discuss, approve or deny accepting Eureka County Television District’s Fiscal Year 2023-
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2024 Audit and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented. (For Possible 

Action) 

5. Discuss, approve or deny entering into an agreement with Eide Bailly, LLC to provide audit 

services for Fiscal Years 2025, 2026 and 2027 for Eureka County and Eureka County 

Television District.  (For Possible Action) 

 
10:35 – COMMISSIONERS- 

1. Discuss, approve or deny whether to authorize an appeal or otherwise participate in the appellate 

review of the Diamond Valley Adjudication, Case CV-2002009 before the Seventh Judicial District 

Court of the State of Nevada. (For Possible Action) 
2. Discuss legislation being considered by the Nevada Legislature at their upcoming 2025 Session. 

No position on legislation will be taken by the Board at this time. (Discussion) 

3. Discuss, approve, or deny contracting with Black Rock Resource Services LLC to complete 

research of historical records related to public roads in Eureka County to assist with ensuring 

continued public access.  If contract is approved, consider designating the Natural Resources 

Manager to coordinate with Public Works and the Natural Resources Advisory Commission to 

prioritize roads for completion of this research in a phased approach. (For Possible Action) 

4. Discuss, approve or deny appointing Michael Schoenwald as interim EMS Director to assist 

Shaelene French, Assistant EMS Director, with duties until a new EMS Director is hired. (For 

Possible Action.) 

 

10:50 - SENIOR CENTERS-Linda Gordon, Senior Center Program Director 

1. Report on activities at the Eureka Senior Center and Fannie Komp Senior Center. (Discussion) 

 

10:55 - EUREKA 4-H SEWING-Janine Hubbard, 4-H Sewing Instructor 

1. Discuss, approve or deny waiving the cost for the use of the Senior Center to conduct 4-H Sewing 

classes, January – April 2025, one or two nights per week. (For Possible Action) 

 

11:00 – SAINT BRENDAN’S CATHOLIC CHURCH- Barbara Todd 

1. Discuss, approve or deny waiving the cost for the use of the Opera House to hold Bingo on March 

12, 2025. (For Possible Action) 

 

11:05 – UNR EUREKA EXTENSION PROGRAM- Jessica “JJ” Hendrickson 

1. Update of and presentation on program highlights with UNR Eureka Extension Program. 

(Discussion)  

 

11:15– HUMAN RESOURCES – Tasha Dunlap, HR Director 

1. Report on Human Resources projects and activities. (Discussion) 

2. Discuss, approve, or deny updates to the Justice Court Deputy Clerk job description. (For Possible 

Action) 

3. Discuss, approve, or deny accepting the recommendation of the interview panel for Medical 

Services Director/Coordinator, appointing the most qualified candidate to the position, and setting 

a start date and salary. (For Possible Action) 

4. Discuss, approve, or deny converting the EMS Director position to an EMT I, II, or III position. 

(For Possible Action) 

 

11:20 – SHERIFF- Miles Umina, Acting Sheriff 

1. Discuss, approve or deny a $500 increase to each of the credit cards for Dispatcher Lena Engeseth 

and Deputy Nicholas Harris ($1,000.00 total) for the month of January, for costs to attend Basic 

Instructor Development at POST in Carson City, NV.  (For Possible Action) 

2. Discuss, approve or deny a $2,000 increase to the credit card of Sgt. C. Cobb for the month of 

February, for costs to attend First Line Supervisor in Carson City. (For Possible Action) 

3. Discuss, approve or deny a 2-year Contract with Neogov for Background Module to assist with 
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Backgrounds of Civil, Deputy, and Search and Rescue Applicants performed by the Eureka County 

Sheriff's Office. Note: The first-year installment will be $2,875 which includes the subscription 

and Setup. The second-year installment will be $2,8887.50. (For Possible Action) 

4.  Discuss, approve or deny a contract with Retired Lt. Kilgore and the Eureka County Sheriff's Office, 

for an amount not to exceed $6,400.00 for 80 hours of work, to assist the Acting Sheriff and 

Undersheriff with the 2025-2026 Fiscal year budget, and authorize the Chairman to sign outside of 

the meeting. (For Possible Action) 

5.  Conduct walk-through inspection of the Justice Facility and Detention Center (upon adjournment 

of the meeting). Note: This is a discussion item only and no deliberation or action will take place 

during this walk-through and inspection. (Discussion)  

 

11:35 – COUNTY FACILITIES – Jeb Rowley, Public Works Director 

1. Report on activities and projects at County managed facilities. (Discussion) 

 

11:40 - PUBLIC WORKS – Jeb Rowley, Public Works Director 

1.  Report on Public Works projects and activities. (Discussion) 

 

11:45 - NATURAL RESOURCES – Jake Tibbitts, Natural Resources Manager 

1.  Report on current and emerging natural resource issues affecting Eureka County.  (Discussion) 

 

11:50 – CORRESPONDENCE 

1.  Review correspondence. (Discussion) 

2.  Commissioner reports on pertinent correspondence or other matters. (Discussion)   

   

11:55 - PUBLIC COMMENT 

1.  Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comments may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion) 

2.   Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: 

The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items 

for future meetings. (Discussion)  

 

12:00 – ADJOURNMENT 

1.  Adjournment of meeting.  

 

Supporting materials for this meeting may be requested by contacting the Commissioners’ office at 

CountyCommission@eurekacountynv.gov, PO Box 540, Eureka, NV 89316, by calling (775) 237-5263 or 

faxing (775) 237-5614. All times listed on the agenda are approximate. Items may be taken out of the order 

presented on the agenda. Items may be removed from the agenda prior to, or during, the meeting. Related items 

may be combined for discussion or action. The phrase “(For Possible Action)” means the Board may, but is 

not required to, act on the item. This agenda was posted in Eureka at: County Courthouse; County 

Administrative Facility (Annex); US Post Office; and public bulletin board at 10 S. Main Street. This agenda 

was posted electronically at Eureka County’s website (https://events.eurekacountynv.gov/meetings) and 

Nevada’s public notice website (www.notice.nv.gov). Notice to people with disabilities: If you require special 

assistance, please notify the Commissioners’ Office prior to the meeting at the email address, mailbox, phone 

number or fax number listed above.  

mailto:CountyCommission@eurekacountynv.gov
http://www.notice.nv.gov/
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EUREKA COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD 

SEPTEMBER 17, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

 

STATE OF NEVADA ) 

    :SS 

COUNTY OF EUREKA ) 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Call meeting to order. 

2. Approval of agenda notice with addition of any emergency items and/or deletion of any items. 

(For Possible Action) 

 

The Liquor Board met pursuant to law on September 17, 2024 in the Commissioner’s Chambers 

at the Eureka County Court House. Present was Chairman Marty Plaskett, Vice Chair Rich 

McKay, member Michael Schoenwald via video connection, District Attorney Ted Beutel, 

Sheriff Jesse Watts and County Clerk Kathy Bowling. The meeting was called to order at 9:14 

a.m. 

 

Commissioner McKay motioned to approve agenda; Sheriff Watts seconded the motion. All in 

favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & DISCUSSION 

 

1. Public comment and discussion. NOTE: No action may be taken on an issue raised under public 

comment until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action 

will be taken. (Discussion) 

 

  Chairman Plaskett called for public comment, hearing none he proceeded to the next item.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of minutes of the March 19, 2024 and June 18, 2024 Liquor Board meetings. (For 

Possible Action) 

 Commissioner McKay motioned to approve meeting minutes from March 19, 2024 and June 18, 

2024, Sheriff Watts seconded the motion. All in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

  

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS / QUARTERLY RENEWALS 

 

1. Discuss, approve or deny new liquor license applications, including single event applications if 

any. Note: A single event license is typically issued to a party licensed in another county, who 

wishes to serve/sell liquor at a specific event in Eureka County. (For Possible Action) 

 

Sheriff Watts reported that there was 1 single event application, it was for The Star to host the 

bar at the Eureka County Fair. The application came in late, and he went ahead and approved the 
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application due to The Star holding a liquor license for the County Fair the last 3 years and being 

in good standing with Elko County.  

 

Sheriff Watts motioned to approve the single event application for The Star, Commissioner 

McKay seconded the motion. All in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

2. Report from Sheriff on issuance of any special event licenses approved for the quarter. Note: A 

special event license allows a Eureka County license holder to serve/sell liquor at an event that 

takes place away from their normal place of business. (Discussion) 

 

Sheriff Watts reported that there was confusion with another application on the time frame and 

wording, Sheriff Watts talked to both Rich McKay and Jeb Rowley on rewording the ordinance 

to help those applying.  

 

3. Discuss, approve or deny liquor license quarterly renewals. (For Possible Action) 

 

Sheriff Watts reported that licensee holders in Eureka are opening locations in Crescent Valley 

and so they reworded their licenses to accommodate. In Crescent Valley Phoenix Rises has 2 

buildings, that will both serve liquor, on the same lot and so he worded the license so that it is 1 

license for the whole property. Sheriff Watts voiced his concern and voted against approving 

The Owl Clubs renewal due to many reports of no work cards, fights, multiple intoxicated 

subjects etc.. The Board approved of the renewal but will investigate the issues and discuss a 

possible hearing.  

 

Sheriff Watts motioned to approve quarterly liquor license renewals with the objection to The 

Owl Club, Commissioner McKay seconded the motion. All in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & DISCUSSION 

 

1. Public comment and discussion. NOTE: No action may be taken on an issue raised under public 

comment until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action 

will be taken. (Discussion) 

 

Chairman Plaskett called for public comment, hearing none he proceeded to the next item.  

 

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. (For 

Possible Action) 

 

None considered. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

1.   Adjournment of meeting. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Commissioner McKay motioned to adjourn, Chairman Plaskett seconded the motion, all in 

favor motion carried 3-0.  
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Prepared and submitted by Katelyn Ziemann, Deputy Clerk Recorder 

Approved this 17th day of November 2024 by the Board of County Commissioners.  

 

 

            

       ______________________________ 

        Marty Plaskett, Chairman 

 

Attest: _______________________ 

 Kathy Bowling, County Clerk Recorder 
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BOARD OF EUREKA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
November 15, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

 

STATE OF NEVADA ) 

    :SS 

COUNTY OF EUREKA ) 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Approval of the agenda notice with addition of any emergency item and/or deletion of any item. 

Unless otherwise stated, items may be taken out of the order presented on the agenda, in the 

direction of the Chair. (For Possible Action) 

2. Pledge of allegiance. 

 

 The Board of Eureka County Commissioners met pursuant to law on November 15, 2024. Present 

were Chairman Rich McKay, Vice Chair Marty Plaskett, Commissioner Mike Schoenwald, and 

Clerk Recorder Kathy Bowling. The meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. The interactive video 

conferencing system was connected between Crescent Valley and Eureka for the entire meeting. 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve the agenda, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

1. Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comments may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion) 

 

 Chairman McKay called for public comment in Crescent Valley, hearing none he called in Eureka. 

Hearing no public comment in Eureka he proceeded to the next item.  

 

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: 

The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for 

future meetings. (Discussion) 

 

  None considered.  
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COUNTY COMPTROLLER – Kim Todd, Comptroller 

 

1. Payment of expenditures. Notice: Expenditures received after action has been taken under this 

Comptroller section may be presented and acted upon throughout the day. (For Possible Action) 

 

 The Board along with Comptroller Kim Todd reviewed the expenditures. 

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve expenditures of $3,480,779.70 with the passthroughs 

of; $675.62 to Nevada Department Taxation Room tax, $141,680.05 to Nevada Controller School 

taxes, $8,807.56 to Nevada State Controller, $104,310 to Nevada Division of Minerals, and $135 to 

Washoe County Crime Lab for a total of $255,608.23. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

2. Review Fund Balance Report. (Discussion) 

 

  The Board reviewed the current fund balance report.  

 

COMMISSIONERS- 

 

1. Discuss, approve or deny appointing Sgt. Nicholas Collins as an alternate member of the Crescent 

Valley Medical Services Advisory Committee. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve appointing Sgt. Nicholas Collins as an alternate 

member of the Crescent Valley Medical Services Advisory Committee. Commissioner Plaskett 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

3. Discuss, approve or deny the purchase of additional equipment for the Dental Clinic in an amount 

not to exceed $110,000 utilizing funds from the Capital Projects Fund (042-140-55010-249). (For 

Possible Action) 

 

 Jayme Halpin explained that some of the quotes haven’t been very clear on the equipment that is 

getting replaced or staying for the Dental Clinic. The Board requested more information on the 

quotes for the cabinets, and center console for the chairs. They decided to move forward purchasing 

with 20% of the funds and re-evaluate the amounts for the next payment of funds.  

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve 20% of the total for the down payment and table the 

item until the next meeting for more clarification. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, 

all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

4. Consider a letter of interest received from Dr. Gallagher of Gallagher Dental and discuss a possible 

future contract with him of dental services provided at the Dental Clinic. (Discussion) 

  

 The Board discussed changes they would like to see in the contract with Dr. Gallagher of Gallagher 

Dental; a more extensive list of services provided, negotiations with Elko for the Crescent Valley 

days, and clarification on no show stipends.  
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5. Discuss, approve or deny replacing the Eureka Medical Clinic X-ray Machine with a Phillips 

Radiography 7300C for an amount not to exceed $230,135.00 (including 20% contingency for PM 

contract and potential electrical conflicts) utilizing funds from Commissioners Capital Outlay (010-

001-55010-000). (For Possible Action) 

 

 Jayme Halpin explained that the quote includes an inspection once installed, they were able to 

receive a discount and have the removal fee of $5,800 waived on the current X-Ray machine. 

Jayme noted that X-Rays will be unavailable in the Eureka Clinic for a month or two while the 

machines are being swapped.  

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve replacing the Eureka Medical Clinic X-ray Machine 

with a Phillips Radiography 7300C for an amount not to exceed $230,135.00 (including 20% 

contingency for PM contract and potential electrical conflicts) utilizing funds from Commissioners 

Capital Outlay (010-001-55010-000). Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, 

motion carried 3-0.  

 

6. Discuss and consider signing a proclamation recognizing November 11th-16th, 2024, as Nevada 

Flood Awareness Week. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve recognizing November 11th-16th, 2024, as Nevada 

Flood Awareness Week, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion 

carried 3-0.  
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7. Discuss, approve or deny proposed Scope of Work and Fee Schedule with Arc Dome Strategies, 

LLC for the NV Legislature Lobbying Contract leading up to and through the 2025 Session and the 

subsequent two-year Interim. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Michael Mears and Jake Tibbitts explained that they both have worked closely with Caleb Cage, 

Arc Dome Strategies, they feel very confident in his ability to represent Eureka County. He has 

worked across multiple administrations with the governor’s office as well as Churchill County and 

the Eureka County School District. Michael and Jake explained that they looked into other firms, 

and they believe the contract price is fair. 

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a proposed Scope of Work and Fee Schedule with Arc 

Dome Strategies LLC for the NV Legislature Lobbying Contract leading up to and through the 

2025 Session and the subsequent two-year Interim. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

   

8. Discuss, approve or deny a meal variance allowance for the Lieutenant Governor dinner in the 

amount of $214.00 (Total invoice is $760.00, allowed amount is $546.00). (For Possible Action) 

 

 Chairman McKay explained that he picked up the check at the Urban Cowboy when the Lieutenant 

Governor came to visit. There was about 25 people at the dinner.  

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a meal variance allowance for the Lieutenant 

Governor dinner in the amount of $214.00 (Total invoice is $760.00, allowed amount is $546.00). 

Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny providing comments on the Nevada Department of Transportation 

(NDOT) Rural Engagement Plan before November 25, 2024. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Chairman McKay delegated Jayme Halpin and Raymond Hodson to provide comments on the 

Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) Rural Engagement Plan before November 25, 2024. 

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve allowing Jayme Halpin and Raymon Hodson to 

provide comments on the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) Rural Engagement Plan 

before November 25, 2024. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion 

carried 3-0.  

  

CLERK RECORDER-Kathy Bowling, Clerk Recorder 

 

1. Canvass the returns and approve abstract of the vote for the 2024 General Election held November 5, 

2024, pursuant to NRS 293.387. (For Possible Action) 

 

 Eureka County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling canvassed the 2024 General Election, total number 

of registered voters for Eureka County is 1,139. Total voters that cast votes were 1,037 a 91.04% 

voter turnout for Eureka County.  There were 300 voters during early voting, 295 voters on election 

day, 442 mail ballots and drop box ballots were processed. On election day there was 52 same day 
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registered voters, the counting Board reconvened 8 days after the election to count the ballots that 

were verified. Eureka County was one of the top 5 counties with that high percentage of voter 

turnout. There were 7 Precinct 99 voters, who only vote for the president and vice president. Kathy 

Bowling explained that it takes a lot of work and a lot of different people to put on an election. She 

thanked her staff in the Clerk Recorders office; Kim Christiansen, Katie Ziemann and Brandy 

Mahoney. Kathy also thanked all the poll workers that helped during the election and even the 

Primary election, Crescent Valley poll workers; Kim Sewell, Veronique Unger, Nona Kellerman, 

Michael Kellerman and Christina Tucker. Eureka poll workers; Amy Damele, Kathy Porter, Cindy 

Beutel, Donovan Mears, Jack Christiansen and Ruth McHugh. The counting Board members; Kira 

Christiansen, Irma Davilla, Angelique Ard and Garney Damele. She thanked the Sheriff Office 

staff; William Hoggard, Michael Trumbull and Nick Harris. She also thanked the IT department for 

their help on election day with all the equipment, Misty Rowley, Jessica Santoyo and Annelle 

Watts. She also thanked the staff with the Secretary of States office, Dominion, ePulse, Poll Pad, 

Know Ink and the other Nevada Clerks in the State.  

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve the abstract of the vote for the 2024 General Election 

held November 5, 2024, pursuant to NRS 293.387. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

SENIOR CENTERS-Linda Gordon, Senior Center Program Director 

 

1. Report on activities at the Eureka Senior Center and Fannie Komp Senior Center. (Discussion) 

 

 Senior Center Program Director, Linda Gordon reported that they deposited $9,944.89 for the 

month of October. Eureka Senior Center served 827 meals. Crescent Valley Fannie Komp Senior 

Center served 676 meals. Crescent Valley had their thanksgiving meal on November 12 and served 

24 people. Eurekas Thanksgiving lunch will be held on November 19 starting at 11:30.  

 

JUSTICE COURT- Amy Jensen, Justice Court Manager 

 

1. Discuss, approve or deny the purchase of a new copier in the amount of $6,877.00 to be paid from 

Capital Outlay (010-028-55010-000). (For Possible Action) 

  

 Amy Jensen explained that their copier has quit working and for a month they have been going to 

other offices to use their copiers. Their current copier was priced at $13,000 in 2014, they will also 

be receiving a trade in value. 

 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve the purchase of a new copier in the amount of 

$6,877.00 to be paid from Capital Outlay (010-028-55010-000). Commissioner Schoenwald 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion caried 3-0.  

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny a one-time credit card increase, in the amount of $500.00 ($1,000.00 

total) in the month of December 2024, to Officer Jeri Sanders credit card for costs related to her 

attendance at the Court Security Officer Certification class held in Las Vegas, NV. (For Possible 

Action) 
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Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve a one-time credit card increase, in the amount of 

$500.00 ($1,000.00 total) in the month of December 2024, to Officer Jeri Sanders credit card to 

attend the Court Security Officer Certification class held in Las Vegas, NV. Commissioner Plaskett 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

IT – Misty Rowley, IT Director 

 

 IT Director, Misty Rowley reported that they worked with departments and members of the 

community on the October newsletter and social media content. They worked on linking corporate 

logins with Apple services and ID’s. Reprogrammed and installed all the new Crescent Valley 

switches. Continued work on Zscaler policies. They worked with Public Works on the new UPS 

installation and Starlink installation and tested connectivity.  

 

1. Discuss, approve or deny authorizing the IT Director to sign the Tyler Technologies Nondisclosure 

Agreement, to obtain a copy of the Tyler Technologies System & Organization Control (SOC) 

Reports, outside of the meeting. (For Possible Action) 

 

Misty explained that the Tyler Technologies System & Organization Control (SOC) Reports will 

allow her to review the security controls of the system that runs the Tyler software. The reports will 

provide independent verification of Tylers practices in areas like data protection, access controls 

and regulatory compliance.  

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve authorizing IT Director Misty Rowley to sign the 

Tyler Technologies Nondisclosure Agreement, to obtain a copy of the Tyler Technologies System & 

Organization Control (SOC) Reports, outside of the meeting. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded 

the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny accepting Quote #019400 Version 1, from Quest to replace the wireless 

access points in Eureka and Crescent Valley, for an amount not to exceed $29,808.84, ($24,840.70 

plus 20% contingency), utilizing monies budgeted for capital outlay (010-018-55010-000) in the 

Technology Support budget and allow the IT Director to sign outside of the meeting. (For Possible 

Action) 

 

Misty Rowley explained that Quote #019400 Version 1, from Quest will be replacing the access 

points that we already have in Crescent Valley. 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve accepting Quote #019400 Version 1, from Quest to 

replace the wireless access points in Eureka and Crescent Valley, for an amount not to exceed 

$29,808.84, ($24,840.70 plus 20% contingency), utilizing monies budgeted for capital outlay (010-

018-55010-000) in the Technology Support budget and allow IT Director Misty Rowley to sign 

outside of the meeting. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion 

carried 3-0.  
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3. Discuss, approve or deny quote # 441364 from Eaton Corporation for a three-year renewal of the 

UPS Service Contract for equipment located in the Sheriff’s Office at a discounted annual cost of 

$15,851.92, and authorize the acting Sheriff, Miles Umina, to sign outside of the meeting. (For 

Possible Action) 

 

Misty explained to the Board that Eureka has been working with Eaton Corporation for many years 

and this contract will be a renewal. Eaton Corporation will come to Eureka and do onsite 

maintenance inspections.  

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve quote # 441364 from Eaton Corporation for a three-

year renewal of the UPS Service Contract for equipment located in the Sheriff’s Office at a 

discounted annual cost of $15,851.92, and authorize the acting Sheriff, Miles Umina, to sign 

outside of the meeting. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion 

carried 3-0.  

 

AMBULANCE & EMS- Kenny Sanders, EMS Director 

  

1. Report on ambulance and emergency services. (Discussion) 

 

Item was tabled.  

 

2. Review 3rd Quarter report on mandatory ambulance bill write-offs for Medicaid and Medicare 

accounts. (For Possible Action) 

 

Item was tabled.  

TREASURER- Pernecia Johnson, Treasurer 

 

1. Review Treasurer’s Report for September 2024. (Discussion) 

  

 The Board along with Treasurer Pernecia Johnson reviewed the Treasurer's Report for September 

2024.  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES – Tasha Dunlap, HR Director 

 

1. Report on Human Resources projects and activities. (Discussion) 

 

Report tabled. 

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny a promotional request form for the Appraisal Supervisor position, which 

has been budgeted for. (For Possible Action) 

 

Kim Todd and Michael Mears presented to the Board a promotional request form for the Appraisal 

Supervisor position; it will be the highest level in his office. The position will be filled within the 

Assessor’s office and will not be adding headcount to the Assessor’s office. Michael has an 
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employee that will be filling the position, an employee who has been doing the job but will be 

compensated appropriately.  

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve the promotional request form for the Appraisal 

Supervisor position, Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

3. Discuss ratifying an approval for costs, such as air fare, car rental and hotel stay, accrued for a site 

visit of a Medical Services Director/Coordinator candidate on November 14th-15th. (For Possible 

Action) 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve ratifying costs, such as air fare, car rental and hotel 

stay, accrued for a site visit of a Medical Services Director/Coordinator candidate on November 

14th-15th. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

 

SHERIFF- Tyler Thomas, Undersheriff 

 

1. Discuss, approve or deny ratifying a $500 increase to the credit card for Trina Webster ($1,000.00 

total) for the month of November, for costs associated with a Terminal Agency 

Coordinator/Assistant Terminal Agency Coordinator (TAC/ATAC) training that is being held in 

Carson City, NV from November 18-22, 2024. (For Possible Action) 

 

Undersheriff Tyler Thomas explained the need for the ratify, the charges for the Terminal Agency 

Coordinator/Assistant Terminal Agency Coordinator (TAC/ATAC) training fell between the 

rescheduled Commission meetings. Kim Todd helped them increase the credit card limit, so Trina 

Webster didn’t miss the opportunity to sign up for the class. 

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve ratifying a $500 increase to the credit card for 

Trina Webster ($1,000.00 total) for the month of November, for costs associated with a Terminal 

Agency Coordinator/Assistant Terminal Agency Coordinator (TAC/ATAC) training that is being 

held in Carson City, NV from November 18-22, 2024. Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, 

all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

The Board took a 5-minute recess.  

Chairman McKay called the meeting back to order at 11:02 a.m. 

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny accepting quote from Sierra Electronics to install a prisoner cage and 

radar into a new patrol unit, with a property tag # of 8629 and the last 5 digits of the VIN # being 

44584, for an amount not to exceed $2,212.30 to be paid from Capital Outlay (010-034-55010-

092). (For Possible Action) 

 

Undersheriff Tyler Thomas fixed the error of the property tag #8629 to property tag #8759. He 

explained that to ensure the safety of the deputy’s and the people being transported in the back a 

prisoner cage needs to be installed into the patrol unit with a property tag # 8759. 
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Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve quote from Sierra Electronics to install a prisoner cage 

and radar into a new patrol unit, with a property tag # of 8759 and the last 5 digits of the VIN # 

being 44584, for an amount not to exceed $2,212.30 to be paid from Capital Outlay (010-034-

55010-092). Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

 

3. Discuss, approve or deny quote from Sierra electronics to install cages and gun locks into patrol 

vehicle with vin number ending in 44597 (8629 property tag) and 44584 (8627 property tag). (For 

Possible Action) 

 

Item was tabled for more information 

 

COUNTY FACILITIES – Jayme Halpin, Assistant Public Works Director 

 

1. Report on activities and projects at County managed facilities. (Discussion) 

 

 Assistant Public Works Director, Jayme Halpin reported that the road crew has been filling in at the 

landfill, the Opera House had some private parties. General maintenance on facilities from the 

Buildings and Grounds crew, everything has been running smoothly.  

 

PUBLIC WORKS – Jayme Halpin, Assistant Public Works Director 

 

1. Report on Public Works projects and activities. (Discussion) 

 

Assistant Public Works Director, Jayme Halpin reported that they have started their bi-weekly 

meeting for Phase 2B construction and Loomis should be in Eureka within the next month to finish 

their 30%. They have been working to finalize the ALP plan, they do have some confirmed updates. 

He received an email from DEM about small projects from FEMA, he is hoping for an update soon. 

They ordered equipment for the Opera House projects and working on grants for energy efficiency 

for the Courthouse doors and windows.  

 

2. Discuss and Consider recommendation to award the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

(MJHMP) project to Wise Oak Consulting, for an amount not to exceed $118,000.00 utilizing funds 

from Emergency Management Contract Services (010-040-53010-058) and authorize the Chairman 

to sign the contract outside of the meeting. (For Possible Action) 

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve awarding the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 

Mitigation Plan (MJHMP) project to Wise Oak Consulting, for an amount not to exceed 

$118,000.00 utilizing funds from Emergency Management Contract Services (010-040-53010-058) 

and authorize Chairman McKay to sign the contract outside of the meeting. Commissioner Plaskett 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  
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3. Discuss, approve or deny equipment and repairs, performed by Mt. Rose Heating and Air 

Conditioning, to the Eureka Medical Clinic heating system for an amount not to exceed 

$191,026.00 (includes a 10% Contingency) utilizing funds from Capital Projects (042-140-55010- 

249). (For Possible Action) 

 

Jayme Halpin explained that the new heating and air conditioning will be mounted on the side of 

the Clinic building by the generator and will replace the units in the basement that are from the 

80’s.  

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve equipment and repairs, performed by Mt. Rose 

Heating and Air Conditioning, to the Eureka Medical Clinic heating system for an amount not to 

exceed $191,026.00 (includes a 10% Contingency) utilizing funds from Capital Projects (042-140-

55010- 249). Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

4. Discuss, approve or deny a ¾-inch residential water meter and service application to serve APN# 

007- 380-47 located in Devil’s Gate GID District #1. (For Possible Action) 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve deny a ¾-inch residential water meter and service 

application to serve APN# 007- 380-47 located in Devil’s Gate GID District #1. Commissioner 

Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

NATURAL RESOURCES – Jake Tibbitts, Natural Resources Manager 

 

1. Report on current and emerging natural resource issues affecting Eureka County. (Discussion) 

 

Natural Resources Manager, Jake Tibbitts reported that on October 28 he traveled to Winnemucca 

to attend the Mormon Cricket and Grasshopper post season meeting held by the USDA APHIS and 

State Department of AG. He reported from that meeting there was a lot of discussion about funding 

for aerial treatments, and that they don’t expect the same treatments this next spring. The BLM 

hosted their Greenlink North Project meeting here at the Opera House on October 30th, Jake was 

surprised in the lack of turnout from the public. He wants to remind everyone that the EIS is out 

and comments are due on December 11. There was a Water legislation meeting in Reno on 

November 6. Jake reminded the Board that they will start to see legislative language on every 

agenda moving forward. November 7 the Conservation District held their election with the help of 

Kathy Bowling and her election staff. Vicki Buchanan and Gary McCuin were both reelected to 

their seats. Jake reported that as of that day November 15, the Greater Sage Grouse Final EIS and 

proposed resource management plan amendment hit the Federal Register. Jake and the 

Commissioners will be attending The Central Nevada Regional Water Authority Legislative 

committee meeting on December 2nd and i80’s meeting.  

 

2. Discuss, approve or deny using the services of Eureka County’s water counsel, Allison MacKenzie 

Law Office, to file an Amicus Curiae brief in the case of Baker Ranches, Inc., et al. v. Haaland, et 

al., regarding the federal government’s waiver of sovereign immunity in cases involving 

administration of water rights decrees. Note: Efforts are being made to have other aligned entities 

join this effort to share some costs and reduce filings. (For Possible Action) 
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Jake explained that the Humbolt River Basin could potentially be affected during the case of Baker 

Ranches, Inc., et al. v. Haaland, et al. Pine Valley, all of Crescent Valley, all of Boulder Flat, 

Maggie Creek and the whole northern part of the county is in the Humbolt River Basin. He 

suggests the County use the services of Allison MacKenzie Law Office, to file an Amicus Curiae 

brief to help protect Eureka County.  

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve using the services of Eureka County’s water counsel, 

Allison MacKenzie Law Office, to file an Amicus Curiae brief in the case of Baker Ranches, Inc., 

et al. v. Haaland, et al., regarding the federal government’s waiver of sovereign immunity in cases 

involving administration of water rights decrees. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, 

all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

3. Discuss and consider providing scoping comments to Ely BLM for their consideration in 

development of the Antelope and Triple B Wild Horse Complexes Herd Management Area Plan 

(HMAP). (For Possible Action) 

 

Jake suggested commenting on the consistency with the county’s plans and policies that is required 

by federal law and that the Triple B wild horses do bleed over into the Diamond Mountains. It has 

been documented where the horses come onto the Diamond hills north and south, they aren’t on the 

official map part of the Triple B complex, but they need to be. He also suggests asking them to not 

diminish the socioeconomic impacts and include the water law implications where ranchers are 

displaced from springs. Commissioner Plaskett suggested commenting on the wording regarding 

impacts to hunting tags and goods sales.  

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve providing scoping comments to Ely BLM for their 

consideration in development of the Antelope and Triple B Wild Horse Complexes Herd 

Management Area Plan (HMAP) and to allow Chairman McKay to sign outside of the meeting. 

Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

4. Discuss and consider providing comments to Ely BLM on the Pancake Wild Horse Complex 

HMAP Preliminary Environmental Assessment. (For Possible Action) 

 

Jake explained that the Pancake Wild Horse Complex corners near the Fish Creek Ranch allotment 

and the Fish Creek Wild Horse Complex, commenting on the fact that the horses do transfer back 

and forth and asking for them to consider that area even though it’s not on the Preliminary 

Environmental Assessment map.  

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve providing comments to Ely BLM on the Pancake 

Wild Horse Complex HMAP Preliminary Environmental Assessment. Commissioner Plaskett 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  
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5. Discuss status of groundwater rights retirement in Diamond Valley through the Nevada Water 

Conservation Infrastructure Initiative (NWCII) and consider efforts, including potential funding 

contribution, to leverage remaining NWCII funding held by the Central Nevada Regional Water 

Authority to retire additional water rights to benefit the Diamond Valley aquifer. (For Possible 

Action) 

 

Jake explained to the Board that as of the day before, November 14th, he received a notification 

from the Central Nevada Regional Water Authority that they have requested another round of 

applications and there is $380,000.00 left. Jake asked the Board to consider appointing a 

commissioner to work with him, Public Works and the District Attorney to help find a solution that 

could benefit Eureka County. 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to appoint Commissioner Marty Plaskett to work with Jake 

Tibbitts on the Nevada Water Conservation Infrastructure Initiative (NWCII) project in Diamon 

Valley. Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

SHERIFF (continued)- 

3. Discuss, approve or deny quote from Sierra electronics to install cages and gun locks into patrol 

vehicle with vin number ending in 44597 (8629 property tag) and 44584 (8627 property tag). (For 

Possible Action) 

 

Undersheriff Tyler Thomas explained that with the change of the new interim Sheriff, they are 

putting Jesse Watts vehicle back into patrol. While moving some of the vehicles around they are 

needing to add prisoner cages and gun locks to make them patrol ready.  

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve quote from Sierra electronics to install cages and 

gun locks into patrol vehicle with vin number ending in 44597 (8629 property tag) and 44584 

(8627 property tag), for an amount not to exceed $2,838.90 to be paid from Capital Outlay (010-

034-55010-092). Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE- 

 

1. Review correspondence. (Discussion) 

 

County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling read the meeting correspondence; SAVE THE DATE for 

the 2025 Southern Nevada Luncheon, Eureka County Advisory Board to Manage Wildlife Agenda, 

US Department of Interior BLM Announcement, CVTAB AGENDA 11-20-24, ECC Letter, Eureka 

Conservation District Election 2024, Follow the Law Letter, Great Basin Children’s Advocacy 

Center 1 year Anniversary invitation, McKinsey MDL Settlement, Mt Wheeler Power 

complimentary power letter, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection notice of workshop 

letter, Nevada Division of Water Resources permits letter, 2 letters from State of Nevada 

Department of Taxation notice of intent to act upon regulation, I-80 November Town Hall meeting 

announcement, Sierra Club California & Nevada Desert Committee report, Packages from 

Substrata.  
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2. Commissioner reports on pertinent correspondence or other matters. (Discussion) 

 

The Board discussed the PIO form that Misty wrote for the employee from the Commissioners. 

PUBLIC COMMENT- 

 

1. Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comments may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion) 

 

Chairman McKay called for public comment in both Crescent Valley and Eureka, hearing none 

from both he proceeded to the next item.  

 

 

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: 

The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for 

future meetings. (Discussion) 

 

Commissioner Schoenwald discussed adding the item of Crescent Valley EMS moving to a 4-10 

schedule to the next agenda.  

 

ADJOURNMENT- 

 

1. Adjournment of meeting. 

 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Plaskett seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 12:05 p.m. 

 

Prepared and submitted by Deputy Clerk Recorder, Katelyn Ziemann. 

Approved this 17th day of December 2024 by the Board of Eureka County Commissioners.  

 

          __________________________________ 

          Chairman, Rich McKay 

ATTEST: ________________________ 

 County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling 
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BOARD OF EUREKA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
December 3, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

 

STATE OF NEVADA  ) 

    :SS 

COUNTY OF EUREKA ) 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. Approval of the agenda notice with addition of any emergency item and/or deletion of any item. 

Unless otherwise stated, items may be taken out of the order presented on the agenda, in the 

direction of the Chair. (For Possible Action)  

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

The Board of Eureka County Commissioners met pursuant to law on December 3, 2024. Present 

were Chairman Rich McKay, Vice Chair Marty Plaskett, Commissioner Mike Schoenwald, and 

Clerk Recorder Kathy Bowling. The meeting was called to order at 9:31 a.m. The interactive video 

conferencing system was connected between Crescent Valley and Eureka for the entire meeting. 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve the agenda with the tabling of November 15, 2024 

meeting minutes, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comment may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion) 

 Chairman McKay called for public comment in Crescent Valley, hearing none he called in Eureka. 

Hearing no public comment in Eureka he proceeded to the next item. 

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: 

The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for 

future meetings. (Discussion) 

None considered. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.   Approval of minutes of October 15, 2024, October 31, 2024 and November 15, 2024 Commission 

meetings. (For Possible Action) 

  November 15, 2024 Commissioner meeting minutes were tabled.  
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 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve October 15, 2024 and October 31,2024 Commission 

meeting minutes, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

COUNTY COMPTROLLER – Kim Todd, Comptroller 

1. Payment of expenditures. Notice: Expenditures received after action has been taken under this 

Comptroller section may be presented and acted upon throughout the day. (For Possible Action) 

The Board along with Comptroller Kim Todd reviewed the expenditures. 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve expenditures of $2,171,155.96, Commissioner 

Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

2. Review Fund Balance Report. (Discussion) 

  The board reviewed the current Fund Balance Report. 

COMMISSIONERS 

1. Review and consider approving the Lease Agreement(s) between Eureka County and 

tenants/practitioners utilizing the Eureka Medical Clinic for provision of healthcare services, to 

define and memorialize the roles and responsibilities of parties to the agreements and authorize 

signing the Lease Agreements outside of the meeting. (For Possible Action) 

Jeb Rowley explained that a Lease Agreement between Eureka County and tenants/practitioners 

utilizing the Eureka Medical Clinic would serve as a basic structure for operations and services. 

The Board discussed changes with the draft agreement; how utilities would be billed, locks and 

keys, what kind of reporting from providers they would like. The Board decided to continue 

working out the details of the Lease Agreement with the help of the District Attorney’s office. 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a Lease Agreement(s) between Eureka County and 

tenants/practitioners utilizing the Eureka Medical Clinic. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

2. Discuss, approve or deny the purchase of additional equipment for the Dental Clinic in an amount 

not to exceed $110,000 utilizing funds from the Capital Projects Fund (042-140-55010-249). (For 

Possible Action) 

 

Kim Todd explained that the additional equipment purchased for the dental clinic will be owned by 

Eureka County and not the dentist occupying the space. The equipment purchased includes an X-

Ray machine fit for both adults and children.  

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve the purchase of additional equipment for the 

Dental Clinic in an amount not to exceed $110,000 utilizing funds from the Capital Projects Fund 

(042-140-55010-249). Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-

0.  

 

3. Discuss legislation being considered by the Nevada Legislature at their upcoming 2025 Session. No 

position on legislation will be taken by the Board at this time. (Discussion)  
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Jake Tibbitts reported that this will be a heavy water session, lots of water bills and some 

substantial changes people are proposing in Nevada water law. He also reported that there is a 

NACO bill that will come forward and require early county involvement. 

 

4. Discuss, approve or deny delegating the responsibility for taking the County’s official position on 

emerging legislative issues for the 2025 Nevada Legislative Session to one Board member or other 

responsible party. (For Possible Action) 

 

Jake Tibbitts and Michael Mears have already been delegated to help report and work with Caleb 

Cage with Arc Dome Strategies, LLC but they are suggesting a County Commissioner also be 

delegated. 

 

Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to delegate Commissioner Marty Plaskett to take the 

responsibility of the County’s official position on emerging legislative issues for the 2025 Nevada 

Legislative Session. Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

 

5. Discuss, approve or deny moving EMS employees to a 4-10 schedule. (For Possible Action) 

Commissioner Schoenwald explained that to help ease up the schedule and give the Crescent 

Valley EMS employees a day to go to town or take care of personal things they are asking to move 

to a 4-10 schedule. Half of them would work Monday through Thursday 7am to 5 pm and the other 

half would work Tuesday through Friday 7am to 5pm. Ultimately this new 4-10 schedule would 

affect all the Eureka County EMS employees. After discussion the Board decided to do a 6-month 

probationary trial period for the 4-10 schedule. 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve moving EMS employees to a 4-10 schedule for a 

6-month trial period beginning Monday December 8th. Commissioner Plaskett seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

IT- Misty Rowley, IT Director 

1. Report on IT projects and activities. (Discussion) 

IT Director, Misty Rowley reported that they worked with departments and members of the 

community on the December newsletter and social media content. They are still working on 

migrating phones over to the new MDM software. They are working with the new RUCKUS 

access points getting installed, they are scheduled to be in Eureka on December 16th. She is waiting 

on the reports from Tyler to review the SOC controls.  

2. Discuss, approve or deny accepting Quote #PFFJ033, from CDW for spare UPS equipment for an 

amount not to exceed $7,018.08, utilizing monies budgeted for capital outlay (010-018-55010-000) 

in the Technology Support budget. (For Possible Action) 

 Misty Rowley explained this equipment will be a smaller UPS equipment to have on hand for 

places like the substation or town hall.  

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve accepting Quote #PFFJ033, from CDW for spare UPS 

equipment for an amount not to exceed $7,018.08, utilizing monies budgeted for capital outlay 
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(010-018-55010-000) in the Technology Support budget. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

CRESCENT VALLEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT – Jeremy Rice, Chief 

1. Discuss, approve or deny a request for a $500.00 donation from the North End Activity Fund to 

purchase gift cards as prizes for the Parade of Lights event scheduled in Crescent Valley on 

December 22nd, 2024, and if approved, issue the check to Jeremy Rice. (For Possible Action) 

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a request for a $500.00 donation from the North End 

Activity Fund to purchase gift cards as prizes for the Parade of Lights event scheduled in Crescent 

Valley on December 22nd, 2024, and issue the check to Jeremy Rice. Commissioner Schoenwald 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

CRESCENT VALLEY TOWN ADVISORY BOARD – Jeremy Rice, Chairman 

1. Discuss, approve or deny a request for a $3,500.00 donation from the North End Activity Fund to 

help fund the Crescent Valley Community Christmas Party. (For Possible Action) 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve a $3,500.00 donation from the North End Activity 

Fund to help fund the Crescent Valley Community Christmas Party. Commissioner Plaskett 

seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

JUVENILE PROBATION- Steve Zimmerman, Juvenile Probation Officer 

1. Discuss, approve or deny credit card limit increase for Steve Zimmerman in the amount of $4,500 

to cover Ski Trip Expenses (Hotel rooms, rentals, ski tickets, and lunch vouchers). Note: The ski 

trip will be held December 12th-13th at Brianhead, UT (For Possible Action) 

 Steve Zimmerman explained to the Board that they have 70 kids signed up for the annual Ski Trip. 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a credit card limit increase for Steve Zimmerman in 

the amount of $4,500 to cover Ski Trip Expenses, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, 

all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

AMBULANCE & EMS- Kenny Sanders, EMS Director 

1. Report on ambulance and emergency services. (Discussion) 

 EMS Director, Kenny Sanders reported that for the month of October they had a total of 31 calls 

for service, 14 from Eureka and 17 from Crescent Valley. The had 2 transports to Battle Mountain, 

3 to Elko and 1 to Ely. They had 2 transfers to Reach Air and 3 to Medex. For the month of 

November, they had a total of 26 calls for service, 15 from Eureka and 11 from Crescent Valley. 

They had 1 transport to Battle Mountain, 1 to Ely, and 5 to Elko with 1 transfer to Medex. 

2. Review 3rd Quarter report on mandatory ambulance bill write-offs for Medicaid and Medicare 

accounts. (For Possible Action) 

 Kenny Sanders reported that there were zero mandatory ambulance bill write-offs for Medicaid and 

Medicare accounts for the months of July, August and September.  
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 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve the write offs of zero for Medicaid and Medicare 

accounts, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

TREASURER-Pernecia Johnson, Treasurer 

1. Review Treasurer’s Report for October 2024. (Discussion) 

 The Board along with Treasurer, Pernecia Johnson reviewed the treasurers report for October 2024.  

HUMAN RESOURCES-Tasha Dunlap, Human Resources Director 

1. Update on Human Resources projects and activities. (Discussion) 

 Human Resources Director, Tasha Dunlap reported on the open positions they still have; Deputy 

DA, Sheriff, Medical Services Director, Public Works Technician, Telecommunicator, EMT and 

Search and Rescue. They did offer the Medical Services Director position to an individual, but they 

did not accept. She is planning the County Christmas potluck for December 17 at 5:30 at the Opera 

House for employees and their families. She will be out of the office for a few days attending a 

Peer Support Training for Suicide Prevention in Reno. When she gets back, she will be putting on 

the Essential Management Course for newly appointed managers.  

2. Discuss, approve or deny changes to the Telecommunicator I-III job description. (For Possible 

Action) 

 Tasha explained the changes include verbiage around using the technology available in the 

communication centers and updating the titles from Dispatcher to Telecommunicator.  

 Items #2 and #3 were approved together.  

3. Discuss, approve or deny changes to the Communication Supervisor job description. (For Possible 

Action) 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve changes to the Telecommunicator I-III job 

description and the Communication Supervisor job description. Commissioner Plaskett seconded 

the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

4. Discuss, approve or deny the approval of purchasing of employee Christmas gifts not to exceed an 

amount of $3,500. (For Possible Action) 

 Commissioner Schoenwald motioned to approve the purchasing of employee Christmas gifts not to 

exceed an amount of $3,500. Commissioner Plaskett seconded the motion, all in favor, motion 

carried 3-0.  

CLERK RECORDER-Kathy Bowling, Clerk Recorder 

1. Discuss, approve or deny signing the Seventh Judicial District Court Cooperative agreement for 

Fiscal Year 2024/2025. (For Possible Action) 

 Eureka County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling explained that the Seventh Judicial District Court 

includes 3 counties: Lincoln, White Pine and Eureka County. The Cooperative agreement is a Tri-

County agreement that splits the fees for District Court based on population, Eureka pays the least 

amount between the 3 counties.  
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 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve signing the Seventh Judicial District Court 

Cooperative agreement for Fiscal Year 2024/2025. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

ROAD DEPARTMENT- Raymond Hodson, Assistant Public Works Director 

1. Report on Road Department projects and activities. (Discussion) 

 Assistant Public Works Director, Raymond Hodson reported that the road crew has finished blading 

the Union Pass, the Slagowski Road, Bowman’s/Fiorenzie’s, Grass Valley, 3rd Street Cutoff, Mark 

Damele Road, 7th Street, and Hog Pen Roads. They have bladed the JD Road for the 4th time this 

year and are trying to schedule a meeting with Nevada Gold Mines to see if they can come up with 

a better plan for the road. Over the last 2 months they have been working a lot at the landfills and 

the road crew continued to fill in the vacancy. They hauled a load of white goods from the landfill 

in Crescent Valley and will make a few more trips for tires.  

PUBLIC WORKS – Jeb Rowley, Public Works Director 

1. Report on Public Works projects and activities. (Discussion) 

Public Works Director, Jeb Rowley reported that they have had more applications for the mechanic 

position and will be holding interviews soon. The Public Works Admin Casual position has been 

filled and that person started the day before. The doors at the Opera House and Courthouse are 

scheduled to be replaced December 10th. They are still working on grants for replacing the 

windows. The girls shower remodel at the swimming pool is scheduled to start December 9th.  

2. Discuss, approve or deny Quote #8399 from Glass Doctor for purchase and installation of door and 

hardware to the Eureka Courthouse, for an amount not to exceed $9,743.80 ($8,858.00 plus 10% 

contingency), utilizing funds budgeted for capital outlay (010-015-55010-000) in the Building & 

Grounds budget. (For Possible Action) 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve Quote #8399 from Glass Doctor for purchase and 

installation of door and hardware to the Eureka Courthouse, for an amount not to exceed $9,743.80 

($8,858.00 plus 10% contingency), utilizing funds budgeted for capital outlay (010-015-55010-

000) in the Building & Grounds budget. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in 

favor, motion carried 3-0. 

 

3. Discuss, approve or deny Quote #8400 from Glass Doctor for purchase and installation of door and 

hardware to the Eureka Opera House, for an amount not to exceed $19,418.88 ($17,653.53 plus 

10% contingency), utilizing funds budgeted for capital outlay (010-015-55010-000) in the Building 

& Grounds budget. (For Possible Action) 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve Quote #8400 from Glass Doctor for purchase and 

installation of door and hardware to the Eureka Opera House, for an amount not to exceed 

$19,418.88 ($17,653.53 plus 10% contingency), utilizing funds budgeted for capital outlay (010-

015-55010-000) in the Building & Grounds budget. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the 

motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 
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4. Discuss, approve or deny a capital outlay purchase of two (2) 2024 Ford E-450 14 passenger ADA 

vans for the Senior Center from RO Bus Sales utilizing funds from the Senior Center Capital 

Outlay (010-072- 55010-000) for a not to exceed amount of $264,000.00 under State Purchasing 

Contract (99SWC- S1495). Note: These vehicles are being purchased through a Federal Transit 

Grant from the Nevada Department of Transportation. Eureka County will be reimbursed 85% of 

the purchase price. (For Possible Action) 

 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a capital outlay purchase of two (2) 2024 Ford E-450 

14 passenger ADA vans for the Senior Center from RO Bus Sales utilizing funds from the Senior 

Center Capital Outlay (010-072- 55010-000) for a not to exceed amount of $264,000.00 under 

State Purchasing Contract (99SWC- S1495). Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all 

in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

5. Discuss, approve or deny upgrades from Crane Tech Inc. to the bridge crane at the Eureka Road 

Shop, for an amount not to exceed $29,683.09 ($26,984.63 plus 10% contingency), utilizing funds 

budgeted for capital outlay (020-106-55010-000) in the Road Department budget. (For Possible 

Action) 

 Jeb Rowley explained that the bridge cranes are used at both road shops and the crane in Eureka’s 

pendant controllers has been broken and repaired multiple times, if the pendant fails the parts are 

obsolete. The intent is to repair one crane and target the second one next year.  

 Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve upgrades from Crane Tech Inc. to the bridge crane at 

the Eureka Road Shop, for an amount not to exceed $29,683.09 ($26,984.63 plus 10% 

contingency), utilizing funds budgeted from capital outlay (020-106-55010-000) in the Road 

Department budget. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 

3-0. 

The Board took a 5-minute recess. 

Chairman McKay called the meeting back to order at 11:28 a.m. 

 

NATURAL RESOURCES – Jake Tibbitts, Natural Resources Director 

1. Report on current and emerging natural resource issues affecting Eureka County. (Discussion) 

Natural Resources Director, Jake Tibbitts reported that on the morning of November 15th the BLM 

signed the record of decision and the plan of operations approval for the Nevada Gold Mines 

Robertson Project. The valley is 100% in Lander County, but the population increase in town and 

the strains on the county services directly effects Crescent Valley. It will add 45 new Nevada Gold 

Mines employees and 50 contractors, it will be about a 12 year mine. On the 20th Chairman McKay, 

acting Sheriff Miles Umina and Jake met with i80 Gold to talk through the county comments on the 

draft EA. The Habitat Project started the previous Wednesday removing Pinyon Pine and Juniper 

trees, they worked through Thanksgiving and the weekend and completed 630 acres. He made 

aware to the Board that he received an inquiry from a consulting group that a client is looking to 

build a wind project in Eureka County, there is no indication of where they’re proposing it. Because 

Eureka County has no permitting or zoning the company does not have to formally file anything 

stating the project is moving forward. The blast that was planned at Ruby Hill for that day was 

postponed until Thursday the 5th around noon.  
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2. Discuss and consider providing comments to BLM on the Greenlink North Transmission Project 

Draft Environmental Impact Statement. (For Possible Action) 

 

Jake Tibbitts suggested the Board provide comments to BLM on the Greenlink North Transmission 

Project Draft Environmental Impact Statement; the disposal grounds impact and highlight that the 

utility corridor borders private lands. He also suggests asking for them to shift the utility corridor 

line around the fairgrounds, so it doesn’t impact town growth, social economics and encroaches on 

habitat work.  

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve providing comments to BLM on the Greenlink North 

Transmission Project Draft Environmental Impact Statement, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded 

the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

3. Discuss and consider providing comments to Battle Mountain BLM on the 2025 Fish Creek Herd 

Management Area Wild Horse Gather and Population Management and associated Determination 

of NEPA Adequacy. (For Possible Action) 

Jake Tibbitts explained that the 2025 Fish Creek Herd Management Area Wild Horse Gather and 

Population Management will be complete in January, and he suggests a letter of support in the 

project.  

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve providing comments to Battle Mountain BLM on the 

2025 Fish Creek Herd Management Area Wild Horse Gather and Population Management and 

associated Determination of NEPA Adequacy. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all 

in favor, motion carried 3-0. 

4. Discuss and consider formal protest of BLM Proposed Resource Management Plan Amendment 

and Final Environmental Impact Statement for Greater Sage Grouse. (For Possible Action) 

 

Jake Tibbitts suggested to the Board that they provide comments protesting the BLM Proposed 

Resource Management Plan Amendment and Final Environmental Impact Statement for Greater 

Sage Grouse. He suggests the comments include the BLM imposing a disturbance cap and adaptive 

management.  

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to approve a formal protest of BLM Proposed Resource 

Management Plan Amendment and Final Environmental Impact Statement for Greater Sage 

Grouse. Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Review correspondence. (Discussion) 

 Eureka County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling read the meeting correspondence; NWRA member 

highlight email, Nevada Tax Commissioner meeting invitation, NACO emails, STEWART TITLE 

Copy of deed for 301 Ruby Hill Ave, NuLegacy Gold Corporation Reclamation Permit, Nevada 

Division of Environmental Protection Approval of the CMZ Exploration Project Plan of Operations 

Phase 1 Issuance of revised reclamation Permit, Connie Hicks Letter, Notice of Diamond Valley 
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Groundwater Management Plan Annual Meeting @ the Opera House on Thursday Dec. 12, @ 10 

am 

2. Commissioner reports on pertinent correspondence or other matters. (Discussion) 

  None considered.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comment and discussion. Notice: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item 

until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be 

taken. Public comment may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Public comment may be 

allowed on “Action” items, in addition to the two times specified on the agenda. (Discussion) 

Chairman McKay called for public comment in Crescent Valley hearing none he called in Eureka, 

Chairman McKay asked for a moment of silence in remembrance for longtime and beloved Eureka 

resident Kenny Sanders Sr. who passed away the week prior.  

2. Consider items requiring action to be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. Notice: 

The public is welcome to request agenda items for future meetings during the Public Comment 

period or may consult with one or more of the Board of Commissioners to request agenda items for 

future meetings. (Discussion) 

 

Kim Todd notified the Board that the auditor reports will be on the next agenda, the Board 

scheduled the Sheriffs office walkthrough for immediately after the December 17th meeting, and 

there will be a Liquor Board meeting before the December 17th Board of County Commissioners 

meeting.  

ADJOURNMENT 

1. Adjournment of meeting. 

Commissioner Plaskett motioned to adjourn, Commissioner Schoenwald seconded the motion, all 

in favor, motion carried 3-0.  

Meeting adjourned at 12:22 p.m. 

Prepared and submitted by Deputy Clerk Recorder, Katelyn Ziemann. 

Approved this 17th day of December 2024 by the Board of Eureka County Commissioners. 

 

          ______________________________ 

          Chairman, Rich McKay 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 County Clerk Recorder, Kathy Bowling 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Eureka County, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Eureka County, State of Nevada (the County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of Eureka County, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the 
County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, schedules of budgetary comparison and reconciliation information, the 
Schedules of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of County’s 
Share of Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of County’s Contributions, and the notes to required 
supplementary information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
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statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  
 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the 
Schedules of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of County’s 
Share of Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of County’s Contributions in accordance with GAAS, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.  
 
The schedules of budgetary comparison and reconciliation information and related notes are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedules of budgetary 
comparison and reconciliation information and related notes have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedules of budgetary 
comparison and reconciliation information and related notes are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and 
Actual (Budgetary Basis), the Road Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances – Budget and Actual, the Regional Transportation Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual, and the Building Operation and Maintenance 
Reserve Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 
for the year ended June 30, 2023 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2023 financial statements. The information was subjected to the audit procedures applied 
in the audit of the 2023 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare those financial statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances – Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis), the Road Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual, the Regional Transportation Fund Schedule of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual, and the Building Operation 
and Maintenance Reserve Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – 
Budget and Actual, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole for the year ended June 30, 2023.
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Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the combining and individual 
fund financial statements and schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the basic financial statements of Eureka County as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated December 4, 2023 which 
contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information. The combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules for the year ended June 30, 2023, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the 2023 financial statements. The information was subjected to the audit procedures 
applied in the audit of the 2023 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare those financial statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12, 
2024, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 





5 

Eureka County 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 

As management of Eureka County, State of Nevada, we offer readers of Eureka County’s financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Eureka County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2024.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The governmental activities assets of Eureka County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2024 by
$136,065,000 (net position). Of this amount $53,193,150 (unrestricted) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

• The business-type activities assets of Eureka County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2024 by
$20,160,302 (net position). Of this amount $2,998,211 (unrestricted) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

• At June 30, 2024, the total fund balance for the general fund was $57,609,825, of this balance
$30,235,023 is unassigned.

• Eureka County at June 30, 2024 had no bonded debt.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Eureka County’s basic financial 
statements. Eureka County’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Eureka 
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of Eureka County’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between them reported as net position. 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Eureka County is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused 
vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Eureka County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of Eureka County include general government, public safety, judicial, 
public works, health and sanitation, culture and recreation, and community support. The business-type activities 
of Eureka County include one water/sewer utility, and two additional water utilities. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-14 of this report. 
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Eureka County 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Eureka County, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of 
Eureka County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and custodial funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources on 
balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
 
Eureka County maintains twenty-six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund and three other funds, which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other twenty-two governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules elsewhere in this report. 
 
Eureka County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of these funds. A budgetary comparison schedule 
has been provided for all funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements and reconciliations can be found on pages 15-18 of this 
report. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
As of Fiscal-Year 2024, Eureka County maintains three proprietary type funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the Devil’s Gate General 
Improvement District, Eureka Water/Sewer and Crescent Valley Water which are considered to be major funds 
of Eureka County. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-22 of this report. 
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Fiduciary (Custodial) Funds 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government 
(custodial). Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources 
of those funds are not available to support Eureka County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary 
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 23-24 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 
25-56 of this report.

Other Information 
In connection with major governmental funds the individual fund statements and schedules can be found on 
pages 56-73 of this report. In connection with non-major governmental funds the combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules can be found on pages 74-108 of this report. The major proprietary fund individual 
fund statements can be found on pages 109-111 of this report.  

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, Eureka County’s net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. In the case of Eureka County, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources by $156,225,302 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

The largest portion of Eureka County’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment). There is no outstanding related debt used to acquire those assets. Eureka 
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
The following table provides a summary of Eureka County’s net position at June 30, 2024: 
 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Current and other 

assets  $   98,459,360 103,362,564$  $     4,409,175 2,992,918$      102,868,535$ 106,355,482$ 
Capital assets       59,990,668 50,769,243            17,162,091 13,816,991            77,152,759 64,586,234      

Total assets 158,450,028   154,131,807   21,571,266      16,809,909      180,021,294   170,941,716   

Deferred Outflows
of Resources         7,066,166         7,445,580 233,825           284,787                   7,299,991 7,730,367        

Current and other 
liabilities         4,823,307 6,050,889                    685,369 72,308             5,508,676        6,123,197        

Long-term liabilities       21,881,576 20,987,116                  851,020 842,108                 22,732,596 21,829,224      

Total liabilities       26,704,883 27,038,005      1,536,389        914,416           28,241,272      27,952,421      

Deferred inflows 
 of resources         2,746,311 3,337,666                    108,400 131,897                   2,854,711 3,469,563        

Net position
Net investment

in capital 
assets       59,990,668 50,769,243            17,162,091 13,816,991      77,152,759      64,586,234      

Restricted       22,881,182 21,096,985                               - -                        22,881,182      21,096,985      
Unrestricted       53,193,150 59,335,488              2,998,211 2,231,392        56,191,361      61,566,880      

Total net position 136,065,000$ 131,201,716$ 20,160,302$   16,048,383$   156,225,302$ 147,250,099$ 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Eureka County’s Net Position

Total

 
Eureka County’s unrestricted net position $56,191,361 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing 
obligation to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, Eureka County is able to report positive balances in all categories of net 
position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for the governmental and business-type activities. The 
same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
 
Governmental Activities 
Governmental activities increased Eureka County’s net position by $4,863,284. Overall, County general and 
program revenues increased $3,906,750 during fiscal year 2024 compared to fiscal year 2023. This is mainly a 
result of an increase in consolidated taxes, investment earnings, and a tax sale. 
 
 



9 

Eureka County 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 

Business-Type Activities 
Business-type activities increased Eureka County’s net position by $4,111,919. This was mainly due a transfer of 
$4,000,000 from the General Fund to the Eureka Water/Sewer fund to assist with a major water/sewer 
replacement project. Commissioners review the rates during the budget process and there has not been a rate 
increase since 2010. Depreciation expense for the current fiscal year was $1,192,322. 

The following table represents the County’s changes in net position: 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for services  $       1,641,983 1,538,950$        $          517,632 515,553$           $       2,159,615 2,054,503$       
Operating grants and 

contributions              189,867 237,872             - -              189,867 237,872             
Capital grants and

contributions              603,137 862,082                          904,895 478,558                       1,508,032 1,340,640         
General revenues

Taxes         15,874,861 16,090,856       - -         15,874,861 16,090,856       
Intergovernmental         11,412,225 10,484,822       - -         11,412,225 10,484,822       
Other           4,675,416 1,276,157                      152,891 39,942                         4,828,307 1,316,099         

Total revenues         34,397,489         30,490,739           1,575,418           1,034,053         35,972,907         31,524,792 

Expenses
General government           8,182,453 7,966,141         - - 8,182,453         7,966,141         
Public safety           4,678,975 4,075,021         - -           4,678,975 4,075,021         
Judicial           1,753,735 1,540,386         - -           1,753,735 1,540,386         
Public works           5,959,235 5,032,838         - -           5,959,235 5,032,838         
Health and sanitation           2,176,203 2,032,514         - - 2,176,203         2,032,514         
Culture and recreation           1,770,228 1,566,138         - -           1,770,228 1,566,138         
Community support              513,376              411,255 - -              513,376 411,255             
Water - -           1,853,496 1,435,892                   1,853,496 1,435,892         
Sewer - -              110,003 108,931                          110,003 108,931             

Total expenses         25,034,205 22,624,293       1,963,499         1,544,823         26,997,704       24,169,116       

Change in net position 4,863,284         7,866,446         4,111,919         (510,770)           8,975,203         7,355,676         

Net position,
 beginning of year 131,201,716     123,335,270     16,048,383       16,559,153       147,250,099     139,894,423     

Net position, end of year 136,065,000$   131,201,716$   20,160,302$     16,048,383$     156,225,302$   147,250,099$   

Eureka County’s Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
Major Governmental Fund Balance Changes 
The Eureka County General Fund (budgetary basis) ending fund balance decreased to $43,278,879 in Fiscal Year 
2024 compared to $52,643,311 at the end of fiscal year 2023. This is mainly due to transfers of $15,000,000 to 
various other accounts to assist with major projects and funding shortages. 
 
The Road Fund showed a decrease of $1,295,235 in its fund balance and the Regional Transportation Fund (RTC) 
showed an increase of $2,466,144 in its fund balance. There will be a major road paving project in fiscal years 
2025-2028, which is being funded by General Fund money being transferred over. The Building Maintenance 
and Operations Fund showed an increase of $157,413 in its fund balance. There is a major roof repair and AC 
units replaced at the Annex, and key pad devices placed on various County buildings. 
 
Major Proprietary Fund Balance Changes 
Unrestricted net position in the Eureka Town Water/Sewer Fund at June 30, 2024 was $1,532,309, and the fund 
had an increase in net position of $3,675,469 from the prior fiscal year. Unrestricted net position in the Crescent 
Valley Water Fund was $626,126, and the fund had an increase in net position of $614,133 from the prior fiscal 
year. Unrestricted net position in the Devils Gate General Improvement District was $839,776, and the fund had 
a decrease in net position of $177,683 from the prior fiscal year. There was a transfer from the General Fund to 
the Eureka Water/Sewer of $4,000,000 for a water/sewer replacement project and a transfer to the Crescent 
Valley Water of $500,000 for operating expenses. 
 
Budgetary Highlights - Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 
The budget statements reflect a comparison of budgeted revenues and expenditures to actual for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget as filed with the Nevada 
Department of Taxation. Line item transfers between functions were made during the year as approved by the 
County Commissioners and for grant augmentations.  
 
Significant Budgetary Variances Between the Final Amended Budget and Actual Results 
 
General Fund (Budgetary Basis) 
Revenues 
In the General Fund, there was an increase in revenues overall. Revenues increased from the budget by 
$3,085,734. The General Fund revenues were $24,296,512 and the budgeted total was $21,210,778. The 
increase can mainly be attributed to interest and investment earning and consolidated tax. The PILT (Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes) was budgeted at $380,000 but $419,468 was received from the Federal Government. Assessor 
Commissions revenues were $191,022 more than the budgeted amount. Assessor Commission collections are 
driven by property taxes. Consolidated Tax Collections (primary state sales tax) were $1,749,211 more than 
budgeted projections, and $1,018,909 higher than the prior year. Interest earnings were $495,816 more than 
budgeted and the net change in fair value of investments was $1,092,867 higher than budgeted.  
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Expenditures 
Actual expenditures were $18,574,966, which was $13,736,769 less than the budget appropriations for the year. 
Several departments spent significantly less than budgeted due to budgeted positions not being filled and 
reductions in the purchase of services and supplies. 

Overall, the total ending fund balance was $43,278,879, which is $25,521,717 more than budgeted. The General 
Fund transferred out $15,250,000 to other various funds to assist with major projects and operating expenses. 

Additional General Fund budget information can be found on pages 57-64. 

Other Major Funds 
Capital outlay was expended in the Road Fund in the amount of $774,918 for the purchase of a car lift, street 
sweeper, belly dump, dump truck and pickup truck. 

Capital outlay was expended in the Regional Transportation Fund in the amount of $8,831,203 for county wide 
road improvement projects.  

Capital outlay was expended in the Building Maintenance and Operations for the Annex roof repaid, AC units 
replaced and key pad on various county buildings in the amount of $161,346.  

Other major fund budget information can be found on pages 66-68. 

Capital Assets 
Eureka County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 
2024 amounts to $77,152,759 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, water and sewer systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, 
and bridges. Eureka County’s investment in capital assets for fiscal year 2024 increased $12,566,525.  

Major additions in the current year included Elevator repairs at the Opera House and Courthouse, Pickups for 
Public Works, Airport Layout Plan, Networking upgrades county-wide, Flood repairs and culverts, street 
sweeper, belly dump, dump truck, roof repairs, AC units replaced, forklift, radio repeater upgrades, Crescent 
Valley tank cleaning and recoating, Crescent Valley storage container, Devil’s Gate meter pit replacements, 
Kobeh Valley transmission line engineering, two printer/copiers for offices and a major county-wide paving and 
water/sewer project. 

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found at Note 3 on page 38-39. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 

• The unemployment rate for Eureka County as of June 30, 2024 was 6.89 percent, which is a higher rate 
from one year ago. The State of Nevada average unemployment rate of 5.2 percent exceeds the national 
average rate of 4.1 percent. 

• The occupancy rate of the government’s central business district has remained constant for the past few 
years. There have been a few new businesses move into the downtown area. 

• Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices. 
• Mining Companies in the area continue to bring in sales and residents to the communities. 
• Lack of housing continues to be an issue for residents moving to Eureka County. 
• Eureka County will continue a major county-wide paving project over the next few years.  
• Eureka County experienced a major flooding event in the Spring of 2023 which impacted some minor 

roads. We budgeted for repairs of those roads and expect to receive a reimbursement from FEMA within 
the next few years. 

 
All of these factors were considered in preparing Eureka County’s budget for the 2025 fiscal year. 
 
Eureka County has appropriated $46,804,001 for Governmental Fund spending in the 2025 fiscal year budget.  
 
Postemployment Benefits 
The number of retirees utilizing this benefit increased in Fiscal Year 2024 at forty-eight. The monthly bill is 
approximately $15,049. The Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) report was produced for Eureka County by 
MacLeod Watts, Inc. in 2024. The OPEB information is located in the footnotes of this report. 
 
Property Tax Sales 
It is the responsibility of the County Clerk/Treasurer to hold regular delinquent real property tax sales. A 
delinquent real property tax sale was held in April 2024 by mail in bidding. 
 
Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Eureka County’s finances for all those with an 
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Eureka County 
Comptroller, P.O. Box 852, Eureka, Nevada 89316, Telephone Number 775-237-6128, E-mail 
ktodd@eurekacountynv.gov. 
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Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type Eureka County

Activities  Activities  Total Television District
Assets

Cash and investments 93,903,133$          4,335,450$           98,238,583$          804,981$               
Accounts receivable, net 68,636                    51,741                   120,377                 -                               
Due from other governments 3,456,932              -                              3,456,932              22,002                    
Due from other governments, Opioid Settlement 507,545                 -                              507,545                 -                               
Property taxes receivable, delinquent 23,471                    -                              23,471                    192                          
Accrued interest receivable 476,444                 21,984                   498,428                 4,089                      
Inventory 23,199                    -                              23,199                    -                               
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 58,272,183            17,041,221           75,313,404            515,873                  
Capital assets, not being depreciated 1,718,485              120,870                 1,839,355              -                               

Total assets 158,450,028          21,571,266           180,021,294          1,347,137              

Deferred outflows of resources
OPEB - related amounts 1,374,700              54,990                   1,429,690              -                               
Pension - related amounts 5,691,466              178,835                 5,870,301              -                               

Total deferred outflows of resources 7,066,166              233,825                 7,299,991              -                               

Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources 165,516,194          21,805,091           187,321,285          1,347,137              

Liabilities
Accounts payable and other 3,810,191              641,513                 4,451,704              7,193                      
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 319,683                 8,234                     327,917                 -                               
Due to other governments 110,595                 910                        111,505                 1,573                      
Unearned revenue 12,027                    -                              12,027                    -                               
Other liabilities 14,380                    -                              14,380                    -                               
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year
Compensated absences 556,431                 34,712                   591,143                 -                               

Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 563,839                 72,095                   635,934                 -                               
OPEB liability 6,155,436              246,231                 6,401,667              -                               
Net pension liability 15,162,301            532,694                 15,694,995            -                               

Total liabilities 26,704,883            1,536,389             28,241,272            8,766                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB - related amounts 2,576,301              103,058                 2,679,359              -                               
Pensions - related amounts 170,010                 5,342                     175,352                 -                               

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,746,311              108,400                 2,854,711              -                               

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources 29,451,194            1,644,789             31,095,983            8,766                      

Net Position
Investment in capital assets 59,990,668            17,162,091           77,152,759            515,873                  
Net position - restricted 22,289,232            -                              22,289,232            822,498                  
Net position - restricted opioid settlements 591,950                 -                              591,950                 -                               
Net position - unrestricted 53,193,150            2,998,211             56,191,361            -                               

Total net position 136,065,000$       20,160,302$         156,225,302$       1,338,371$            

Primary Government
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Eureka County 
Statement of Activities – Government-Wide 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Component Unit
Operating Capital Eureka County 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Television
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total District
Primary government

Governmental activities
General government 8,182,453$     1,166,243$  4,851$          268,505$      (6,742,854)$     -$                     (6,742,854)$     
Public safety 4,678,975       1,581             54,999          -                     (4,622,395)        -                       (4,622,395)        
Judicial 1,753,735       154,348        21,324          -                     (1,578,063)        -                       (1,578,063)        
Public works 5,959,235       62,158          -                     334,632        (5,562,445)        -                       (5,562,445)        
Health and sanitation 2,176,203       173,008        -                     -                     (2,003,195)        -                       (2,003,195)        
Culture and recreation 1,770,228       65,494          108,693        -                     (1,596,041)        -                       (1,596,041)        
Community support 513,376          19,151          -                     -                     (494,225)           -                       (494,225)           

Total governmental activities 25,034,205     1,641,983     189,867        603,137        (22,599,218)     -                       (22,599,218)     

Business-type activities
Water 1,853,496       458,433        -                     904,895        -                         (490,168)         (490,168)           
Sewer 110,003          59,199          -                     -                     -                         (50,804)           (50,804)             

Total business-type activities 1,963,499       517,632        -                     904,895        -                         (540,972)         (540,972)           

Total primary government 26,997,704$   2,159,615$  189,867$      1,508,032$  (22,599,218)     (540,972)         (23,140,190)     

Component Units
Eureka County Television District 244,398$        -$                   -$                   -$                   (244,398)$         

General revenues
Property taxes 14,857,554       -                       14,857,554       134,503            
Room taxes 134,066            -                       134,066            -                         
Motor vehicle fuel tax and county optional fuel tax 883,241            -                       883,241            -                         
Various state collected pass-through revenues

not restricted to specific programs 10,992,757       -                       10,992,757       55,078               
Non-restricted federal aid 419,468            -                       419,468            -                         
Interest and investment earnings/(loss) 4,126,358         147,169          4,273,527         30,056
Miscellaneous revenue 549,058            5,722              554,780            40,091
Transfers (4,500,000)        4,500,000       -                         -                         

Total general revenues 27,462,502       4,652,891       32,115,393       259,728            

Change in Net Position 4,863,284         4,111,919       8,975,203         15,330               

Net Position, Beginning of Year 131,201,716    16,048,383    147,250,099    1,323,041         

Net Position, End of Year 136,065,000$  20,160,302$  156,225,302$  1,338,371$       

Program Revenues Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
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Eureka County 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2024 

Regional Building Operation Non-major Total
General Fund Road Transportation and Maintenance Governmental Governmental
(GAAP Basis) Fund Fund Reserve Fund Funds Funds

Assets
Cash and investments 55,484,339$      804,037$         11,691,152$      4,042,317$        21,881,288$      93,903,133$       
Accounts receivable 68,604                32 - - - 68,636                  
Due from other governments 2,749,267          191,483           168,427              14,147                333,608              3,456,932            
Due from other governments, 

Opioid settlements 507,545              - - - - 507,545               
Property taxes receivable, delinquent 13,717                1,132                2,337 155 6,130 23,471                  
Accrued interest receivable 281,704              4,102                59,380                20,141                111,117              476,444               
Inventory 23,199                - - - - 23,199                  

Total assets 59,128,375$      1,000,786$      11,921,296$      4,076,760$        22,332,143$      98,459,360$       

Liabilities
Accounts payable 562,607$           48,678$           3,015,366$        504$  183,036$           3,810,191$          
Accrued salaries and 

related liabilities 284,729              28,564              - - 6,390 319,683               
Due to other governments 59,141                1,038                - - 50,416                110,595               
Unearned revenue 12,027                - - - - 12,027                  
Other liabilities 14,380                - - - - 14,380                  

Total liabilities 932,884              78,280              3,015,366          504 239,842              4,266,876            

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - ambulance fees 66,918                - - - - 66,918                  
Unavailable revenue - grants 17,286                - - - - 17,286                  
Unavailable revenue - 

opioid settlements 489,404              - - - - 489,404               
Unavailable revenue - delinquent

property taxes 12,058                995 2,057 137 5,323 20,570                  

Total deferred inflow 
of resources 585,666              995 2,057 137 5,323 594,178               

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 23,199                - - - - 23,199                  
Restricted 12,066,035        - - - 10,223,197        22,289,232          
Committed for certain costs 

and projects not completed 2,351,360          - - 4,076,119          5,222,201          11,649,680          
Assigned

Subsequent year 12,934,208        - 811,011 - 580,408 14,325,627          
operations

Due to nature of fund - budget
officer - 921,511 8,092,862          - 6,061,172 15,075,545          

Unassigned 30,235,023        - - - - 30,235,023          

Total fund balances 57,609,825        921,511           8,903,873          4,076,119          22,086,978        93,598,306          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 59,128,375$      1,000,786$      11,921,296$      4,076,760$        22,332,143$      98,459,360$       
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Eureka County 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balance, governmental funds 93,598,306$    

Capital assets, net of the related depreciation are not reported in the 
Governmental Funds financial statements because they are not 
current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement 
of net position.

Capital assets 146,839,110$  
Less accumulated depreciation (86,848,442)     59,990,668      

Deferred inflows of resources represent amounts that are not   
yet available to fund current expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Delinquent property taxes 20,570              
Ambulance fees 66,918              
Grants 17,286              
Opioid settlements 489,404            594,178            

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period,
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net pension liability (15,162,301)     
Compensated absences (1,120,270)       
Other postemployment benefits (6,155,436)       (22,438,007)     

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and 
other postemployment benefits are applicable to future periods 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 5,691,466         
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (170,010)           
Deferred outflows of resources related to other

postemployment benefits 1,374,700         
Deferred inflows of resources related to other

postemployment benefits (2,576,301)       4,319,855         

Net position of governmental activities 136,065,000$  
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Eureka County 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Regional Building Operation Non-major Total
General Fund Road Transportation and Maintenance Governmental Governmental
(GAAP Basis) Fund Fund Reserve Fund Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes 9,484,520$    793,723$     1,740,916$    154,487$           2,813,005$     14,986,651$   
Licenses and permits 9,310              - - - 2,258               11,568             
Intergovernmental

revenues 11,458,086    799,128        84,113            - 663,737 13,005,064     
Charges for services 945,943          - - - 382,320           1,328,263       
Fines and forfeits 140,394          - - - - 140,394           
Miscellaneous 2,867,490       320,993        479,452          166,281             862,725           4,696,941       

Total revenues 24,905,743    1,913,844    2,304,481      320,768             4,724,045       34,168,881     

Expenditures
Current

General government 5,400,126       - - 2,009 688,120           6,090,255       
Public safety 4,184,962       - - - 74,477             4,259,439       
Judicial 1,667,279       - - - 1,026               1,668,305       
Public works 782,126          2,434,161    7,134              - 24,450 3,247,871       
Health, welfare and

sanitation 1,303,148       - - - 747,323 2,050,471       
Culture and recreation 1,459,424       - - - 232,507 1,691,931       
Community support 475,255          - - - 10,016 485,271           

Capital outlay 3,548,381       774,918        8,831,203      161,346             775,484 14,091,332     

Total expenditures 18,820,701    3,209,079    8,838,337      163,355             2,553,403       33,584,875     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 6,085,042       (1,295,235)   (6,533,856)     157,413             2,170,642       584,006           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of

capital assets 164,022          - - - - 164,022           
Transfers in - - 9,000,000      - 1,500,000 10,500,000     
Transfers out (15,000,000)   - - - - (15,000,000)    

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (14,835,978)   - 9,000,000 - 1,500,000 (4,335,978)      

Net Change in Fund Balances (8,750,936)     (1,295,235)   2,466,144      157,413             3,670,642       (3,751,972)      

Fund Balances, Beginning
of Year 66,360,761    2,216,746    6,437,729      3,918,706          18,416,336     97,350,278     

Fund Balances, End of Year 57,609,825$  921,511$     8,903,873$    4,076,119$        22,086,978$   93,598,306$   
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Eureka County 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditure, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental 

Funds to the Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances, governmental funds (3,751,972)$     

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in 
governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are 
shown in the statement of net position and allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement 
of activities.

Capital outlay to purchase capital assets 14,103,061$    
Current depreciation expense (4,442,742)       9,660,319         

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital 
assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, decrease in fair value and donations) 
is to decrease net position. (438,894)           

Certain taxes and ambulance charge revenues that are collected in
time to pay obligations of the current period are reported as revenue
in the fund statements. However, amounts that relate to prior periods 
that first become available in the current period should not be 
reported as revenue in the statement of activities.

Current year change in unavailable property taxes revenue
and net proceeds of mines (46,299)             

Current year change in unavailable grants (11,284)             
Current year change in unavailable ambulance charges 41,227              
Current year change in unavailable opioid settlements 149,860            133,504            

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Current year change in compensated absences (153,632)           

The liability for other postemployment benefits is not recorded in the 
governmental funds, but it is reported in the statement of net 
position. This is the current year change in the liability, reported 
as an expense in the statement of activities.

Other postemployment benefits contributions 314,746            
Other postemployment benefits expense 43,814              358,560            

Governmental funds report County PERS contributions as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits 
earned is reported as pension expense:

County PERS contributions 1,194,621         
County pension expense (2,139,222)       (944,601)           

Change in net position of governmental activities 4,863,284$      
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Eureka County 
Statement of Net Position – Business-Type Activities – Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

Business - Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Eureka Crescent Devil's Gate
Town  Valley General Total

Water/Sewer Water Improvement Enterprise
Fund Fund District Funds

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,523,653$          824,990$             986,807$             4,335,450$          
Accounts receivable, net 26,591                 19,140                 6,010                    51,741                 
Accrued interest receivable 12,808                 4,187                    4,989                    21,984                 

Total current assets 2,563,052            848,317               997,806               4,409,175            

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation 13,305,800          1,972,904            1,762,517            17,041,221          
Capital assets, not being 

depreciated 20,646                 -                            100,224               120,870               

Total noncurrent assets 13,326,446          1,972,904            1,862,741            17,162,091          

Total assets 15,889,498          2,821,221            2,860,547            21,571,266          

Deferred Outflows of Resources
OPEB - related amounts 31,348                 14,469                 9,173                    54,990                 
Pension - related amounts 108,207               36,677                 33,951                 178,835               

Total deferred outflows 
of resources 139,555               51,146                 43,124                 233,825               

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 607,193               15,966                 18,354                 641,513               
Accrued salaries and related

liabilities 4,939                    2,528                    767                       8,234                    
Due to other governments -                            910                       -                            910                       
Compensated absences 21,526                 7,011                    6,175                    34,712                 

Total current liabilities 633,658               26,415                 25,296                 685,369               

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 49,245                 9,789                    13,061                 72,095                 
OPEB liability 140,366               64,789                 41,076                 246,231               
Net pension liability 285,048               144,131               103,515               532,694               

Total noncurrent liabilities 474,659               218,709               157,652               851,020               

Total liabilities 1,108,317            245,124               182,948               1,536,389            

Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB - related amounts 58,749                 27,117                 17,192                 103,058               
Pension - related amounts 3,232                    1,096                    1,014                    5,342                    

Total deferred inflows
of resources 61,981                 28,213                 18,206                 108,400               

Net Position
Investment in capital assets 13,326,446          1,972,904            1,862,741            17,162,091          
Unrestricted 1,532,309            626,126               839,776               2,998,211            

Total net position 14,858,755$        2,599,030$          2,702,517$          20,160,302$        
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Eureka County 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Business-Type Activities – Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Business - Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Eureka Crescent Devil's Gate
Town  Valley General Total

Water/Sewer Water Improvement Enterprise
Fund Fund District Funds

Operating Revenues
Charges for sales and services

Water use charges 218,560$        153,427$        60,098$          432,085$        
Water hook up charges 1,800              7,885              5,200              14,885            
Sewer use charges 59,199            -                       -                       59,199            
Parcel assessments -                       -                       11,463            11,463            

Total operating revenues 279,559          161,312          76,761            517,632          

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 165,818          75,333            51,422            292,573          
Employee benefits 128,243          30,793            33,578            192,614          
Services and supplies 116,685          98,673            70,632            285,990          
Depreciation 845,375          201,309          145,638          1,192,322      

Total operating expenses 1,256,121      406,108          301,270          1,963,499      

Operating Loss (976,562)        (244,796)        (224,509)        (1,445,867)     

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 69,624            20,873            23,148            113,645          
Net realized gain 5,348              1,467              1,755              8,570              
Net increase (decrease) in

fair value of investments 9,679              (3,180)             18,455            24,954            
Federal grants 534,920          -                       -                       534,920          
Refunds 5,722              -                       -                       5,722              

Total nonoperating
revenues 625,293          19,160            43,358            687,811          

Income (Loss) Before Capital 
Contributions (351,269)        (225,636)        (181,151)        (758,056)        

Capital Contributions 26,738            339,769          3,468              369,975          

Transfers 4,000,000      500,000          -                       4,500,000      

Change in Net Position 3,675,469      614,133          (177,683)        4,111,919      

Net Position, Beginning of Year 11,183,286    1,984,897      2,880,200      16,048,383    

Net Position, End of Year 14,858,755$  2,599,030$    2,702,517$    20,160,302$  
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Eureka County 
Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities – Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Eureka Crescent Devil's Gate
Town  Valley General Total

Water/Sewer Water Improvement Enterprise
Fund Fund District Funds

Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users 280,169$       163,410$       78,211$         521,790$       
Payments to suppliers 457,495 (84,669) (54,263) 318,563 
Payments to employees (145,707) (69,772) (50,597) (266,076)
Payments for benefits (101,265) (41,935) (31,027) (174,227)

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities 490,692 (32,966) (57,676) 400,050 

Investing Activities
Interest received 61,320 17,658 21,082 100,060 
Earnings on investments 15,027 (1,713) 20,210 33,524 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 76,347 15,945 41,292 133,584 

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Intergovernmental grant 534,920 - - 534,920 
Transfers in for capital projects 4,000,000 500,000 - 4,500,000
Purchase of capital assets (4,153,044) - (14,402) (4,167,446) 
Other 5,722 - - 5,722 

Net Cash from (used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities 387,598 500,000 (14,402) 873,196 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 954,637 482,979 (30,786) 1,406,830

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,569,016 342,011 1,017,593 2,928,620

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 2,523,653$    824,990$       986,807$       4,335,450$   

Business - Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Eureka County 
Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities – Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Eureka Crescent Devil's Gate
Town  Valley General Total

Water/Sewer Water Improvement Enterprise
Fund Fund District Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash from (used for) operating activities

Operating income (loss) (976,562)$      (244,796)$     (224,509)$      (1,445,867)$  
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash from
(used for) operating activities

Depreciation expense 845,375         201,309         145,638         1,192,322     
Pension expense 40,671           13,785           12,759           67,215           
County pension contributions (22,712)          (7,698)            (7,126)            (37,536)          
Other post-employment benefits

liability 9,019              (17,229)          (3,082)            (11,292)          
Changes in

Receivables 610                 2,098             1,450              4,158             
Accounts payable 574,180         14,004           16,369           604,553         
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 20,111           5,561             825                 26,497           

Total adjustments 1,467,254      211,830         166,833         1,845,917     

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities 490,692$       (32,966)$       (57,676)$        400,050$       

Noncash Investing, Capital, and related
Financing Activities

Contribution of capital asset 26,738$         339,769$       3,468$           369,975$       

Business - Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Eureka County 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds 

June 30, 2024 

Custodial
Funds

Assets
Cash and investments 221,707$          
Accounts receivable 22,061 
Property taxes receivable 29,389 
Accrued interest receivable 720 

Total assets 273,877 

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,113

Net Position
Restricted for

Governments 186,525 
Individuals 86,239 

Total net position 272,764$          
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Eureka County 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Custodial
Funds

Additions
Investment Income

Interest earnings 3,808$              

Other
Taxes and fees collected for other

governments and organizations 7,418,896         
Other 322,986            

Total other 7,741,882         

Total additions 7,745,690         

Deductions
Payments of taxes and fees to other

governments or organizations 7,903,577         

Change in Net Position (157,887)           

Net Position, Beginning of Year 430,651            

Net Position, End of Year 272,764$          
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Eureka County 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Eureka County, State of Nevada, (the “County”) is a local government created under the provisions of Nevada 
Revised Statutes (NRS) 243.110. Eureka County is governed by an elected Board of three Commissioners who 
possess final decision-making authority and is held primarily accountable for those decisions. The County 
Commission is responsible for approving the budget, establishing spending limitations, funding any deficits, and 
borrowing funds and/or issuing bonds to finance county system operations and construction. 
 
The accounting policies of the County conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for establishing these accounting and financial principles.  
 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are as follows:  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The financial statements included herein present the County and its component units, entities for which the 
County is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, 
are, in substance, part of the County's operations. Thus, data from these units (Eureka Town, Crescent Valley 
Town, Diamond Valley Weed and Rodent Control Districts, and Agricultural District # 15) are combined with data 
of the County. The County has one discretely presented component unit, the Eureka County Television District. 
The component units presented have a June 30 year-end. 
 
The County receives and disburses money in various accounts held for other entities, such as property taxes 
collected pending settlement to another entity. These accounts are maintained only in a fiduciary capacity in 
fiduciary funds and are not included in this report beyond that capacity. 
 
The unincorporated towns of Eureka and Crescent Valley serve the citizens of the County. Crescent Valley Town 
has an advisory board of three elected members. The final operational and financial decisions are made by the 
County Commissioners. The property tax rates are authorized and approved by the County Commission. Any 
legal liabilities for the general obligations of these unincorporated towns remain with the County. The financial 
activities of the unincorporated towns are reported in special revenue and proprietary funds. 
 
Diamond Valley Weed and Rodent Control Districts are special districts created to provide services to control 
certain undesirable items within the districts. The Districts share the same governing boards as the general 
County. The Agricultural District #15 is a special district that provides for the Eureka County Fair. The districts are 
reported as special revenue funds. The Eureka County Television District is a special district providing television 
broadcast services to Eureka County and is included as a discretely presented component unit. The Eureka 
County Television District is legally separate from the County; however, the County can impose its will upon the 
District through the budget and tax rate approval process. 
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June 30, 2024 
 
 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements and the fund financial statements. The 
government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. The 
government-wide statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government 
and its component units.  
 
For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the County at year-end in separate columns, for 
both governmental and business-type activities. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which 
the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to patrons who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Taxes and revenues properly not included among program revenues are reported instead 
as general revenues. Those programs or functions with a net cost not supported by program revenues are 
generally dependent on general-purposes revenues, such as taxes, to remain operational.  
 
The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds. Separate statements for each fund 
category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements 
is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining 
governmental, enterprise, and fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.  
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows.  
 
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Grant 
revenues are reflected as unearned revenue if funds have been received prior to meeting such requirements. 
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June 30, 2024 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available. Gross receipts and sales taxes are considered “measurable” when in the hands of intermediary 
collecting agents or governments. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period. 
Anticipated refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable, 
and the payment seems certain. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated absences, employment benefits, and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the County. 

The major revenue sources of the County include tax revenues, ad valorem (property) taxes, governmental 
services tax, interest income and various state and federal grants. Ad valorem taxes are reflected as deferred 
inflows of resources in the individual funds if they are not available to finance the activities of the current 
period.  

The County’s financial records are organized on the basis of funds, which are independent fiscal and accounting 
entities with a separate set of self-balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their 
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and 
contractual provisions.  

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

• General Fund – The general fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all
financial resources and costs of operations traditionally associated with governments, which are not
required to be accounted for in another fund.

• Road Fund – To account for money received primarily from the County fuel tax. Expenditures are limited
to construction, repair and maintenance of County roads and bridges, and the purchase of machinery and
implements necessary to do such work.

• Regional Transportation Fund – To account for proceeds of the County Option Fuel Tax pursuant to NRS
373.110. Expenditures are limited to improvements and maintenance of streets and highways.

• The Building Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund – To account for money received and held for
future property and equipment operation and maintenance requirements.
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June 30, 2024 
 
 
The County also reports the following non-major governmental funds: 
 

• Special Revenue Funds – These funds account for specific financial resources that are legally restricted or 
committed by Board action to expenditures for specific purposes. 

• Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital assets. Resources are provided by ad valorem taxes and interest income. 

 
The County reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

• Eureka Town Water/Sewer Fund – To account for all revenues and expenses used to provide water and 
sewer services to the residents of the town of Eureka.  

• Crescent Valley Water Fund – To account for all revenues and expenses used to provide water services to 
the residents of the town of Crescent Valley. 

• Devil’s Gate General Improvement District (G.I.D.) Enterprise Fund – To account for all revenues and 
expenses used to provide water services to the residents of the Devil’s Gate General Improvement District.  

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the 
proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are 
charges for water and or sewer use and assessments to the various residents and property owners. Operating 
expenses for the enterprise funds include the costs of providing water and sewer services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expense not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses.  
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. The effects of interfund services provided and used have not been eliminated in those statements. 
 
Property Taxes 
 
All real property in Eureka County is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each parcel 
being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the appraised value 
during the years between physical appraisals. The assessed valuation of the property and its improvements is 
assessed at 35% of "taxable value" as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is determined by multiplying 
the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in which the property is located. In 2005, the Nevada 
State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 489 which provides for a partial abatement of the property tax levied on 
qualified property. For qualified property, the abatement may limit the increase of property taxes based on the 
previous year’s assessed value. 
 
The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at $5.00 per hundred dollars of assessed 
valuation; however, as a result of the 1979 legislative session, the tax rate was further limited to $3.64 per 
hundred dollars of assessed valuation unless the electorate approves an additional rate. Legislation passed 
during the 1981 legislative session provided for a reduction in the property tax rate based upon a legislatively 
derived formula.  
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To help offset this loss in property tax revenue, the state sales tax was increased from 3.5% to 5.75% by the 
State Legislature. The 1991 legislature further increased the minimum sales tax to 6.5%. This increase in sales 
tax, less .5% of collections to cover administrative costs, is being returned to the local governments as a part of 
the consolidated tax. The amount of sales tax to be distributed to each governmental entity in Nevada is 
determined by a formula developed and approved by the State Legislature. 

Taxes on real property are levied and the lien on the property attached on July 1 (the levy date) of the year for 
which the taxes are levied. Taxes are due on the third Monday in August; however, they may be paid in four 
installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October, January and March. Any 
tax paid more than ten days late is assessed a penalty. In the event of nonpayment, the County Treasurer 
records a Trustee’s Certificate holding the property for a period of two years after the first Monday in June of 
the year the certificate is dated, unless sooner redeemed upon payment of taxes, penalties and costs together 
with interest at the rate of 10% per year from the date the taxes were due until paid. If delinquent taxes are not 
paid within the two-year redemption period, the County Treasurer, obtains a tax deed to the property free of all 
encumbrances. Upon receipt of a deed, the County Treasurer may sell the property to satisfy the tax lien once all 
requirements are met.  

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and 
the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax 
rates described above. The major classifications of personal property are commercial, mobile homes, marine, 
aircraft and agricultural. In Eureka County, taxes on motor vehicles are also collected by the County Assessor and 
remitted to the State. The taxes are then returned to the county of origin to be apportioned based on a 
statutory formula as part of Consolidated Tax Revenue. 

Eureka County collects property taxes for all entities with a tax rate within the County and remits the tax 
collected the month following collection to the appropriate entity. 

Property tax revenue and the related receivable have been recognized for property tax assessments in the fiscal 
year for which they were levied, provided that such taxes were collected within 60 days after the County’s year-
end. Taxes receivable not collected within such time period are recorded as deferred revenue at the County’s 
year-end in the individual fund financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County of Eureka considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Based on the nature of the 
investment policies, all amounts are available on demand and are, therefore, classified as cash equivalents on 
the statements of cash flows. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with an original maturity date 
within three months of the date of acquisition. Cash balances from most funds are combined, held and invested 
by the County Treasurer. Short-term investments are stated at cost, which is or approximates fair market value. 
Long-term investments are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date.  
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State statutes authorize deposits in any bank, credit union or savings and loan that are federally insured. The 
County may invest in the following securities: 
 

• United States bonds and debentures, bills and notes of the United States Treasury, or obligations of the 
United States or a corporation sponsored by the government maturing within ten (10) years from the date 
of purchase. 

• Certain farm loan bonds. 
• Negotiable certificates of deposit from commercial banks, insured credit unions or insured savings and 

loan associations. 
• State of Nevada Local Government Pooled Investment Fund (unrated). 
• Certain securities issued by local governments of the State of Nevada. 
• Certain "AAA" rated money market mutual funds that invest in federal securities. 
• Other securities expressly provided by other statutes, including repurchase agreements. 
• Certain banker’s acceptances not to exceed 180 days maturities or 20% of the money available for 

investment. 
• Obligations of state and local governments rated A or higher and exempt from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes. 
• Certain corporate or depository institution commercial paper purchased from a registered broker-dealer 

rated A-1, P-1, or better with maturity of no more than 270 days. 
 
Accounts Receivable  
 
Accounts receivable does not include an allowance for doubtful accounts as management deems their 
collectability as deems the accounts are collectable based on historical experience. 
 
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 
 
The General Fund records inventory for fuel at the airport which is valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.  
 
Expenditures for consumable supplies and minor equipment purchases are charged against appropriations of all 
governmental funds at the time of purchase. Any inventories of such supplies at June 30 are not material to the 
individual funds and are not recognized in these financial statements. 
 
Prepaid expenses are recognized as an expenditure in the period that payment is made under the purchase 
method.  
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued in accordance with policy adopted as detailed below: 
 

1. Assets acquired prior to July 1, 1968, were valued at cost if determinable or at estimated present value 
by the various County officials and department supervisors.  

2. County buildings were established at insurable value at June 30, 1969, except for the Diagnostic and 
Treatment Center that was established at cost. 

3. All assets acquired since July 1, 1968, are recorded at cost. 
4. All assets transferred from the Eureka Town Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds and the Crescent Valley 

Town Water Fund are recorded at the net book value as of July 1, 1985.  
5. Prior to July 1, 2000, governmental funds infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets (back 

to July 1, 1980) have been valued at estimated historical cost. 
6. The value of land owned by the County is carried at an estimated present value as of July 1, 1968. 

Additions to land since that date are at cost. Tax deeded property is recorded based on the total taxes 
owed when the property is deeded to the County. 

7. Expenditures over $500 are capitalized as capital assets. 
8. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date donated. 

 
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, 
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the 
assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives 
by type of asset is as follows: 
 

Buildings 20-40 years
Improvements Other than Buildings 10-40 years
Equipment and Vehicles 3-25 years
Utility System - Well and System 10-40 years
Infrastructure 20-40 years

 
Fund Financial Statements – In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures by the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital 
assets used in proprietary fund operations are not accounted for as capital outlay expenditures in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds. 
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Compensated Absences 
 
Certain County employees earn vacation leave and sick leave at rates dependent on length of employment and 
can be accumulated to a specified maximum number of days. The County pays limited accumulated sick leave to 
certain employees upon retirement. Accumulated costs for unused vacation pay and sick leave are recognized 
currently for those retiring prior to June 30, 2024. Remaining costs of unused vacation and sick leave are not 
recorded in the fund financial statements but are included in the government-wide financial statements. These 
benefits have typically been paid from the General Fund. 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide Statement of Net Position utilizes a net position 
presentation. Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. Net 
investment in capital assets includes capital assets net of depreciation and the debt outstanding that relates to 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets. The County does not have any debt related to 
capital assets.  
 
Restricted net position consists of unspent grants, donations, funds restricted by statute, and debt proceeds 
with third party restrictions for use on specific projects or programs. Unrestricted net position represents all 
other available financial resources of the County. Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular 
purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate 
the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government‐wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources 
are considered to be applied. It is the County’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted 
before unrestricted net position is applied. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – In the governmental fund financial statements, the following classifications of fund 
balance are used: 
 

• Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in form or are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions, 
enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the law or regulations of other governments. 

• Committed – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund balance may only be 
established, rescinded, or changed pursuant to resolutions passed by the County Commissioners, the 
County’s highest level of decision-making authority. 

• Assigned – Amounts that the County intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the definitions 
of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the County’s adopted policy, amounts may be assigned by 
the Budget Officer under the authorization of the Board. 

• Unassigned – Amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to a specific purpose within 
the General Fund.  

 



33 

Eureka County 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available, 
the County considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the County considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds, as needed, unless the County 
Commissioners have provided otherwise in their commitment or assignment actions. 

The County does not have a minimum fund balance policy. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS) Base Plan (Base Plan) and 
additions to/deduction from Base Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position/Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents the 
consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense) until then. The County reported deferred outflows of resources related to other 
postemployment benefits and pension items in the Statement of Net Position.  

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position/Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate statement element represents an acquisition of 
net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. The County reported deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits and 
pension items in the Statement of Net Position. The County reflects deferred inflows of resources which are 
unavailable revenue reported in the government fund balance sheet for delinquent property taxes, net proceeds 
and mines taxes, motor vehicle fuel taxes, ambulance charges, and opioid settlements under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Net Proceeds of Minerals 

Net proceeds of mines are paid on an annual, calendar year basis. For the year ended June 30, 2024, net 
proceeds of mines received on actual business from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 are reflected in 
the financial statements. Net proceeds of mines from January through June 2024 are neither measurable nor 
available to meet obligations existing at June 30, 2024. Overpayments must be credited toward the payment 
due the next calendar year, the amount of the remaining overpayment, after being credited to any other tax or 
fee due from the taxpayer, may be refunded. The overall financial impact to the County of future additional 
amounts due or future credits is not determinable at June 30, 2024 and are not reflected in these financial 
statements.  
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Risk Management 
 
The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries of employees; and natural disasters, as are all entities. The County has joined 
together with similar public agencies (cities, counties, and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to 
create a pool under the Nevada Inter-local Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) is 
a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its 
members. 
 
The County pays an annual premium and specific deductibles, as necessary to POOL for its general insurance 
coverage. POOL is considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide liability coverage for its members up to 
$10,000,000 per event and a $13,000,000 general aggregate per member. Property, crime, and equipment 
breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various sub-limits established 
for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities. 
 
The County has also joined together with similar public agencies, under the Nevada Inter-local Cooperation Act, 
to create an intergovernmental self-insured association for workers compensation insurance, the Public Agency 
Compensation Trust (PACT). 
 
The County pays premiums based on payroll costs to PACT. PACT is considered a self-sustaining pool that will 
provide coverage based on established statutory limits. 
 
The County continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including specific risks of loss not 
covered by POOL (airport liability, bonding, and boiler coverage) and employee health and accident insurance. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 2 -  Cash and Temporary Investments 

The County Treasurer maintains cash available for use by all funds. In addition, minor amounts of cash are 
separately held by other County Officials. There is no restricted cash at year-end. The various bank balances are 
either covered by FDIC insurance or collateralized by securities held in the County’s name in the Nevada State 
Treasurer collateral pool. 

NRS 355.170 sets forth acceptable investments for Nevada local governments. The County has also adopted a 
formal investment policy set forth below: 

Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond, 
resulting from a rise in interest rates. The County’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates beyond those specified 
in the statute.  

Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation and is a function of the credit quality ratings of its investments. The County’s investment policy does 
not specify minimum acceptable credit ratings further than those listed in state statutes. The County is a 
voluntary participant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), an unrated external 
investment pool. Nevada local governments are permitted to invest in this pool pursuant to NRS 355.167. The 
pool has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance for the State of Nevada. The County's investment in 
LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocations of interest income and realized and unrealized 
gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares. The County’s investment in the LGIP is 
reported at Fair Value. More information regarding this pool, including quarterly reports, may be obtained from 
the Nevada State Treasurer, 101 N. Carson #4, Carson City, Nevada 89701. As of June 30, 2024, all securities, 
except those specifically listed, were rated AA+ or better by Standard & Poor’s or AAA or better by Moody’s.  

Concentration of Credit Risk – The County places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any one 
issuer. The County’s investments are held in U. S. Government Treasury Notes (19%), negotiable certificates of 
deposits (7%), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporate Notes (4%), Federal Farm Credit Bank Debentures (16%), 
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation Notes (11%), Federal National Mortgage Association Notes (7%), 
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes (22%), corporate notes (10%), other securities (2%) and the Local Government 
Investment Pool (2%). 

Custodial Credit Risk – For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
County’s deposits may not be returned. The County’s bank deposits are covered by FDIC insurance or are 
collateralized by the Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral Pool. The County participates in the State of 
Nevada Collateral Pool which requires depositories to maintain as collateral acceptable securities having a fair 
market value of at least 102 percent of the amount of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the 
depository. Under NRS 356.360, the State Treasurer manages and monitors all collateral for all public monies 
deposited by members of the pool. As of June 30, 2024, all deposits were collateralized under the Nevada 
Pooled Collateral Program or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). For an investment, 
custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of outside parties. The 
County’s investment policy does not further limit this exposure.  
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Cash and investments held at June 30, 2024 by the County are allocated to the various funds as follows: 
 
Major governmental funds  $    72,021,845 
Nonmajor governmental funds        21,881,288 
Discretely presented component unit              804,981 
Proprietary funds          4,335,450 

Total primary government        99,043,564 

Fiduciary funds              221,707 

Total cash and investments  $    99,265,271 

 
Cash, investments, and deposits of the County at June 30, 2024 were held as follows: 
 
Demand accounts 7,729,189$      
Money market mutual funds 5,093,323         
Other marketable securities 85,020,741      
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)* 1,422,018         

Total cash and investments 99,265,271$    

* Represents average weighted maturity of 82 days.
 

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The County does not have any 
investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs.  
 
Money market mutual funds are not held primarily for the purpose of income or profit and have remaining 
maturities at time of purchase of one year or less. Therefore, money market mutual funds are recorded at 
amortized cost. 
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The County has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2024: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Fair Value

U.S Treasury Notes 16,583,109$    -$                       16,583,109$    
Federal Home Loan Mtg. Corp. Notes -                         3,884,420         3,884,420         
Federal Farm Credit Bank Debentures -                         13,476,200      13,476,200      
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation Notes -                         9,731,395         9,731,395         
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes -                         18,817,143      18,817,143      
Federal National Mortgage Association Notes -                         6,222,340         6,222,340         
Corporate Notes -                         8,617,145         8,617,145         
Supranational -                         1,885,040         1,885,040         
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -                         5,803,949         5,803,949         

16,583,109$    68,437,632$    85,020,741$    
 

The County has the following maturity schedule as of June 30, 2024: 
 

<1 1-5 5-10 Total

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 977,499$          4,826,450$      -$                       5,803,949$      
U.S. Treasury Notes & Bonds 9,004,644         7,578,465         -                         16,583,109      
U.S. Government Securities 7,012,686         42,779,127      2,339,685         52,131,498      
Corporate Notes 1,977,560         6,639,585         -                         8,617,145         
Supranational -                         1,885,040         -                         1,885,040         

18,972,389$    63,708,667$    2,339,685$      85,020,741      

Local Government Investment
Pool 1,422,018         

86,442,759$    

Investment Maturities (in Years)
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Note 3 -  Capital Assets 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2024

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 1,794,375$      -$                      75,890$         -$                    1,718,485$     

Capital assets, being depreciated
Improvements other than 

buildings 8,345,889        335,022           -                      (339,769)        8,341,142       
Buildings and improvements 35,050,787      236,279           -                      -                      35,287,066     
Equipment and vehicles 26,703,375      1,654,130        57,537            -                      28,299,968     
Infrastructure 61,346,724      11,877,630      -                      (31,905)          73,192,449     

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 131,446,775   14,103,061      57,537            (371,674)        145,120,625   

Accumulated depreciation
Improvements other than 

buildings 2,786,444        204,906           -                      (1,699)            2,989,651       
Buildings and improvements 22,335,997      895,535           -                      -                      23,231,532     
Equipment and vehicles 19,779,182      1,518,127        64,508            -                      21,232,801     
Infrastructure 37,570,284      1,824,174        -                      -                      39,394,458     

Less accumulated depreciation 82,471,907      4,442,742        64,508            (1,699)            86,848,442     

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 48,974,868      9,660,319        (6,971)            (369,975)        58,272,183     

Total governmental activities capital
assets, net 50,769,243$   9,660,319$      68,919$         (369,975)$      59,990,668$   

Discretely Presented Component Units
Eureka County Television District
Capital assets, being depreciated

Improvements other than 
buildings 54,599$           -$                      -$                    -$                    54,599$           

Buildings and improvements 324,539           -                        -                      -                      324,539           
Equipment and vehicles 2,310,201        26,110             -                      -                      2,336,311       

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 2,689,339        26,110             -                      -                      2,715,449       

Accumulated depreciation
Improvements other than 

buildings 37,398             4,652                -                      -                      42,050             
Buildings and improvements 139,378           10,515             -                      -                      149,893           
Equipment and vehicles 1,953,806        53,827             -                      -                      2,007,633       

Less accumulated depreciation 2,130,582        68,994             -                      -                      2,199,576       

Total Eureka County Television
District Capital Assets, Net 558,757$         (42,884)$          -$                    -$                    515,873$         
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Balance Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2024

Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land and water rights 120,870$         -$  -$  -$  120,870$         

Capital assets, being depreciated
Improvements other than

buildings 885,225 - - 339,769 1,224,994 
Buildings and improvements 54,512 - - - 54,512 
Equipment and vehicles 374,106 14,401 - - 388,507 
Infrastructure 29,532,757 4,153,045 - 31,906 33,717,708 

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 30,846,600 4,167,446 - 371,675 35,385,721 

Accumulated depreciation
Improvements other than

buildings 151,796 109,876 - 1,699 263,371 
Buildings and improvements 43,688 1,249 - - 44,937 
Equipment and vehicles 299,599 19,375 - - 318,974 
Infrastructure 16,655,396 1,061,822 - - 17,717,218 

Less accumulated depreciation 17,150,479 1,192,322 - 1,699 18,344,500 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 13,696,121 2,975,124 - 369,976 17,041,221 

Total business-type activities capital
assets, net 13,816,991$   2,975,124$      -$  369,976$       17,162,091$   

Grand total net - all capital assets 65,144,991$   12,592,559$   68,919$         1$                   77,668,632$   

The Eureka County Capital projects fund donated the cost of the Devils Gate General Improvement District main 
water line extension and for the Crescent Valley Water Fund cardlock and tank cleaning projects, as well as 
other capital projects to the Business-type activities totaling $369,976.  
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities

General government 1,948,152$      
Public safety 221,917            
Judicial 12,764              
Public works including depreciation of general infrastructure assets 2,131,054         
Health and sanitation 91,387              
Culture and recreation 31,988              
Community support 5,480                

4,442,742$      

Discretely Presented Component Units
Eureka County Television District 68,994$            

Business-type Activities
Water 1,128,572$      
Sewer 63,750              

1,192,322$      
 

 
Note 4 -  Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Costs 
 
The Environmental Protection Agency has established closure and capping requirements for all municipal solid 
waste landfills that received waste after October 9, 1991. The EPA also established 30-year post closure care 
requirements for landfills that accept solid waste after October 9, 1993. 
 
The County operates one landfill near the Town of Eureka and a transfer station in Crescent Valley. According to 
the Eureka County Landfill Capacity Analysis in 2022, 93% of the landfill’s capacity remains, and its estimated 
remaining life is at least 128 years. The County purchased insurance to cover the costs of closure and post 
closure of the landfill. The County is obligated to make annual payments of $33,606 to Nevada Public Agency 
Insurance pool for a period of fifteen years. Since all costs for closure and post closure are covered by the 
insurance policy as allowed by NAC 444.6855, the County recognizes costs as the insurance premiums are paid 
rather than recording a liability for closure and post closure costs based on the estimated percentage of capacity 
used to date. The estimated costs for closure and post-closure, provided by an engineering firm, are $3,202,088 
and $359,494, respectively. This estimate is subject to change due to inflation, deflation, technology, or changes 
in applicable laws or regulations. 
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Note 5 -  Available Borrowing Capacity 

The lawful County government general-obligation debt limit is established under NRS 244A.059 not to exceed 
ten percent of the total last assessed valuation of the taxable property of the County. The legal debt limit for 
unincorporated town general-obligation is established under NRS 269.425 not to exceed twenty-five percent of 
the last assessed valuation of the taxable property of the town. 

The general-obligation debt limit and available borrowing capacity, at June 30, 2024, of the respective general 
County government, and unincorporated towns within Eureka County is as follows: 

Eureka General Town of Town of
County Eureka Crescent Valley

General Obligation Debt Limit 168,133,473$   5,380,742$      2,024,871$      
General Obligation Debt Outstanding - - - 

Available Borrowing Capacity 168,133,473$   5,380,742$      2,024,871$      

Note 6 -  Long-Term Liabilities 

There is no bonded long-term debt as of June 30, 2024. Other long-term liabilities, typically paid through the 
General Fund and business-type activities, consisted of the following: 

Outstanding Outstanding Due Within
July 1, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024 1 year

Governmental Activities
Vested Vacation/

Sick leave 966,638$       501,744$       348,112$       1,120,270$    556,431$       

Business-type Activities
Vested Vacation/

Sick leave 81,699$         59,850$         34,742$         106,807$       34,712$         

Note 7 -  Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

Eureka County contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). PERS 
administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which 
includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, 
effective July 1, 1948. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees who 
have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially 
impaired by age or disability. 
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Benefits Provided  
 
Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years of 
accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive 
months with special provisions for members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit 
payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits, 
disability benefits, and survivor benefits.  
 
Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed at 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited 
year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of 
average compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.50% service time 
factor. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25% multiplier for all years of 
service. PERS offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow 
the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her 
lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. 
 
Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579. 
 
Vesting 
 
Regular members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of 
service, at age 60 with ten years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering 
PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with 
ten years of service, or any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, 
are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with ten years of service, or at age 55 
with 30 years of service, or any age with 33 1/3 years of service. 
 
Police/Fire members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years 
of service, at age 55 with ten years of service, at age 50 with 20 years of service, or at any age with 25 years of 
service. Police/Fire members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at 65 with five 
years of service, or age 60 with ten years of service, and at age 50 with 20 years of service. Police/Fire members 
entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 
with ten years of service, and at age 50 with 20 years of service. Only service performed in a position as a police 
officer or firefighter may be counted towards eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire accredited service. 
 
The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a 
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of 
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon 
completion of five years of service. 
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Contributions 

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution 
rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior 
to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. One plan provides for matching 
employee and employer contributions, while the other plan provides for employer-pay contributions only. 
Under the matching Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of service for 
which contribution is required, withdraw employee contributions which have been credited to their account. All 
membership rights and active service credit in the System are canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from 
the member’s account. IF EPC was selected, the member cannot covert to the Employee/Employer contribution 
plan. 

PERS’ basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary 
throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. 

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund PERS 
on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established 
by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450. 

The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. It is intended to meet the funding 
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the statutory Employer/Employee matching rate for Regular members 
was 15.50%, and 22.75% for Police/Fire. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 the Employer-Pay Contribution 
(EPC) rate was 29.75% for Regular members, 44.00% for Police/Fire, and 31% for volunteer fire members. For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the statutory Employer/Employee matching rate for Regular members was 
17.50% and 25.75% for Police/Fire. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) 
rate was 33.5% for Regular members, 50.00% for Police/Fire, and 35% for volunteer fire members.  

Eureka County’s contributions were $1,232,156 for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

PERS Investment Policy 

PERS’ policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS 
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of the 
System.  
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The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023: 
 

Target Allocation

U.S. stocks 42%
International Equity 18%
U.S. bonds 28%
Private Markets 12% 6.65%

Long-Term Geometric
Expected Rate of Real Return

5.50%
5.50%
0.75%

Asset Class

 
As of June 30, 2023, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 2.50%. 
 
Net Pension Liability 
 
At June 30, 2024, the County reported a liability of $15,694,995 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The County’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the County’s share of contributions in the PERS pension plan 
relative to the total contributions of all participating PERS employers. At June 30, 2023, the County’s proportion 
was 0.08599 percent, which is a decrease of 0.0031 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022 of 
0.08289 percent.  
 
Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity  
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the County as of June 30, 2024, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.25%, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current discount 
rate: 
 

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 24,423,717$    15,694,995$    8,491,237$      
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report, available on the PERS website.  
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The County’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension 
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation Rate 2.50%
Payroll Growth 3.50%
Investment Rate of Return/

Discount Rate 7.25%
Productivity Pay Increase 0.50%
Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.20% to 9.10%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.60% to 14.50%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Consumer Price Index 2.50%
Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2023 funding actuarial valuation

Mortality rates for healthy regular members and contingent beneficiaries were based on Pub-2010 General 
Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 30% for males and 
15% for females. For ages before age 40, mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount- 
Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables. For ages 40 through 50, the rates were smoothed between the above 
tables. Mortality rates for heathy police/fire members were based on Pub-2010 Safety Healthy Retiree Amount- 
Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 30% for males and 5% for females. For ages 
before age 35, mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 Safety Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median 
Mortality Table. For ages 35 through 45, the rates were smoothed between the above tables. 

Mortality rates for disabled regular members were based on Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree Amount-
Weighted Mortality Table with rates increased by 20% for males and 15% for females. Mortality rates for 
disabled police/fire members were based on Pub-2010 Safety Disabled Retiree Amount-Weighted Mortality 
Table with rates increased by 30% for males and 10% for females. Mortality rates for current beneficiaries were 
based on Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased 
by 15% for males and 30% for females. For ages before age 35, mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General 
Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table. For ages 35 through 45, the rates were smoothed 
between the above tables. 

Mortality rates for pre-retirement regular members were based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount- 
Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table. Morality rates for pre-retirement police/fire members were based on 
Pub-2010 Safety Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table. 

The mortality tables were projected generationally with the two-dimensional mortality improvement scale MP- 
2020. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of the experience study for 
the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020. 
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25% as of June 30, 2023. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan contributions will be made in the amounts 
consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing 
mechanism between employers and members. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund 
benefits for all plan members and their beneficiaries are included, except the projected contributions that are 
intended to fund the service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not included. 
 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2023. 
 
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the County recognized pension expense of $2,205,438. At June 30, 2024, the 
County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources:  
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,045,747$      -$                       
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings -                         146,906            
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 1,470,920         -                         
Changes in the County’s proportion and differences between the

County’s contributions and the County's proportionate contributions 1,121,478         28,446              
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,232,156         -                         

5,870,301$      175,352$          
 

The $1,232,156 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 
in the year ending June 30, 2025. 
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The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through 
PERS (active and inactive employees) determined is 5.63 years. 

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions, excluding contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

2025 898,292$          
2026 828,196 
2027 2,298,885 
2028 317,479 
2029 119,941 
Thereafter - 

4,462,793$      

Year Ending June 30,

Additional Information - Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the 
Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 
available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links – Publications. 

The County updated their allocation assumptions between the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities in the current year to better reflect the change in the net pension liability.  

Note 8 -  Postemployment Healthcare Plans 

The County provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible retired employees through either 
participation in the County’s health insurance program or the Nevada Public Employees’ benefits Plan (PEBP) 
under NRS 287.023. 

Plan Descriptions 

The County’s defined benefit OPEB plan, Eureka County Employee Health Benefits Plan (ECHBP), provides OPEB 
for all eligible employees on retirement from the County. Additionally, the County contributes to the defined 
OPEB plan, Public Employees’ Benefits Plan (PEBP). Each plan provides medical, dental, vision, and life insurance 
benefits to eligible retired County employees and beneficiaries.  

ECHBP is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the County. In accordance with Nevada 
Revised Statue 287.010, the ECHBP was adopted to provide postemployment benefits to full-time employees on 
retirement. Eligibility requirements, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are 
governed by the County and can only be amended by the County. No assets are accumulated in a trust that 
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75; no separate financial reports are issued. 
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PEBP is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by a nine-member governing board. Nevada 
Revised Statute 287.023 allows certain retired employees of governmental entities with the State of Nevada to 
join the State’s Public Employee Benefits Program. Nevada Revised Statute 287.023 sunsetted the option to join 
PEBP for County employees who retired from the County after September 1, 2008. Eligibility and subsidy 
requirements are governed by statutes of the State of Nevada and can only be amended through legislation. No 
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75; no separate financial 
reports are issued. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
ECHBP provided healthcare and life insurance benefits for retirees and their dependents. Employees retiring 
from the County under PERS are allowed to continue participation in the County’s group health insurance 
program (medical, dental, vision and life insurance). Employees retiring from the County under PERS who were 
hired prior to July 1, 2009 with a minimum of five years of service receive subsidized premiums from the County 
based on the years of service, as noted below. Retirees are responsible for payment of unsubsidized premiums. 
Retirees who retired prior to July 1, 2004 receive a minimum subsidy of $150, but those with at least seven years 
of service follow the chart below. During the year ended June 30, 2008, the plan was modified for those 
employees hired after July 1, 2009. Consequently, no employees hired after July 1, 2009 will be eligible to 
receive subsidized premium payments.  
 

Length Percentage of Maximum Length Percentage of Maximum
of Service Full Subsidy Monthly Benefit of Service Full Subsidy Monthly Benefit

At least 5 25.0% 117.40$            13 85.0% 399.14$            
6 32.5% 152.61              14 92.5% 434.36              
7 40.0% 187.83              15 100.0% 469.58              
8 47.5% 223.05              16 107.5% 504.80              
9 55.0% 258.27              17 115.0% 540.02              

10 62.5% 293.49              18 122.5% 575.24              
11 70.0% 328.71              19 130.0% 610.45              
12 77.5% 363.92              20 or more 137.5% 645.67              

 
PEBP provides medical, prescription, vision, life and accident insurance, and dental for retirees. Retirees can 
choose between a self-funded preferred provider organization (PPO) and a health maintenance organization 
(HMO) plan. Retirees are responsible for payment of unsubsidized premiums. The County is required to provide 
a subsidy for their retirees who have elected to join PEBP. Contribution requirements for plan members and the 
participating employers are assessed by the PEBP Board annually. The contributions required for PEBP subsidies 
depends on the date of retirement and years of PERS service former employees earned in total and while 
working for the County. The subsidy ranges from a minimum of $3 to a maximum of $670 per month. Subsidies 
for retiree premiums participating in the PEBP are paid directly to the State when due. The County’s obligation 
for subsidies is limited to payment of the statutorily required contribution. The statutes were revised with an 
effective date of November 30, 2008, to create new participation limitations so that only active members of 
PEBP can elect coverage after retirement. Based on the statute revision, former County employees and retirees 
must have retired and joined PEBP by September 1, 2008 to elect PEBP membership. Consequently, no 
employees retiring from the County on or after September 1, 2008 will be eligible to participate in the PEBP plan 
as a retiree at the County’s expense.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

ECHBP PEBP Total
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 31 13 44
Active employees 87 - 87

118 13 131

Total OPEB Liability 

The County’s total OPEB liability of $6,401,667 was measured as of June 30, 2023 and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022. 

ECHBP PEBP Total

Total OPEB Liability 6,221,583$      180,084$          6,401,667$      

Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs for ECHBP and PEBP, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal
General inflation 2.50% 2.50%
Assumed wage inflation 3.00% N/A
Discount rate * 4.13% 4.13%
Health care trend rates * 5.60% for 2024 Pre-Medicare: 5.80%

decreasing to in 2024 decreasing to
3.9% by 2076 3.9% by 2076

Post-Medicare: 4.5%

Retirees' share of benefit-
related costs 0% to 100% of premium amounts 0% to 100% of premium amounts

based on years of service based on years of service

*Percentages as of the measurement date

ECHBP PEBP

The discount rate for ECHBP and PEBP was based on the Standard & Poor’s Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade 
Index. 
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For the ECHBP and PEBP Plans, mortality rates for non-disabled employees and future survivors were based on 
Pub-2010 General Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 
30% for males and 15% for females. Mortality rates for current surviving spouses were based on Pub-2010 
Contingent Survivor Amount-Weighted Above-Medium Mortality Table with rates increased by 15% for males 
and 30% for females. Pre-retirement life rates were based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-Weighted 
Above-Median Mortality Table. Mortality improvements were based by applying MacLeod Watts Scale 2022 
applied generationally from 2010, based on data from the Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale MP-
2021 Report and the demographic assumptions used in the 2021 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the 
Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds. 
 
Changes in Assumptions – the ECHBP and PEPB Plans Reflect the Following Changes in Assumptions: 
 

• The discount rate changed from 2.18% as of June 30, 2021 to 4.09% as of June 30, 2022 and from 4.09% as 
of June 30, 2022 to 4.13% as of June 30, 2023, based on the published change in return for the applicable 
municipal bond index. 

• Assumed rates of mortality, termination, disability, and retirement were updated from those provided in 
the 2017 experience study to those provided in the 2021 experience study of the Public Employees’ 
Retirement System of the State of Nevada. The mortality improvement scale was updated from MacLeod 
Watts Scale 2020 to MacLeod Watts Scale 2022. 

• Healthcare costs trends were updated to the Getzen Model 2022_b published by the Society of Actuaries. 
• The participation rate was corrected for projecting eligibility of the subsidy to the new years of service 

requirement from 10 to 20 for those retiring at age 60 and older for the ECHBP.  
 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
 

ECHBP PEBP Total

Balance at June 30, 2023 6,151,053$      190,300$          6,341,353$      

Changes for the year
Service cost 126,664            -                         126,664            
Interest 251,065            7,436                258,501            
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (28,796)             (667)                  (29,463)             
Benefit payments (278,403)           (16,985)             (295,388)           

Net changes 70,530              (10,216)             60,314              

Balance at June 30, 2024 6,221,583$      180,084$          6,401,667$      
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s Total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage lower (3.13%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (5.13%) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease in Discount 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Rate Discount Rate

(3.13%) (4.13%) (5.13%)

ECHBP OPEB Liability 7,009,933$      6,221,583$      5,566,291$      
PEBP OPEB Liability 198,167 180,084 164,780 

7,208,100$      6,401,667$      5,731,071$      

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage lower or 1-percentage-
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease 1% Increase
in Healthcare in Healthcare

Cost Trend Cost Trend
Rate (5.60% Healthcare Rate (5.60%

decreasing to Cost Trend increasing to
4.60%) Rate (5.60%) 6.60%)

ECHBP OPEB Liability 5,720,241$      6,221,583$      6,852,232$      
PEBP OPEB Liability 165,290            180,084            194,249            

Total OPEB Liability 5,885,531$      6,401,667$      7,046,481$      

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the County recognized OPEB expense (income) of ($31,960): 

ECHBP (38,729)$           
PEBP 6,769

(31,960)$           
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At June 30, 2024, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions
and other inputs 402,218$      2,146,758$   -$                   -$                   402,218$      2,146,758$   

Differences between
expected and
actual experience 689,580         532,601         -                     -                     689,580         532,601         

Contributions subsequent to
the measurement date 320,971         -                      16,921          -                     337,892         -                      

1,412,769$   2,679,359$   16,921$        -$                   1,429,690$   2,679,359$   

ECHBP PEBP Total

 
The $337,892 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from County contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year 
ending June 30, 2025.  
 
Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as 
follows: 
 
Year Ending June 30, ECHBP PEBP Total

2025 416,458$          -$                       416,458$          
2026 342,653            -                         342,653            
2027 177,229            -                         177,229            
2028 99,430              -                         99,430              
2029 117,311            -                         117,311            
Thereafter 434,480            -                         434,480            

1,587,561$      -$                       1,587,561$      
 

 
Note 9 -  Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute 
a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor 
cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
On April 16, 2024 the Commission awarded a bid not to exceed $5,905,451 for the Phase 2 Road and Utility 
Improvement Project as well as engineering and construction services totaling $746,800. On June 4, 2024 an 
additional change order was approved totaling $2,440,171. No funds were spent as of June 30, 2024. 
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On May 21, 2024 the Commission awarded a bid not to exceed $504,000 for the Kobeh Well and Transmission 
Main Project Schematic Design. No funds were spent as of June 30, 2024.  

Note 10 -  Tax Abatements 

The County entered into an abatement, through the Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development, in 
accordance with NRS that allows for partial abatement of qualifying renewable energy properties. Property tax 
abatements on certified eligible properties are equal to 55% of the taxes payable on real and personal property. 
In addition, 45% of the taxes after abatement must be distributed to the Nevada State Renewable Energy Fund. 

For the year June 30, 2024, the County abated property taxes totaling $131,609. 

Note 11 -  Ad Valorem Capital Projects 

Pursuant to NRS 354.598155, the County is required to provide the expenditures for revenue received under this 
statute. The County spent monies in the current fiscal year for public safety radio repeater upgrades, water well 
rehabilitation and upgrades, and computer/technology upgrades.  

Note 12 -  Interfund Transfers 

The General Fund transferred $15,000,000 to various funds during the year to fund various capital projects as 
follows: 

Major funds
Regional Transportation Fund 9,000,000$      
Eureka Town Water/Sewer Fund 4,000,000 
Crescent Valley Water Fund 500,000 

Nonmajor funds
Water Mitigation Fund 1,500,000 

15,000,000$    

Note 13 -  Opioid Settlement 

The State of Nevada along with other states settled claims that certain prescription drug companies and 
pharmaceutical distributors engaged in misleading and fraudulent conduct in the marketing and sale of opioids 
and failed to monitor for, detect and prevent diversion of the drugs. The County also settled the same claims 
and related claims. Due to its settlement of these claims, the County will receive payments from the Defendant 
companies, through the State of Nevada, over the next twenty years. The County is required to use these funds 
for activities to remediate the opioid crisis and treat or mitigate opioid use disorder and related disorders 
through prevention, harm reduction, treatment, and recovery services. The amount reported in the General 
Fund, not scheduled to be collected within one year is $456,229.
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Note 14 -  Fund Balances 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” 
(codification paragraph 1800.165 to .187) the County has restricted fund balance for the following purposes as 
of June 30, 2024: 
 
Fund Amount

General Fund 11,979,586$        Mining stabilization, NRS 362.171
General Fund 86,449                 Opioid settlements
Agricultural Extension 937,573               Agricultural extension, NRS 549.020
Agricultural District #15 5,578                    Eureka County Fair
Town of Eureka 1,270,173            General town services
Town of Crescent Valley 308,919               General town services
Diamond Valley Weed District 267,186               Control of weed infestations
Diamond Valley Rodent District 368,538               Control of rodent infestations
District Court Improvement 11,996                 District Court improvements, NRS 19.0302
Recreation 412,489               Maintenance of County recreational facilities, NRS 244.3358
Tourism 26,325                 Promotion of tourism, NRS 244.3358
Game Management Board -                            Provide funding for local meetings and travel to State Game

Board meetings
Eureka County Indigent 303,788               Provide aid and relief for indigent persons, NRS 428.285
Eureka County Indigent 1,175                    Indigent legal services, NRS 19.031
Eureka County Hospital Indigent 118,459               Provide for medical aid of indigent persons, NRS 428.285
Assessor’s Technology 1,975,594            Technology improvements, NRS 250.085
Recorder’s Technology 99,310                 Technology improvements, NRS 247.306
Justice Court AA 40,563                 Court improvements, NRS 176.059
Juvenile Court AA 36,434                 Provide services to juveniles, NRS 62E.270
Justice Court Facility 140,573               Court improvements, NRS 176.0611
Forensic Fee 186                       Forensic fees, NRS 453.576
Capital Projects 3,898,338            Capital improvements

Total 22,289,232$        

Purpose

 
In accordance with GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” 
(codification paragraph 1800.165 to .187) the County has committed fund balance for the following purposes as 
of June 30, 2024: 
 
Fund Amount

Building Operation and 
Maintenance Fund 4,076,119$          Committed for projects not yet completed

General Fund 2,351,360            Committed for retiree health insurance costs
Water Mitigation Fund 3,641,073            Committed for water mitigation costs
Natural Resource Multi-Use

Protection Fund 1,581,128            Committed for expenditure related to Natural Resources

Total 11,649,680$        

Purpose
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In accordance with GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” 
(codification paragraph 1800.165 to .187) the County has assigned fund balance for the following purposes as of 
June 30, 2024: 

Fund Amount Fund Amount
Assigned for subsequent years: Assigned due to nature of fund by budget officer:

General Government: General Government:
General Fund 12,934,208$           Game Management Board Fund 1,304$  
Agricultural Extension Fund 301,876 Assessor's Technology Fund 166,422 
Game Management Board Fund 2,050 Capital Projects Fund 2,156,273                
Assessor's Technology Fund 77,315 Public Works:
Recorder's Technology Fund 11,932 Road Fund 921,511 

Public Works: Regional Transportation Fund 8,092,862                
Culture and Recreation:

Regional Transportation Fund 811,011 Recreation Fund 144,651 
Culture and Recreation: Agricultural District #15 Fund 299,935 

Recreation Fund 21,600 Health, Welfare and Sanitation:
Agricultural District #15 Fund 7,375 Landfill Fund 2,831,765                

Health, welfare and sanitation: Eureka County Indigent Fund 94,212 
Eureka County Indigent Fund 38,071 Eureka County Hospital Indigent Fund 339,043 
Eureka County Hospital Indigent Judicial:

Fund 50,514 Justice Court AA Fund 12,702 
Judicial: Juvenile Court AA Fund 569 

Justice Court AA Fund 14,100 Justice Court Facility Fund 3,813 
Juvenile Court AA Fund 12,575 Public Safety:
Justice Court Facility Fund 43,000 Forensic Fee Fund 924 

Community Support: Community Support:
Tourism Fund 0 Tourism Fund 9,559 

Total 14,325,627$           Total 15,075,545$           

Note 15 -  Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Administrative Code 

The independent audit of the records of Eureka County for the year ended June 30, 2024, included a review of 
the financial activity for compliance with applicable statutes and code. The County conformed to all significant 
statutory and legal constraints on its financial administration during the year. 

Note 16 -  Subsequent Events 

On August 6, 2024 the Commission awarded a bid totaling $599,772 for a CAT 966-BR Wheel Loader and 
$700,000 for the Diamond Valley General Improvement District Municipal Water Well #2 Project.  

On September 17, 2024 the Commission approved the purchase of six Ford F-150 Patrol trucks totaling 
$321,300. 

On  December 3, 2024 the Commission approved the purchase of two Ford E-450 14 passenger ADA vans for the 
Senior Center.  
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Secured-real property 4,684,642$     4,684,642$     3,530,081$       (1,154,561)$    3,669,322$       
State unitary tax - - 264,822             264,822           270,515             
Personal property - - 606,389             606,389           503,790             
Net proceeds of mines 4,142,478       4,142,478       5,076,978          934,500           5,458,779          

8,827,120       8,827,120       9,478,270          651,150           9,902,406          

Licenses and permits
Liquor licenses 2,500               2,500               3,143                  643 1,846                  
County gaming licenses 500 500 683 183 560 
Marriage licenses 150 150 168 18 168 
Animal licenses 100 100 155 55 235 
Motor vehicle licenses 2,000               2,000               4,936                  2,936               3,850                  
Returned check fees 100 100 225 125 150 

5,350               5,350               9,310                  3,960               6,809                  

Intergovernmental revenues
Payment in lieu of taxes 380,000           380,000           419,468             39,468             403,219             
Federal geothermal lease 12,000             12,000             23,142               11,142             25,889               
Federal / state grants

FAA Federal Airport 684,563           684,563           118,645             (565,918)         24,613               
Prevention grant - - 11,086               11,086             8,806                  
CSBG grant 6,000               6,000               8,268                  2,268               2,520                  
Federal title III grant 10,000             10,000             - (10,000) 11,776               
Public safety grant 2,000               2,000               - (2,000) - 
Congregate meals USDA grant 30,000             30,000             26,145               (3,855) 80,180               
LEPC grant 40,000             40,000             31,225               (8,775) 15,480               
Bureau of justice grant - - 4,038                  4,038               6,172                  
Senior center nutrition grant 20,000             20,000             25,286               5,286               23,896               
Senior center homebound 

nutrition grant 20,000             20,000             25,484               5,484               22,658               
Senior center transportation 20,000             20,000             29,577               9,577               29,577               
DAS senior center 3,000               3,000               2,201                  (799) 5,445 
Risk Management grant - - 425 425 - 
Emergency Management grant 1,000,000       1,000,000       - (1,000,000) - 
Pool/Pact reimbursements 8,000               8,000               3,995                  (4,005)              23,972               

State shared revenue
State gaming licenses 47,000             47,000             48,367               1,367               45,539               
Consolidated tax 8,844,345       8,844,345       10,593,556       1,749,211       9,574,647          
RPTT (NRS 375.070) 300 300 337 37 319 
Other 13,000             13,000             86,841               73,841             78 

11,140,208     11,140,208     11,458,086       317,878           10,304,786       

Budgeted Amounts



 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 57 

Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Charges for services
Clerk fees 10,500$           10,500$           50,785$             40,285$           14,387$             
Recorder fees 85,000             85,000             81,319               (3,681)              86,462               
Mining map fees 20,000             20,000             13,890               (6,110)              22,591               
Assessor's commissions 450,000           450,000           641,022             191,022           629,837             
Sheriff's fees 11,200             11,200             1,578                  (9,622)              2,174                  
Public works fees 1,500               1,500               4,297                  2,797               827                     
Ambulance fee 64,000             64,000             83,991               19,991             136,651             
Swimming pool fees 8,000               8,000               15,068               7,068               10,403               
Juvenile probation fees 12,000             12,000             160                     (11,840)            24,922               
Senior program income 28,000             28,000             29,625               1,625               33,678               
Facility use charge 10,000             10,000             9,500                  (500)                 10,233               
Cultural programs - opera 500                   500                   2,151                  1,651               1,177                  
Other -                        -                        12,557               12,557             13,770               

700,700           700,700           945,943             245,243           987,112             

Fines and Forfeits
Court fines 7,300               7,300               58,078               50,778             27,303               
Forfeited bail 30,000             30,000             2,620                  (27,380)            29,211               
Court other 8,600               8,600               79,696               71,096             8,319                  

45,900             45,900             140,394             94,494             64,833               

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 350,000           350,000           845,816             495,816           757,966             
Rents and royalties 11,200             11,200             18,369               7,169               15,750               
Delinquent tax penalties/ fees 20,000             20,000             22,899               2,899               37,254               
Tax sale -                        -                        51,268               51,268             76,357               
Net realized gain (loss) 15,000             15,000             64,199               49,199             16,135               
Net change in fair value of

investments 1,000               1,000               1,093,867          1,092,867       (356,474)            
North End activity programs 5,000               5,000               7,500                  2,500               8,331                  
Aviation Fuel 35,000             35,000             57,861               22,861             68,888               
Reimbursable court fees 6,200               6,200               4,751                  (1,449)              5,862                  
Other 48,100             48,100             97,979               49,879             62,190               

491,500           491,500           2,264,509          1,773,009       692,259             

Total revenues 21,210,778     21,210,778     24,296,512       3,085,734       21,958,205       

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Expenditures
General government 

Commissioners
Salaries and wages 110,000$         110,000$         79,924$             30,076$           157,252$           
Employee benefits 130,000           130,000           83,202               46,798             136,154             
Services and supplies 1,446,700       1,446,700       561,610             885,090           239,722             
Capital outlay 4,000,000       4,000,000       - 4,000,000 243,310             

5,686,700       5,686,700       724,736             4,961,964       776,438             

Treasurer
Salaries and wages 150,000           150,000           138,354             11,646             126,839             
Employee benefits 108,000           108,000           99,499               8,501               90,784               
Services and supplies 81,775             81,775             39,729               42,046             46,599               

339,775           339,775           277,582             62,193             264,222             

Recorder
Salaries and wages 350,000           350,000           269,442             80,558             215,490             
Employee benefits 200,000           200,000           166,915             33,085             124,696             
Services and supplies 72,100             72,100             16,395               55,705             26,431               

622,100           622,100           452,752             169,348           366,617             

Assessor
Salaries and wages 265,000           265,000           237,646             27,354             243,294             
Employee benefits 200,000           200,000           164,614             35,386             149,947             
Services and supplies 109,500           109,500           85,465               24,035             67,710               

574,500           574,500           487,725             86,775             460,951             

Building and grounds
Salaries and wages 278,000           278,000           198,724             79,276             227,005             
Employee benefits 176,000           176,000           94,070               81,930             119,670             
Services and supplies 1,211,050       1,211,050       589,733             621,317           710,648             
Capital outlay 140,000           140,000           120,098             19,902             25,272               

1,805,050       1,805,050       1,002,625          802,425           1,082,595          

Election expense
Salaries and wages 12,000             12,000             2,515 9,485               1,724 
Employee benefits 1,200               1,200               385 815 300 
Services and supplies 87,000             87,000             56,138               30,862             47,043 
Capital outlay 10,000             10,000             - 10,000 - 

110,200           110,200           59,038               51,162             49,067               

Audit and budget
Services and supplies 144,500           144,500           147,527             (3,027)              138,332             

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Comptroller
Salaries and wages 225,000$         225,000$         228,976$           (3,976)$            189,544$           
Employee benefits 150,000           150,000           144,767             5,233               125,833             
Services and supplies 80,750             80,750             74,508               6,242               64,270               

455,750           455,750           448,251             7,499               379,647             

Airport
Services and supplies 173,500           173,500           101,985             71,515             104,483             
Capital outlay 1,150,000       1,150,000       118,645             1,031,355       44,170               

1,323,500       1,323,500       220,630             1,102,870       148,653             

Land use committee
Salaries and wages 10,000             10,000             3,232                  6,768               3,788                  
Employee benefits 1,500               1,500               1,958                  (458)                 2,536                  
Services and supplies 13,000             13,000             9,920                  3,080               1,052                  

24,500             24,500             15,110               9,390               7,376                  

Technology support
Salaries and wages 214,000           214,000           209,507             4,493               159,835             
Employee benefits 145,000           145,000           124,431             20,569             94,233               
Services and supplies 1,993,055       1,993,055       740,688             1,252,367       671,344             
Capital outlay 929,400           929,400           204,173             725,227           113,661             

3,281,455       3,281,455       1,278,799          2,002,656       1,039,073          

Planning commission
Salaries and wages 2,000               2,000               314                     1,686               500                     
Employee benefits 500                   500                   95                       405                   38                       
Services and supplies 2,400               2,400               626                     1,774               309                     

4,900               4,900               1,035                  3,865               847                     

Human Resources
Salaries and wages 86,000             86,000             63,511               22,489             75,485               
Employee benefits 69,000             69,000             46,955               22,045             60,323               
Services and supplies 111,500           111,500           46,575               64,925             64,914               

266,500           266,500           157,041             109,459           200,722             

Non-departmental expenses
Salaries and wages 250,000           250,000           73,368               176,632           175,177             
Employee benefits 20,000             20,000             7,275                  12,725             10,306               
Services and supplies 253,000           253,000           243,813             9,187               196,330             

523,000           523,000           324,456             198,544           381,813             

Total general government 15,162,430     15,162,430     5,597,307          9,565,123       5,296,353          

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Public safety
Sheriff

Salaries and wages 1,962,000$     1,962,000$     1,848,642$       113,358$         1,536,620$       
Employee benefits 1,585,000       1,585,000       1,177,823          407,177           942,035             
Services and supplies 767,500           767,500           919,653             (152,153)         675,922             
Capital outlay 130,000           130,000           2,864                  127,136           41,851               

4,444,500       4,444,500       3,948,982          495,518           3,196,428          

LEPC
Salaries and wages 800                   800                   527                     273                   461                     
Employee benefits 200                   200                   356                     (156)                 217                     
Services and supplies 6,000               6,000               648                     5,352               696                     
Capital outlay 36,000             36,000             29,985               6,015               14,323               

43,000             43,000             31,516               11,484             15,697               

Emergency Management
Salaries and wages 57,500             57,500             48,665               8,835               43,613               
Employee benefits 30,250             30,250             24,791               5,459               21,940               
Services and supplies 800,500           800,500           163,857             636,643           687,787             
Capital outlay 4,100,000       4,100,000       2,929,604          1,170,396       69,939               

4,988,250       4,988,250       3,166,917          1,821,333       823,279             

Total public safety 9,475,750       9,475,750       7,147,415          2,328,335       4,035,404          

Judicial
Juvenile probation

Salaries and wages 155,000           155,000           151,985             3,015               140,876             
Employee benefits 108,000           108,000           112,589             (4,589)              93,520               
Services and supplies 66,050             66,050             59,934               6,116               71,538               

329,050           329,050           324,508             4,542               305,934             

District Attorney
Salaries and wages 455,000           455,000           287,905             167,095           250,604             
Employee benefits 230,000           230,000           169,449             60,551             125,578             
Services and supplies 393,000           393,000           45,067               347,933           117,895             
Capital outlay -                        -                        9,180                  (9,180)              -                          

1,078,000       1,078,000       511,601             566,399           494,077             

District court
Services and supplies 341,400           341,400           247,848             93,552             208,290             
Capital outlay 15,000             15,000             -                          15,000             -                          

356,400           356,400           247,848             108,552           208,290             

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Eureka Justice Court
Salaries and wages 311,000$         311,000$         330,592$           (19,592)$         282,675$           
Employee benefits 181,200           181,200           192,300             (11,100)            162,399             
Services and supplies 211,080           211,080           49,489               161,591           49,571               
Capital outlay 15,000             15,000             -                          15,000             3,070                  

718,280           718,280           572,381             145,899           497,715             

Law library
Services and supplies 30,000             30,000             20,121               9,879               18,142               

Total judicial 2,511,730       2,511,730       1,676,459          835,271           1,524,158          

Public works
Salaries and wages 369,000           369,000           425,227             (56,227)            350,390             
Employee benefits 200,000           200,000           227,263             (27,263)            169,329             
Services and supplies 549,000           549,000           129,636             419,364           139,732             
Capital outlay 55,000             55,000             55,791               (791)                 6,101                  

Total public works 1,173,000       1,173,000       837,917             335,083           665,552             

Health and sanitation
Diagnostic Treatment Center

Services and supplies 700,000           700,000           530,661             169,339           484,151             

Ambulance
Salaries and wages 360,000           360,000           402,067             (42,067)            342,206             
Employee benefits 223,000           223,000           224,806             (1,806)              203,170             
Services and supplies 171,250           171,250           140,614             30,636             116,730             
Capital outlay 160,000           160,000           78,041               81,959             136,846             

914,250           914,250           845,528             68,722             798,952             

Cemeteries
Services and supplies 8,000               8,000               5,000                  3,000               871                     

Total health and sanitation 1,622,250       1,622,250       1,381,189          241,061           1,283,974          

Culture and recreation
Swimming pool

Salaries and wages 215,000           215,000           204,788             10,212             151,649             
Employee benefits 70,000             70,000             54,869               15,131             37,050               
Services and supplies 33,250             33,250             24,910               8,340               25,418               

318,250           318,250           284,567             33,683             214,117             

North End activity
Services and supplies 12,000             12,000             10,462               1,538               6,681                  

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Senior center
Salaries and wages 493,200$         493,200$         443,175$           50,025$           406,790$           
Employee benefits 184,500           184,500           201,875             (17,375)            172,776             
Services and supplies 160,700           160,700           155,739             4,961               214,492             

838,400           838,400           800,789             37,611             794,058             
Museum

Salaries and wages 74,000             74,000             69,927               4,073               59,470               
Employee benefits 30,000             30,000             29,425               575 20,508               
Services and supplies 20,300             20,300             6,973 13,327             9,782 

124,300           124,300           106,325             17,975             89,760               
Public parks

Salaries and wages 55,000             55,000             38,189               16,811             26,867               
Employee benefits 20,000             20,000             21,190               (1,190)              12,575               
Services and supplies 84,000             84,000             69,654               14,346             48,705               
Capital outlay - - - - 6,083 

159,000           159,000           129,033             29,967             94,230               

Library
Services and supplies 128,225           128,225           128,248             (23) 115,672 

Total culture and recreation 1,580,175       1,580,175       1,459,424          120,751           1,314,518          

Community support
Natural resources

Salaries and wages 184,500           184,500           181,285             3,215               151,539             
Employee benefits 134,000           134,000           136,004             (2,004)              105,245             
Services and supplies 88,200             88,200             21,281               66,919             20,906               

406,700           406,700           338,570             68,130             277,690             

Housing
Services and supplies 15,000             15,000             - 15,000 - 

Opera house
Salaries and wages 66,000             66,000             67,777               (1,777)              54,260               
Employee benefits 27,000             27,000             27,479               (479) 23,688 
Services and supplies 71,700             71,700             41,429               30,271             37,236 

164,700           164,700           136,685             28,015             115,184             

Total community support 586,400           586,400           475,255             111,145           392,874             

Contingency 200,000           200,000           - 200,000 - 

Total expenditures 32,311,735     32,311,735     18,574,966       13,736,769     14,512,833       

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual – 

General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (11,100,957)$  (11,100,957)$  5,721,546$       16,822,503$   7,445,372$       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (15,250,000)    (15,250,000)    (15,250,000)      -                        (4,000,000)        
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                        -                        164,022             164,022           132,310             

Total other financing
sources (uses) (15,250,000)    (15,250,000)    (15,085,978)      164,022           (3,867,690)        

Net Change in Fund Balances (26,350,957)    (26,350,957)    (9,364,432)        16,986,525     3,577,682          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 44,108,119     44,108,119     52,643,311       8,535,192       49,065,629       

Fund Balances, End of Year 17,757,162$   17,757,162$   43,278,879$     25,521,717$   52,643,311$     

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes In 

Fund Balances – General Fund (GAAP Basis) 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Future Retiree Health
General Fund Reserve Insurance General Fund

(Budgetary Basis) Fund Fund Eliminations (GAAP Basis)
Revenues

Taxes 9,478,270$       6,250$             -$                   -$                   9,484,520$     
Licenses and permits 9,310                 -                        -                     -                     9,310               
Intergovernmental revenues 11,458,086       -                        -                     -                     11,458,086     
Charges for services 945,943             -                        -                     -                     945,943          
Fines and forfeits 140,394             -                        -                     -                     140,394          
Miscellaneous 2,264,509          505,669           97,312          -                     2,867,490       

Total revenues 24,296,512       511,919           97,312          -                     24,905,743     

Expenditures
Current

General government 5,154,391          5,950                239,785        -                     5,400,126       
Public safety 4,184,962          -                        -                     -                     4,184,962       
Judicial 1,667,279          -                        -                     -                     1,667,279       
Public works 782,126             -                        -                     -                     782,126          
Health and sanitation 1,303,148          -                        -                     -                     1,303,148       
Culture and recreation 1,459,424          -                        -                     -                     1,459,424       
Community support 475,255             -                        -                     -                     475,255          

Capital outlay 3,548,381          -                        -                     -                     3,548,381       

Total expenditures 18,574,966       5,950                239,785        -                     18,820,701     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 5,721,546          505,969           (142,473)       -                     6,085,042       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of

capital assets 164,022             -                        -                     -                     164,022          
Transfers in -                          -                        250,000        (250,000)       -                       
Transfers out (15,250,000)      -                        -                     250,000        (15,000,000)    

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (15,085,978)      -                        250,000        -                     (14,835,978)    

Net Change in Fund Balances (9,364,432)        505,969           107,527        -                     (8,750,936)      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 52,643,311       11,473,617      2,243,833     -                     66,360,761     

Fund Balances, End of Year 43,278,879$     11,979,586$   2,351,360$  -$                   57,609,825$   

Internally Reported Funds
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Eureka County 
Major Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  
Road Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

 
 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Secured-real property 392,347$          392,347$          295,635$          (96,712)$           297,221$          
State unitary tax -                         -                         22,176               22,176               21,904               
Personal property -                         -                         50,704               50,704               40,793               
Net proceeds of mines 370,185            370,185            425,208            55,023               442,006            

762,532            762,532            793,723            31,191               801,924            

Intergovernmental revenues
Federal revenue 60,000               60,000               72,164               12,164               70,659               
State shared revenue

Motor vehicle fuel tax 732,060            732,060            726,964            (5,096)               792,149            

792,060            792,060            799,128            7,068                 862,808            
Miscellaneous

Interest earned 30,000               30,000               25,743               (4,257)               37,438               
Net realized gain (loss) 1,000                 1,000                 2,445                 1,445                 1,011                 
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         -                         58,538               58,538               21,870               
Other - roads reimbursements 403,000            403,000            234,267            (168,733)           280,285            

434,000            434,000            320,993            (113,007)           340,604            

Total revenues 1,988,592         1,988,592         1,913,844         (74,748)             2,005,336         

Expenditures
Public Works

Highways and streets
Salaries and wages 1,015,000         1,015,000         998,049            16,951               893,766            
Employee benefits 516,000            516,000            473,669            42,331               423,771            

1,531,000         1,531,000         1,471,718         59,282               1,317,537         

Roads
Services and supplies 1,553,500         1,553,500         962,443            591,057            972,323            
Capital outlay 752,000            752,000            774,918            (22,918)             582,621            

2,305,500         2,305,500         1,737,361         568,139            1,554,944         

Total expenditures 3,836,500         3,836,500         3,209,079         627,421            2,872,481         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,847,908)        (1,847,908)        (1,295,235)        552,673            (867,145)           

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,847,908)        (1,847,908)        (1,295,235)        552,673            (867,145)           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2,410,757         2,410,757         2,216,746         (194,011)           3,083,891         

Fund Balances, End of Year 562,849$          562,849$          921,511$          358,662$          2,216,746$       
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Eureka County 
Major Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 
Regional Transportation Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Revenues Original Final Amounts Variance 2023

Taxes
Ad valorem taxes

Secured-real property 859,067$        859,067$        646,123$        (212,944)$       532,095$        
State unitary tax - - 48,745 48,745 39,427 
Personal property roll - - 110,591 110,591 73,424 
Net proceeds of mines 814,408 814,408 935,457 121,049 795,611 

1,673,475 1,673,475 1,740,916 67,441 1,440,557 

Intergovernmental revenues
County option motor

vehicle fuel tax 98,691 98,691 84,113 (14,578) 95,659 

Miscellaneous
Interest 50,000 50,000 293,815 243,815 167,925 
Net realized gain (loss) 2,000 2,000 23,331 21,331 3,415 
Net change in fair value

of investments - - 162,306 162,306 (212,075) 

52,000 52,000 479,452 427,452 (40,735) 

Total revenues 1,824,166 1,824,166 2,304,481 480,315 1,495,481 

Expenditures
Public works

Services and supplies 183,000 183,000 7,134 175,866 4,562 
Capital outlay 11,000,000 11,000,000 8,831,203 2,168,797 4,474,037 

Total expenditures 11,183,000 11,183,000 8,838,337 2,344,663 4,478,599 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (9,358,834) (9,358,834) (6,533,856) 2,824,978 (2,983,118) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in 9,000,000 9,000,000 9,000,000 - 4,000,000 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 9,000,000 9,000,000 9,000,000 - 4,000,000 

Net Change in Fund Balances (358,834) (358,834) 2,466,144 2,824,978 1,016,882 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,914,297 1,914,297 6,437,729 4,523,432 5,420,847 

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,555,463$     1,555,463$     8,903,873$     7,348,410$     6,437,729$     
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Eureka County 
Major Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  
Building Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

 
 

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 77,592$          77,592$          58,176$          (19,416)$         -$                     
State unitary tax -                       -                       4,414               4,414               -                       
Personal property -                       -                       6,855               6,855               -                       
Net proceeds of mines 74,037             74,037             85,042             11,005             -                       

151,629          151,629          154,487          2,858               -                       

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 40,000$          40,000$          92,285$          52,285$          63,682$          
Net realized gain (loss) 1,500               1,500               6,957               5,457               1,558               
Net change in fair value

of investments -                       -                       67,039             67,039             2,769               

41,500             41,500             166,281          124,781          68,009             

Total revenues 193,129          193,129          320,768          127,639          68,009             

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 102,300          102,300          2,009               100,291          4,691               
Capital outlay 755,000          755,000          161,346          593,654          484,560          

Total expenditures 857,300          857,300          163,355          693,945          489,251          

Net Change in Fund Balances (664,171)         (664,171)         157,413          821,584          (421,242)         

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 3,941,948       3,941,948       3,918,706       (23,242)           4,339,948       

Fund Balances, End of Year 3,277,777$     3,277,777$     4,076,119$     798,342$        3,918,706$     

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Eureka County Health Benefit Plan (ECHBP) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 126,664$      266,370$      228,788$      230,487$      210,902$      278,393$      317,773$      
Interest 251,065        175,045        195,642        190,380        193,148        254,619        216,287        
Difference between expected and actual experience - (161,806) - 1,266,636 - (1,419,835) - 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (28,796)         (1,747,536) 504,316        (882,783) 173,479        (474,113) (861,718)       
Benefit payments (278,403)       (288,516)       (294,823)       (248,605) (261,286)       (188,487)       (180,297)       

Net change in total OPEB liability 70,530          (1,756,443)   633,923        556,115        316,243        (1,549,423)   (507,955)       

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 6,151,053     7,907,496     7,273,573     6,717,458     6,401,215     7,950,638     8,458,593     

Total OPEB liability, end of year 6,221,583$  6,151,053$  7,907,496$  7,273,573$  6,717,458$  6,401,215$  7,950,638$  

Covered payroll 6,103,017$  5,307,766$  5,368,424$  4,989,419$  4,923,969$  4,989,452$  4,363,012$  

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 101.94% 115.89% 147.30% 145.78% 136.42% 128.29% 182.23%

Notes to Schedule:
Changes of Assumptions: The 2024 changes included a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 4.09% to 4.13%.

The 2023 changes included a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 2.18% to 4.09%. The 2022 changes included
a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 2.66% to 2.18%. The 2021 changes included updated mortality
assumptions and healthcare trends and a change in the discount rate from 2.79% to 2.66%. The 2020 changes were a change in the discount rate from 2.98% to
2.79%. The 2018 and 2019 changes included a change in assumptions and other inputs, a change in discount rates from 3.31% to 2.98%, updated mortality 
assumptions, and increases in healthcare trends.

The County adopted GASB Statement No.75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,  for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Information is not available prior to that time.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – State of Nevada Public Employees’ Benefit Plan (PEBP) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability

Interest 7,436$          6,220$          7,490$          8,630$          9,359$          9,676$          8,539$          
Difference between expected and actual experience -                     (38,775)         -                     (19,215)         -                     (3,644)           -                     
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (667)              (53,082)         15,348          3,190            6,321            18,837          (22,453)         
Benefit payments (16,985)         (18,772)         (19,404)         (21,263)         (19,621)         (20,253)         (19,496)         

Net change in total OPEB liability (10,216)         (104,409)       3,434            (28,658)         (3,941)           4,616            (33,410)         

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 190,300        294,709        291,275        319,933        323,874        319,258        352,668        

Total OPEB liability, end of year 180,084$      190,300$      294,709$      291,275$      319,933$      323,874$      319,258$      

Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Notes to Schedule:
Changes of Assumptions: The 2024 changes included a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 4.09% to 4.13%.

The 2023 changes included a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 2.18% to 4.09%. The 2022 changes included
a change in mortality and medical trend assumptions and a change in the discount rate from 2.66% to 2.18%. The 2021 changes included updated mortality
assumptions and healthcare trends and a change in the discount rate from 2.79% to 2.66%. The 2020 changes were a change in the discount rate from 2.98% to
2.79%. The 2018 and 2019 changes included a change in assumptions and other inputs, a change in discount rates from 3.31% to 2.98%, updated mortality 
assumptions, and increases in healthcare trends.

The County adopted GASB Statement No.75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,  for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Information is not available prior to that time.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
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Eureka County 
Schedule of County’s Share of Net Pension Liability Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
County's portion of the net 

pension liability 0.08599% 0.08289% 0.08309% 0.07528% 0.07086% 0.06986% 0.07260% 0.08243% 0.09308% 0.10067%
County's proportionate share of 

the net pension liability 15,694,995$ 14,966,405$ 7,576,810$   10,484,782$ 9,663,004$   9,526,872$   9,655,139$   11,092,723$ 10,666,552$ 10,491,873$ 
County's covered payroll 6,416,640$   5,908,455$   5,758,052$   5,258,482$   4,908,500$   4,097,010$   4,363,012$   4,702,882$   5,113,500$   5,401,071$   
County's proportional share of the net

pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 244.60% 253.30% 131.59% 199.39% 196.86% 232.53% 221.30% 235.87% 208.60% 194.26%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 76.16% 75.12% 86.51% 77.04% 76.46% 75.24% 74.42% 72.23% 75.13% 76.30%

Notes to Schedule:
The following table presents significant assumption changes: 

Inflation rate 3.50%
Payroll growth 5.00%
Investment rate of return/discount rate 8.00%
Productivity pay increase 0.75%
Projected salary increases

Regular** 4.25% to 9.15% 4.60% to 9.75%
Police/Fire** 4.55% to 13.90% 5.25% to 14.50%

Consumer price index 3.50%
Mortality rates

Healthy*** Pub-2010 General Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
and Safety Healthy

Retiree and Employee
Disabled Pub-2010 Non-Safety Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Disabled RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table

and Safety Disabled
Retiree Amount-Weighted

Current beneficiaries*** Pub-2010 Contingent Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy N/A
Survivor and General

Employee
Pre-retirement*** Pub-2010 General Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee N/A

and Safety Employee
Future mortality improvement Generational 6 years N/A

Projection Scale MP-2020

** Depending on service. Rates include inflation and productivity increases. 
*** Amount-Weighted Above-Median.

2.50%

2016 through 20142020 through 2017

2.75%
5.00%
7.50%
0.50%

2.75%

2021 through 2023

2.50%
3.50%
7.25%
0.50%

4.20% to 9.10%
4.60% to 14.50%
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Eureka County 
Schedule of County’s Contributions Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Statutorily required 

contribution** 1,232,156$ 996,420$     911,824$     869,804$     784,633$     680,720$     648,060$     651,615$     698,886$     718,374$     
Contributions in relation to the 

statutorily required 
contribution** 1,232,156$ 996,420$     911,824$     869,804$     784,633$     680,720$     648,060$     651,615$     698,886$     718,374$     

County’s covered payroll 7,068,507$ 6,416,640$ 5,908,455$ 5,758,052$ 5,258,482$ 4,908,500$ 4,097,010$ 4,636,012$ 4,702,882$ 5,113,500$ 
Contributions as a percentage

of covered payroll 17.43% 15.53% 15.43% 15.11% 14.92% 13.87% 15.82% 14.06% 14.86% 14.05%

** All contributions shown reflect employer-paid contributions only. Member contributions are excluded.  
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Eureka County 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 1 -  Budgetary Reconciliations  
 
The accompanying Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund (GAAP Basis) 
presents balances combined for external reporting purposes.  
 
Budget to actual comparisons are presented for all funds of the County, except for custodial funds, as required 
by Nevada Revised Statutes. Such budget comparisons are required to be presented using the budget as 
adopted and approved by the State of Nevada Department of Taxation. Budgets are prepared on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting for all funds except enterprise funds and custodial funds, which are prepared using 
the full accrual basis of accounting. Thus, the budgetary basis follows generally accepted accounting principles 
for all funds. 
 
The Future Reserve Fund and the Retiree Health Insurance Fund are combined with the General Fund for 
external reporting purposes.  
 
 
Note 2 -  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
Eureka County adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated in Section 354 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. The County is required to legally adopt budgets for all funds except fiduciary funds. 
The budgets are filed as a matter of public record with the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of Eureka 
County and State Department of Taxation. The County staff uses the following procedures to establish, modify 
and control the budgetary information that is reflected in these financial statements. 
 

1. On or before April 15, the Eureka County Board of Commissioners file a tentative budget with the 
Nevada Department of Taxation for all funds for the fiscal year beginning the following July 1. The 
tentative budget is prepared by fund, function and department and includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

2. Public budget hearings on the tentative budget are held in May to obtain taxpayer comments. 
3. Prior to June 1, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative budget and adopts a 

final budget by a majority vote of the Commissioners. The final budget must then be forwarded to the 
Nevada Department of Taxation for final approval. The above dates may be adjusted as necessary during 
legislative years. 

4. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to enhance management 
control during the year, however encumbrance accounting is not utilized. All appropriations lapse at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

5. The appropriated budget amounts may be transferred between functions, funds, or contingency 
accounts if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations for fiscal year amounts subject to 
advisement of the Commissioners at the next subsequent meeting and must be recorded in the minutes 
of the meeting. Budget augmentations and amendments in excess of original budgetary amounts 
require prior approval of the Eureka Board of County Commissioners, following a scheduled and noticed 
public hearing.



 

73 

Eureka County 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

6.  Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP). Budgeted amounts reflect budget amendments made during the 
year in accordance with the above procedures. 

7. In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the 
various functions of the individual governmental funds, except for bond repayments, short-term 
financing repayment and any other long-term contract expressly authorized by law, and certain other 
items specified in NRS 354.626. For Proprietary Funds, expenses in excess of original budget 
appropriations are allowable as long as the expenses do not cause a deficit in net position and the 
budget is adjusted in a manner provided by law. 

 
 
Note 3 -  Comparative Data 
 
Comparative data shown in the supplementary information sections for the prior year has been extracted from 
the 2022-2023 financial statements and reclassified where necessary and practical to afford better comparability 
between the years. It has been provided to add comparability but is not considered full disclosure of 
transactions for 2022-2023. Such information can only be obtained by referring to the audited financial 
statements for that year. 
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Eureka County 
Combining Balance Sheet – Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the 

General Fund (GAAP) Basis 
June 30, 2024 

Future Retiree Health
General Fund Reserve Insurance General Fund

(Budgetary Basis) Fund Fund Eliminations (GAAP Basis)
Assets

Cash and investments 41,243,207$        11,901,350$    2,339,782$     -$  55,484,339$      
Accounts receivable 68,604 - - - 68,604                
Due from other governments 2,729,902             19,365               -                        - 2,749,267          
Due from other governments, 

opioid settlement 507,545                - - - 507,545             
Property taxes receivable, delinquent 13,717 - - - 13,717                
Accrued interest receivable 209,448                60,381               11,875             - 281,704 
Inventory 23,199 - - - 23,199                

Total assets 44,795,622$        11,981,096$    2,351,657$     -$  59,128,375$      

Liabilities
Accounts payable 560,800$              1,510$               297$                -$  562,607$           
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 284,729                - - - 284,729             
Due to other governments 59,141 - - - 59,141                
Unearned revenue 12,027 - - - 12,027                
Other liabilities 14,380 - - - 14,380                

Total liabilities 931,077                1,510                 297 - 932,884 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - ambulance fees 66,918 - - - 66,918                
Unavailable revenue - grants 17,286 - - - 17,286                
Unavailable revenue - opioid settlement 489,404 - - - 489,404             
Unavailable revenue - delinquent

property taxes 12,058 - - - 12,058                

Total deferred inflow 
of resources 585,666                - - - 585,666             

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 23,199 - - - 23,199                
Restricted 86,449 11,979,586       - - 12,066,035        
Committed for health insurance costs - - 2,351,360       - 2,351,360 
Assigned - -

Subsequent year operations 12,934,208           - - - 12,934,208        
Unassigned 30,235,023           - - - 30,235,023        

Total fund balances 43,278,879           11,979,586       2,351,360       - 57,609,825 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Fund Balances 44,795,622$        11,981,096$    2,351,657$     -$  59,128,375$      

Internally Reported Funds
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Eureka County 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2024 

Agricultural Extension Fund accounts for money received from a tax levy pursuant to NRS 549.020 for continued 
education, research, outreach, and service programs pertaining to agriculture, community development, health 
and nutrition, horticulture, personal and family development, and natural resources. Expenditures are limited to 
cooperative extension work approved by the public service division of the Nevada System of Higher Education. 

Eureka and Crescent Valley Town General Funds account for all revenues and expenditures used to finance the 
traditional services associated with a town government which are not accounted for in other funds and have 
been combined as a component unit of the Eureka County reporting entity. 

Diamond Valley Weed Control District Fund accounts for a tax levy and intergovernmental receipts, received 
pursuant to NRS 555.203 for weed control in the district. 

Diamond Valley Rodent Control District Fund accounts for a tax levy and intergovernmental receipts, received 
pursuant to NRS 555.510 for rodent control in the district. 

District Court Improvement Fund accounts for the collection of additional special fees in civil actions pursuant 
to NRS 19.0302 which are deposited into a special account administered by the County and maintained for the 
benefit of District Court and to be used to offset costs of adding and maintaining new judicial departments. 

Recreation Fund accounts for room tax receipts pursuant to NRS 244.3358. Expenditures are limited to 
construction, repairs, and maintenance of County recreation facilities. 

Tourism Fund accounts for room tax receipts pursuant to NRS 244.3358. Expenditures are limited to the 
promotion of tourism. 

Water Mitigation Fund accounts for water use assessment fees received pursuant to NRS 362.171 to be used to 
cushion adverse effects upon the County from the opening or closing of a major industry.  

Game Management Board Fund accounts for money received from the Nevada Division of Wildlife. These 
monies are to be used by the County Game Board to conduct local meetings and travel expenses to and from 
State Game Board meetings. 

Eureka County Indigent and Eureka County Hospital Indigent Funds account for tax money received in addition 
to the tax levied by NRS 428.285 to provide aid and relief to indigent persons. No County may expend or 
contract to expend for that aid and relief a sum in excess of that provided by the maximum ad valorem tax set 
forth in NRS 428.285 together with such outside resources as it may receive from third persons, including 
expense reimbursements, grants-in-aid or donations lawfully attributable to the County indigent fund. 

Landfill Fund accounts for restricted cash to be used for the closure and post closure costs of the County’s 
landfill.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Assessor’s Technology Fund accounts for money collected from a portion of the personal property and net 
proceeds tax revenues. These funds are designated for technological improvements needed by the County 
Assessor. 
 
Recorder’s Technology Fund accounts for fees used to pay for technology improvements needed by the 
Recorder. The fees are collected when official documents are recorded pursuant to NRS 247.306. 
 
Justice Court AA Fund accounts for administrative assessment fees paid in the Justice Court to be used for court 
improvements or to provide services. 
 
Juvenile Court AA Fund accounts for administrative assessment fees paid in Juvenile Court to be used for court 
improvements or to provide services to juveniles. 
 
Justice Court Facility Fund accounts for fees used to help finance the construction of renovation of Justice Court 
Facilities. The fees are collected by the Justice Court pursuant to NRS 176.0611. 
 
Forensic Fee Fund accounts for fees received from fines to cover the State of Nevada’s Forensic Fee as 
established under NRS 453.576. 
 
Natural Resource Multi-Use Protection Fund accounts for monies collected from a portion of tax revenues. 
These funds are designated to assist in supporting, protecting, and defending the County’s natural resources.  
 
Agricultural District #15 Fund accounts for money received to provide for the Eureka County Fair. 
 
Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 
capital assets. Resources are provided by ad valorem taxes and interest income. 
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Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2024 

Unincorporated Unincorporated
Town of Town of Weed Rodent District

Agricultural Eureka Crescent Valley Control Control Court
Extension General General District District Improvement Recreation

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Assets

Cash and investments 1,240,913$          1,269,523$          320,898$              274,342$              365,016$              11,937$                565,660$              
Due from other governments 14,147 1,125 450 1,713 1,716 - 15,698 
Property taxes receivable, delinquent 226 1,107 556 544 170 - -
Accrued interest receivable 6,302 6,443 1,631 1,392 1,852 61 2,871 

Total assets 1,261,588$          1,278,198$          323,535$              277,991$              368,754$              11,998$                584,229$              

Liabilities
Accounts payable 156$  7,197$  14,136$                8,873$  46$  2$  5,489$  
Accrued salaries and related

liabilities - - - 1,388 - - - 
Due to other governments 21,784 - - - - - - 

Total liabilities 21,940 7,197 14,136 10,261 46 2 5,489 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue -

delinquent property taxes 199 828 480 544 170 - - 

Fund Balances
Restricted 937,573                1,270,173             308,919                267,186                368,538                11,996 412,489                
Committed - - - - - - - 
Assigned

Subsequent year operations 301,876                - - - - - 21,600 
Due to nature of fund

by budget officer - - - - - - 144,651 

Total fund balances 1,239,449             1,270,173             308,919                267,186                368,538                11,996 578,740                

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 1,261,588$          1,278,198$          323,535$              277,991$              368,754$              11,998$                584,229$              

Special Revenue Funds
Diamond Valley
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Eureka County
Water Game Eureka County Hospital Assessor's Recorder's

Tourism Mitigation Management Indigent Indigent Landfill Technology Technology
Fund Fund Board Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Assets
Cash and investments 34,312$                3,628,543$          3,402$                  428,991$              488,417$              2,780,636$          2,209,399$          110,694$              
Due from other governments 1,402                     53,287                  -                             10,573                  18,311                  101,883                28,422                  -                             
Property taxes receivable, delinquent -                             463                        -                             74                          226                        1,439                     -                             -                             
Accrued interest receivable 174                        18,419                  17                          2,178                     2,483                     14,142                  11,201                  562                        

Total assets 35,888$                3,700,712$          3,419$                  441,816$              509,437$              2,898,100$          2,249,022$          111,256$              

Liabilities
Accounts payable 4$                          34,286$                65$                        854$                      1,221$                  60,628$                29,133$                14$                        
Accrued salaries and related

liabilities -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             4,444                     558                        -                             
Due to other governments -                             24,947                  -                             3,650                     -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total liabilities 4                             59,233                  65                          4,504                     1,221                     65,072                  29,691                  14                          

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue -

delinquent property taxes -                             406                        -                             66                          200                        1,263                     -                             -                             

Fund Balances
Restricted 26,325                  -                             -                             304,963                118,459                -                             1,975,594             99,310                  
Committed -                             3,641,073             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Assigned

Subsequent year operations -                             -                             2,050                     38,071                  50,514                  -                             77,315                  11,932                  
Due to nature of fund

by budget officer 9,559                     -                             1,304                     94,212                  339,043                2,831,765             166,422                -                             

Total fund balances 35,884                  3,641,073             3,354                     437,246                508,016                2,831,765             2,219,331             111,242                

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 35,888$                3,700,712$          3,419$                  441,816$              509,437$              2,898,100$          2,249,022$          111,256$              

Special Revenue Funds
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Eureka County 
Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2024 

Justice Natural 
Justice Juvenile Court Forensic Resource Multi - Agricultural Capital

Court AA Court AA Facility Fee Use Protection District #15 Projects Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Nonmajor Funds

Assets
Cash and investments 67,034$                49,602$                186,464$              1,104$  1,584,765$          305,403$              5,954,233$          21,881,288$        
Due from other governments - - - - 7,073 7,073 70,735 333,608                
Property taxes receivable, delinquent - - - - 113 77 1,135 6,130 
Accrued interest receivable 340 252 946 6 8,045 1,541 30,259 111,117                

Total assets 67,374$                49,854$                187,410$              1,110$  1,599,996$          314,094$              6,056,362$          22,332,143$        

Liabilities
Accounts payable 9$  241$  24$  -$  18,768$                1,138$  752$  183,036$              
Accrued salaries and related

liabilities - - - - - - - 6,390 
Due to other governments - 35 - - - - - 50,416 

Total liabilities 9 276 24 - 18,768 1,138 752 239,842                

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue -

delinquent property taxes - - - - 100 68 999 5,323 

Fund Balances
Restricted 40,563 36,434 140,573                186 - 5,578 3,898,338             10,223,197          
Committed - - - - 1,581,128             - - 5,222,201             
Assigned

Subsequent year operations 14,100 12,575 43,000 - - 7,375 - 580,408 
Due to nature of fund

by budget officer 12,702 569 3,813 924 - 299,935 2,156,273             6,061,172 

Total fund balances 67,365 49,578 187,386                1,110 1,581,128             312,888                6,054,611             22,086,978          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 67,374$                49,854$                187,410$              1,110$  1,599,996$          314,094$              6,056,362$          22,332,143$        

Special Revenue Funds
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Eureka County 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Unincorporated Unincorporated
Town of Town of Weed Rodent District

Agricultural Eureka Crescent Valley Control Control Court
Extension General General District District Improvement Recreation

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues

Taxes 158,746$          36,485$            14,934$            29,954$            11,010$            -$                       123,077$          
Licenses and permits -                         1,508                 750                    -                         -                         -                         -                         
Intergovernmental revenues -                         76,234               21,811               72,442               10,362               3,025                 -                         
Charges for services -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Miscellaneous 49,168               61,523               21,021               10,165               14,233               158                    24,432               

Total revenues 207,914            175,750            58,516               112,561            35,605               3,183                 147,509            

Expenditures
General government 123,261            -                         27,347               -                         -                         -                         -                         
Public safety -                         41,204               33,270               -                         -                         -                         -                         
Public works -                         16,981               7,469                 -                         -                         -                         -                         
Judicial -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5                         -                         
Health, welfare and sanitation -                         -                         -                         121,913            2,368                 -                         -                         
Culture and recreation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         143,293            
Community support -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total expenditures 123,261            58,185               68,086               121,913            2,368                 5                         143,293            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 84,653               117,565            (9,570)               (9,352)               33,237               3,178                 4,216                 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in (out) -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Net Change in Fund Balances 84,653               117,565            (9,570)               (9,352)               33,237               3,178                 4,216                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,154,796         1,152,608         318,489            276,538            335,301            8,818                 574,524            

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,239,449$       1,270,173$       308,919$          267,186$          368,538$          11,996$            578,740$          

Special Revenue Funds
Diamond Valley
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Eureka County 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Eureka County
Water Game Eureka County Hospital Assessor's Recorder's

Tourism Mitigation Management Indigent Indigent Landfill Technology Technology
Fund Fund Board Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues
Taxes 10,989$            160,603$          -$  52,385$            158,745$          1,105,735$       -$  -$  
Licenses and permits - - - - - - - - 
Intergovernmental revenues - 49,140 1,295                 3,556                 3,005                 - - - 
Charges for services - - - 590 - 47,635 294,562            7,960                 
Miscellaneous 1,334                 101,191 183 24,601               29,210               113,866            82,283               4,287                 

Total revenues 12,323               310,934            1,478                 81,132               190,960            1,267,236         376,845            12,247               

Expenditures
General government - 216,084 1,981                 24,107               299,882            - 68,338 2,586                 
Public safety - - - - - - - - 
Public works - - - - - - - - 
Judicial - - - - - - - - 
Health, welfare and sanitation - - - - 92,835               530,207            - - 
Culture and recreation - - - - - - - - 
Community support 10,016               - - - - - - - 

Total expenditures 10,016               216,084            1,981                 24,107               392,717            530,207            68,338               2,586                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 2,307                 94,850               (503) 57,025 (201,757)           737,029            308,507            9,661                 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in (out) - 1,500,000 - - - - - - 

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,307                 1,594,850         (503) 57,025 (201,757)           737,029            308,507            9,661                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 33,577               2,046,223         3,857                 380,221 709,773            2,094,736         1,910,824         101,581            

Fund Balances, End of Year 35,884$            3,641,073$       3,354$               437,246$          508,016$          2,831,765$       2,219,331$       111,242$          

Special Revenue Funds
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Eureka County 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Justice Natural 
Justice Juvenile Court Forensic Resource Multi - Agricultural Capital Total

Court AA Court AA Facility Fee Use Protection District #15 Projects Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues
Taxes -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       79,375$            77,239$            793,728$          2,813,005$       
Licenses and permits -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         2,258                 
Intergovernmental revenues -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         422,867            663,737            
Charges for services 3,997                 1,142                 5,630                 3                         -                         20,801               -                         382,320            
Miscellaneous 2,584                 2,017                 7,406                 45                      62,831               11,742               238,445            862,725            

Total revenues 6,581                 3,159                 13,036               48                      142,206            109,782            1,455,040         4,724,045         

Expenditures
General government -                         -                         -                         -                         48,740               -                         651,278            1,463,604         
Public safety -                         -                         -                         3                         -                         -                         -                         74,477               
Public works -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         24,450               
Judicial 165                    763                    93                      -                         -                         -                         -                         1,026                 
Health, welfare and sanitation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         747,323            
Culture and recreation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         89,214               -                         232,507            
Community support -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         10,016               

Total expenditures 165                    763                    93                      3                         48,740               89,214               651,278            2,553,403         

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures 6,416                 2,396                 12,943               45                      93,466               20,568               803,762            2,170,642         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in (out) -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1,500,000         

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,416                 2,396                 12,943               45                      93,466               20,568               803,762            3,670,642         

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 60,949               47,182               174,443            1,065                 1,487,662         292,320            5,250,849         18,416,336       

Fund Balances, End of Year 67,365$            49,578$            187,386$          1,110$               1,581,128$       312,888$          6,054,611$       22,086,978$    

Special Revenue Funds
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Agricultural Extension Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 78,469$          59,128$          (19,341)$       59,442$          
State unitary tax - 4,435 4,435 4,381 
Personal property roll - 10,141 10,141 8,158 
Net proceeds of mines 74,037 85,042 11,005 88,401 

152,506 158,746 6,240 160,382 

Miscellaneous
Interest 8,000 27,789 19,789 18,585 
Net realized gain (loss) 300 2,049 1,749 432 
Net change in fair

value of investments 3,000 19,330 16,330 (5,014) 
Refunds - - - - 

11,300 49,168 37,868 14,003 

Total revenues 163,806 207,914 44,108 174,385 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 111,000 84,566 26,434 98,246 
Capital outlay 125,000 38,695 86,305 105,454 

Total expenditures 236,000 123,261 112,739 203,700 

Net Change in Fund Balances (72,194) 84,653 156,847 (29,315) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,116,986 1,154,796 37,810 1,184,111

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,044,792$    1,239,449$    194,657$        1,154,796$    
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Town of Eureka General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 36,948$          33,919$          (3,029)$           31,564$          
State unitary tax -                       2,194              2,194              2,205              
Personal property roll -                       372                  372                  399                  

36,948            36,485            (463)                34,168            

Licenses and permits
County gaming licenses 1,000              1,508              508                  1,208              

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenue

State gaming licenses 55,000            60,459            5,459              56,924            
NRS 354.59815 capital

improvement 9,000              9,000              -                       9,000              
Consolidated tax 5,666              6,775              1,109              6,097              

69,666            76,234            6,568              72,021            

Miscellaneous
Refunds 500                  12,489            11,989            830                  
Interest earned 8,000              28,716            20,716            18,328            
Net realized gain(loss) 500                  2,098              1,598              400                  
Net change in fair value

of investments -                       18,220            18,220            (7,896)             

9,000              61,523            52,523            11,662            

Total revenues 116,614          175,750          59,136            119,059          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Town of Eureka General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Expenditures
Public safety

Fire
Salaries and wages 11,000$          11,024$          (24)$                10,105$          
Employee benefits 1,200              843                  357                  773                  
Services and supplies 43,000            29,337            13,663            35,175            
Capital outlay 5,000              -                       5,000              -                       

Total public safety 60,200            41,204            18,996            46,053            

Public works
Highways and streets

Services and supplies 46,700            8,337              38,363            3,359              

Street lighting
Subdivision of town property

Services and supplies 31,000            8,644              22,356            13,174            

Total public works 77,700            16,981            60,719            16,533            

Contingency 2,000              -                       2,000              -                       

Total expenditures 139,900          58,185            81,715            62,586            

Net Change in Fund Balances (23,286)           117,565          140,851          56,473            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,151,952      1,152,608      656                  1,096,135      

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,128,666$    1,270,173$    141,507$        1,152,608$    
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Unincorporated Town of Crescent Valley – General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 12,866$          9,571$            (3,295)$           9,447$            
State unitary tax -                       906                  906                  915                  
Personal property roll -                       4,457              4,457              3,114              

12,866            14,934            2,068              13,476            

Licenses and permits
County gaming licenses 500                  750                  250                  473                  

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenues

State gaming licenses 10,000            12,092            2,092              11,385            
NRS 354.59815 capital

improvement 7,000              7,000              -                       7,000              
Consolidated tax 2,262              2,719              457                  2,447              

19,262            21,811            2,549              20,832            

Miscellaneous
Interest 2,000              7,315              5,315              5,030              
Net realized gain (loss) -                       543                  543                  113                  
Net change in fair value

of investments 1,000              5,482              4,482              (1,529)             
Other -                       7,681              7,681              -                       

3,000              21,021            18,021            3,614              

Total revenues 35,628            58,516            22,888            38,395            
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Unincorporated Town of Crescent Valley – General Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Expenditures
General government

Town board
Salaries and wages 8,000$            8,166$            (166)$              5,916$            
Employee benefits 2,000 2,584 (584) 1,833 
Services and supplies 11,400 6,099 5,301 2,766 
Capital outlay 10,525 10,498 27 - 

Total general government 31,925 27,347 4,578 10,515 

Public safety
Fire

Salaries and wages 6,000 6,050 (50) 5,546 
Employee benefits 1,500 463 1,037 424 
Services and supplies 23,500 25,526 (2,026) 17,107 
Capital outlay 5,000 1,231 3,769 - 

Total public safety 36,000 33,270 2,730 23,077 

Public works
Highway and streets

Services and supplies 16,250 7,469 8,781 5,950 

Contingency 2,000 - 2,000 - 

Total expenditures 86,175 68,086 18,089 39,542 

Net Change in Fund Balances (50,547) (9,570) 40,977 (1,147) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 308,406 318,489 10,083 319,636 

Fund Balances, End of Year 257,859$        308,919$        51,060$          318,489$        
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Diamond Valley Weed Control District Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 15,381$            29,954$            14,573$            23,802$            

Intergovernmental
Intergovernmental grants 135,000            62,080              (72,920)             235,375            
Consolidated tax 8,645                10,362              1,717                9,334                

143,645            72,442              (71,203)             244,709            

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 1,500                6,745                5,245                3,675                
Net realized gain (loss) 50                      498                    448                    82                      
Net change in fair value

of investments 50                      2,922                2,872                (5,257)               

1,600                10,165              8,565                (1,500)               

Total revenues 160,626            112,561            (48,065)             267,011            

Expenditures
Health and sanitation

Salaries 44,000              42,700              1,300                38,738              
Employee benefits 35,000              30,423              4,577                29,483              
Services and supplies 101,500            48,790              52,710              88,476              
Capital outlay 1,000                -                         1,000                -                         

Total expenditures 181,500            121,913            59,587              156,697            

Net Change in Fund Balances (20,874)             (9,352)               11,522              110,314            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 245,719            276,538            30,819              166,224            

Fund Balances, End of Year 224,845$          267,186$          42,341$            276,538$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Diamond Valley Rodent Control District Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 7,878$              11,010$            3,132$              8,646$              

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenue

Consolidated tax 8,645 10,362 1,717 9,334

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 2,200 8,343 6,143 5,281
Net realized gain (loss) 50 613 563 117 
Net change in fair value

of investments - 5,277 5,277 (2,295) 

2,250 14,233 11,983 3,103

Total revenues 18,773 35,605 16,832 21,083 

Expenditures
Health and sanitation

Services and supplies 47,000 2,368 44,632 1,727

Net Change in Fund Balances (28,227) 33,237 61,464 19,356 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 323,809 335,301 11,492 315,945 

Fund Balances, End of Year 295,582$          368,538$          72,956$            335,301$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

District Court Improvement Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues

District Court civil act fee 1,800$              3,025$              1,225$              3,429$              

Miscellaneous
Interest earned -                         61                      61                      (11)                     
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         97                      97                      (147)                  

-                         158                    158                    (158)                  

Total revenues 1,800                3,183                1,383                3,271                

Expenditures
Judicial

Services and supplies 5,100                5                        5,095                4                        

Net Change in Fund Balances (3,300)               3,178                6,478                3,267                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 7,426                8,818                1,392                5,551                

Fund Balances, End of Year 4,126$              11,996$            7,870$              8,818$              
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Recreation Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Room tax 120,000$          123,077$          3,077$              126,274$          

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 5,000                13,377              8,377                8,901                
Net realized gain (loss) 300                    1,019                719                    200                    
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         10,036              10,036              (3,436)               
Other -                         -                         -                         1,770                

5,300                24,432              19,132              7,435                

Total revenues 125,300            147,509            22,209              133,709            

Expenditures
Culture and recreation

Services and supplies 120,600            139,693            (19,093)             119,041            
Capital outlay 30,000              3,600                26,400              -                         

Total expenditures 150,600            143,293            7,307                119,041            

Net Change in Fund Balances (25,300)             4,216                29,516              14,668              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 565,156            574,524            9,368                559,856            

Fund Balances, End of Year 539,856$          578,740$          38,884$            574,524$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Tourism Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Room tax 10,500$            10,989$            489$                  11,275$            

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 300                    769                    469                    551                    
Net realized gain (loss) 20                      58                      38                      12                      
Net change in fair value

of investments (1,000)               507                    1,507                (214)                  

(680)                  1,334                2,014                349                    

Total revenues 9,820                12,323              2,503                11,624              

Expenditures
Community support

Services and supplies 10,040              10,016              24                      9,291                

Net Change in Fund Balances (220)                  2,307                2,527                2,333                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 34,494              33,577              (917)                  31,244              

Fund Balances, End of Year 34,274$            35,884$            1,610$              33,577$            
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Water Mitigation Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 78,469$            59,388$            (19,081)$           265,128$          
Personal property roll - 11,663 11,663 36,713 
State unitary tax - 4,510 4,510 19,714 
Net proceeds of mines 74,037 85,042 11,005 397,806 

152,506 160,603 8,097 719,361 

Intergovernmental revenue
Federal grants - 49,140 49,140 - 

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 10,000 87,241 77,241 29,270 
Net realized gain (loss) 500 6,194 5,694 567 
Net change in fair value

of investments - 7,756 7,756 (27,744) 

10,500 101,191 90,691 2,093

Total revenues 163,006 310,934 147,928 721,454 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 300,600 121,044 179,556 118,959 
Capital outlay 1,800,000 95,040 1,704,960 62,641 

Total expenditures 2,100,600 216,084 1,884,516 181,600 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1,937,594) 94,850 (1,736,588) 539,854 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - 

Net Change in Fund Balances (437,594) 1,594,850 (1,736,588) 539,854 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,918,354 2,046,223 127,869 1,506,369 

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,480,760$      3,641,073$      2,160,313$      2,046,223$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Game Management Board Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue

Intergovernmental grants 500$                  1,295$              795$                  -$                       

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 50                      99                      49                      71                      
Net realized gain (loss) -                         8                        8                        2                        
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         76                      76                      28                      

50                      183                    133                    101                    

Total revenues 550                    1,478                928                    101                    

Expenditures
General government

Salaries and wages 1,000                874                    126                    762                    
Employee benefits 600                    861                    (261)                  707                    
Services and supplies 1,500                246                    1,254                158                    

Total expenditures 3,100                1,981                1,119                1,627                

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,550)               (503)                  2,047                (1,526)               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4,068                3,857                (211)                  5,383                

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,518$              3,354$              1,836$              3,857$              
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Eureka County Indigent Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 25,893$            19,511$            (6,382)$             19,616$            
State unitary tax - 1,464 1,464 1,446
Personal property roll - 3,346 3,346 2,692
Net proceeds of mines 24,432 28,064 3,632 29,172 

50,325 52,385 2,060 52,926 

Intergovernmental revenue
Miscellaneous state grant 2,000 3,556 1,556 7,390

Charges for services
Legal aide 10,300 590 (9,710) 638 

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 2,000 9,383 7,383 6,778
Net realized gain (loss) 100 687 587 128 
Net change in fair value

of investments (10,000) 6,571 16,571 (3,818) 
Other - 7,960 7,960 10,470 

(7,900) 24,601 32,501 13,558 

Total revenues 54,725 81,132 26,407 74,512 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 122,000 24,107 97,893 21,283 

Net Change in Fund Balances (67,275) 57,025 124,300 53,229 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 306,838 380,221 73,383 326,992 

Fund Balances, End of Year 239,563$          437,246$          197,683$          380,221$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Eureka County Hospital Indigent Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 78,469$            59,127$            (19,342)$           59,444$            
State unitary tax -                         4,435                4,435                4,381                
Personal property roll -                         10,141              10,141              8,158                
Net proceeds of mines 74,037              85,042              11,005              88,401              

152,506            158,745            6,239                160,384            

Intergovernmental revenue
Other -                         3,005                3,005                4,099                

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 10,000              11,777              1,777                11,755              
Net realized gain (loss) -                         974                    974                    317                    
Net change in fair value

of investments (20,000)             16,459              36,459              4,704                
Other 500                    -                         (500)                  20                      

(9,500)               29,210              38,710              16,796              

Total revenues 143,006            190,960            47,954              181,279            

Expenditures
General government

County indigent
Services and supplies 551,300            299,882            251,418            347,060            

Welfare
Public guardian

Salaries and wages 67,000              60,534              6,466                57,217              
Employee benefits 46,000              27,910              18,090              33,905              
Services and supplies 50,800              4,391                46,409              6,192                

163,800            92,835              70,965              97,314              

Total expenditures 715,100            392,717            322,383            444,374            

Net Change in Fund Balances (572,094)           (201,757)           370,337            (263,095)           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 707,655            709,773            2,118                972,868            

Fund Balances, End of Year 135,561$          508,016$          372,455$          709,773$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Landfill Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes 544,961$          409,412$          (135,549)$        294,253$          
State unitary tax - 31,004 31,004 21,739 
Personal property roll - 70,028 70,028 40,793 
Net proceeds of mines 518,259 595,291 77,032 442,006 

1,063,220 1,105,735 42,515 798,791 

Charges for services
Landfill fees 50,000 47,635 (2,365) 49,506 

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 12,000 56,488 44,488 30,209 
Net realized gain (loss) 600 3,862 3,262 639 
Recycling 800 28,901 28,101 - 
Net change in fair value

of investments - 24,615 24,615 (19,130) 

13,400 113,866 100,466 11,718 

Total revenues 1,126,620 1,267,236 140,616 860,015 

Expenditures
Health and sanitation

Salaries and wages 154,000 138,771 15,229 131,767 
Employee benefits 74,500 58,342 16,158 61,348 
Services and supplies 436,300 333,094 103,206 359,538 
Capital outlay 35,000 - 35,000 38,430 

Total expenditures 699,800 530,207 169,593 591,083 

Net Change in Fund Balances 426,820 737,029 310,209 268,932 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2,208,904 2,094,736 (114,168) 1,825,804 

Fund Balances, End of Year 2,635,724$      2,831,765$      196,041$          2,094,736$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Assessor’s Technology Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Fees 277,535$          294,562$          17,027$            295,117$          

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 12,000              48,087              36,087              30,060              
Net realized gain (loss) -                         3,484                3,484                644                    
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         30,712              30,712              (16,890)             

12,000              82,283              70,283              13,814              

Total revenues 289,535            376,845            87,310              308,931            

Expenditures
General government

Salaries and wages 20,000              13,467              6,533                -                         
Employee benefits 10,000              12,830              (2,830)               -                         
Services and supplies 301,000            36,124              264,876            164,025            
Capital outlay 100,000            5,917                94,083              2,713                

Total expenditures 431,000            68,338              362,662            166,738            

Net Change in Fund Balances (141,465)           308,507            449,972            142,193            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,945,815         1,910,824         (34,991)             1,768,631         

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,804,350$      2,219,331$      414,981$          1,910,824$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Recorder’s Technology Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Fees 12,000$            7,960$              (4,040)$             10,470$            

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 800 2,492 1,692 1,600
Net realized gain (loss) 50 183 133 36 
Net change in fair value

of investments - 1,612 1,612 (699)

850 4,287 3,437 937 

Total revenues 12,850 12,247 (603) 11,407 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 20,100 2,586 17,514 5,585
Capital outlay 10,000 - 10,000 - 

Total expenditures 30,100 2,586 27,514 5,585

Net Change in Fund Balances (17,250) 9,661 26,911 5,822

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 109,459 101,581 (7,878) 95,759 

Fund Balances, End of Year 92,209$            111,242$          19,033$            101,581$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Justice Court AA Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Judicial
Eureka Justice Court 3,000$              3,997$              997$                  4,256$              

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 1,000                1,518                518                    957                    
Net realized gain (loss) 25                      111                    86                      21                      
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         955                    955                    (454)                  

1,025                2,584                1,559                524                    

Total revenues 4,025                6,581                2,556                4,780                

Expenditures
Judicial

Services and supplies 9,100                165                    8,935                170                    
Capital outlay 10,000              -                         10,000              -                         

Total expenditures 19,100              165                    18,935              170                    

Net Change in Fund Balances (15,075)             6,416                21,491              4,610                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 47,764              60,949              13,185              56,339              

Fund Balances, End of Year 32,689$            67,365$            34,676$            60,949$            
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Juvenile Court AA Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Judicial
Juvenile court fees 1,000$              1,142$              142$  1,216$              

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 400 1,141 741 739 
Net realized gain (loss) 25 85 60 17 
Net change in fair value

of investments - 791 791 8 

425 2,017 1,592 764 

Total revenues 1,425 3,159 1,734 1,980

Expenditures
Judicial

Services and supplies 3,100 763 2,337 2,143
Capital outlay 4,000 - 4,000 - 

Total expenditures 7,100 763 6,337 2,143

Net Change in Fund Balances (5,675) 2,396 8,071 (163)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 42,720 47,182 4,462 47,345 

Fund Balances, End of Year 37,045$            49,578$            12,533$            47,182$            



 

102 

Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Justice Court Facility Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Judicial
Fees 4,000$              5,630$              1,630$              6,020$              

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 1,200                4,256                3,056                2,756                
Net realized gain (loss) -                         315                    315                    61                      
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         2,835                2,835                (1,126)               

1,200                7,406                6,206                1,691                

Total revenues 5,200                13,036              7,836                7,711                

Expenditures
Judicial

Services and supplies 80                      93                      (13)                     72                      
Capital outlay 50,000              -                         50,000              -                         

Total expenditures 50,080              93                      49,987              72                      

Net Change in Fund Balances (44,880)             12,943              57,823              7,639                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 165,924            174,443            8,519                166,804            

Fund Balances, End of Year 121,044$          187,386$          66,342$            174,443$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Forensic Fee Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Charges for services

Fees 500$  3$  (497)$                87$  

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 10 25 15 17 
Net realized gain (loss) - 20 20 (5) 

10 45 35 12 

Total revenues 510 48 (462) 99 

Expenditures
Public safety

Services and supplies 500 3 497 87 

Net Change in Fund Balances 10 45 35 12 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,413 1,065 (348) 1,053

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,423$              1,110$              (313)$                1,065$              



 

104 

Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Natural Resource Multi-Use Protection Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Secured-real property 39,235$            29,566$            (9,669)$             29,754$            
State unitary tax -                         2,218                2,218                2,190                
Personal property roll -                         5,070                5,070                4,079                
Net proceeds of mines 37,019              42,521              5,502                44,201              

76,254              79,375              3,121                80,224              

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 10,000              35,969              25,969              23,295              
Net realized gain (loss) 500                    2,658                2,158                513                    
Net change in fair value

of investments -                         24,204              24,204              (10,040)             

10,500              62,831              52,331              13,768              

Total revenues 86,754              142,206            55,452              93,992              

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 250,800            48,740              202,060            12,558              

Net Change in Fund Balances (164,046)           93,466              257,512            81,434              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,487,423         1,487,662         239                    1,406,228         

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,323,377$      1,581,128$      257,751$          1,487,662$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Agricultural District #15 Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes
Secured-real property 38,792$            29,084$            (9,708)$             -$  
State unitary tax - 2,207 2,207 - 
Personal property roll - 3,427 3,427 - 
Net proceeds of mines 37,019 42,521 5,502 - 

75,811 77,239 1,428 - 

Charges for services
Fair fees 25,450$            20,801$            (4,649)$             24,199$            

Miscellaneous
Interest earned 2,000 6,388 4,388 4,698
Net realized gain (loss) 100 471 371 112 
Net change in fair value

of investments 1,000 4,883 3,883 514 

3,100 11,742 8,642 5,324

Total revenues 104,361 109,782 5,421 29,523 

Expenditures
Culture and recreation

Services and supplies 125,550 89,214 36,336 93,994 

Net Change in Fund Balances (21,189) 20,568 41,757 (64,471) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 288,392 292,320 3,928 356,791 

Fund Balances, End of Year 267,203$          312,888$          45,685$            292,320$          
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual –  

Capital Projects Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

Secured-real property 392,347$          295,640$          (96,707)$           297,292$          
State unitary tax -                         22,176              22,176              21,904              
Personal property -                         50,704              50,704              40,793              
Net proceeds of mines 370,185            425,208            55,023              442,006            

762,532            793,728            31,196              801,995            

Intergovernmental revenues
Marijuana tax 88,000              88,235              235                    88,235              
Federal grants 600,000            334,632            (265,368)           469,355            

688,000            422,867            (265,133)           557,590            
Miscellaneous

Interest earned 30,000              138,675            108,675            85,902              
Net realized gain (loss) 1,000                10,202              9,202                1,809                
Net change in fair value

of investments 1,000                89,568              88,568              (47,362)             

32,000              238,445            206,445            40,349              

Total revenues 1,482,532         1,455,040         (27,492)             1,399,934         

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 27,000              19,046              7,954                18,180              
Capital outlay 1,317,500         632,232            685,268            997,056            

Total expenditures 1,344,500         651,278            693,222            1,015,236         

Net Change in Fund Balances 138,032            803,762            665,730            384,698            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4,577,499         5,250,849         673,350            4,866,151         

Fund Balances, End of Year 4,715,531$      6,054,611$      1,339,080$      5,250,849$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Future Reserve Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts Variance 2023

Revenues
Taxes

State shared revenue
Secured-real property 2,392$              1,434$              (958)$                -$  
State unitary tax - 221 221 - 
Personal property - 343 343 - 
Net proceeds of mines 3,702 4,252 550 - 

6,094 6,250 156 - 

Miscellaneous
Fees - 18,658 18,658 11,235 
Net realized gain (loss) 5,000 20,403 15,403 4,110
Net change in fair value

of investments - 192,832 192,832 (62,496) 
Interest earned 100,000 273,776 173,776 182,592 

105,000 505,669 400,669 135,441 

Total revenues 111,094 511,919 400,825 135,441 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 7,500 5,950 1,550 4,879

Net Change in Fund Balances 103,594 505,969 402,375 130,562 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 11,441,554 11,473,617 32,063 11,343,055 

Fund Balances, End of Year 11,545,148$    11,979,586$    434,438$          11,473,617$    
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

Retiree Health Insurance Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Final Budget
Budget Actual Variance 2023

Revenues
Miscellaneous

Interest earned 20,000$            55,967$            35,967$            36,207$            
Net realized gain (loss) 2,000 41,345 39,345 (4,856) 

Total revenues 22,000 97,312 75,312 31,351 

Expenditures
General government

Services and supplies 307,000 239,785 67,215 201,565 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (285,000) (142,473) 142,527 (170,214) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer in 250,000 250,000 - - 

Net Change in Fund Balances (35,000) 107,527 142,527 (170,214) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2,162,548 2,243,833 81,285 2,414,047 

Fund Balances, End of Year 2,127,548$      2,351,360$      223,812$          2,243,833$      
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Eureka Town Water/Sewer Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 

Final Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts Variance 2023

Operating Revenues
Charges for sales and services

Water use charges 205,000$           218,560$           13,560$             207,478$           
Water hook up charges 3,000 1,800 (1,200) 3,325 
Sewer use charges 58,000 59,199 1,199 59,119 
Sewer hook up charges 500 - (500) - 

Total operating revenues 266,500 279,559 13,059 269,922 

Operating Expenses
Water

Salaries 141,000 148,706 (7,706) 116,302 
Employee benefits 80,000 110,100 (30,100) 55,843 
Services and supplies 326,200 105,650 220,550 97,392 
Depreciation 660,000 781,662 (121,662) 627,529 

1,207,200 1,146,118 61,082 897,066 

Sewer
Salaries and wages 37,000 17,112 19,888 17,967 
Employee benefits 17,000 18,143 (1,143) 16,838 
Services and supplies 46,000 11,035 34,965 9,871 
Depreciation 66,000 63,713 2,287 64,255 

166,000 110,003 55,997 108,931 

Total operating expenses 1,373,200 1,256,121 117,079 1,005,997 

Operating Income (Loss) (1,106,700) (976,562) 130,138 (736,075) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 12,000 69,624 57,624 25,495 
Net realized gain (loss) 500 5,348 4,848 583 
Net change in fair value of investments 500,000 9,679 (490,321) (7,712) 
Federal grants - 534,920 534,920 - 
Refunds 5,000 5,722 722 4,068 

Total nonoperating
revenue (expenses) 517,500 625,293 107,793 22,434 

Income (Loss) Before Capital
Contributions and transfers (589,200) (351,269) 237,931 (713,641) 

Capital Contributions - 26,738 26,738 389,885 

Transfer In
General Fund 4,000,000          4,000,000          - - 

Change in Net Position 3,410,800$       3,675,469          264,669$           (323,756)            

Net Position, Beginning of Year 11,183,286 11,507,042 

Net Position, End of Year 14,858,755$     11,183,286$     

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Crescent Valley Water Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts Variance 2023

Operating Revenues
Charges for sales and services

Water use charges 145,000$        153,427$        8,427$            157,626$        
Water hook up charges 5,000              7,885              2,885              9,363              

Total operating revenues 150,000          161,312          11,312            166,989          

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 77,000            75,333            1,667              76,689            
Employee benefits 42,000            30,793            11,207            55,903            
Services and supplies 199,800          98,673            101,127          88,735            
Depreciation 165,000          201,309          (36,309)           133,189          

Total operating expenses 483,800          406,108          77,692            354,516          

Operating Income (Loss) (333,800)        (244,796)        89,004            (187,527)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 3,000              20,873            17,873            5,665              
Net realized gain (loss) 150                  1,467              1,317              136                  
Net change in fair value

of investments -                       (3,180)             (3,180)             (448)                

Total nonoperating 
revenue (expenses) 3,150              19,160            16,010            5,353              

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (330,650)        (225,636)        105,014          (182,174)        

Capital Contributions -                       339,769          339,769          5,919              

Transfer in
General Fund -                       500,000          500,000          -                       

Change in Net Position (330,650)$      614,133          944,783$        (176,255)        

Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,984,897      2,161,152      

Net Position, End of Year 2,599,030$    1,984,897$    

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Devil’s Gate General Improvement District 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2023) 
 
 

Final Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts Variance 2023

Operating Revenues
Charges for sales and services

Water use charges 50,000$          60,098$          10,098$          57,030$          
Water hook up charges 5,000              5,200              200                  8,825              
Parcel assessments 11,500            11,463            (37)                  12,787            

Total operating revenues 66,500            76,761            10,261            78,642            

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 65,000            51,422            13,578            47,723            
Employee benefits 39,000            33,578            5,422              (50,102)           
Services and supplies 159,850          70,632            89,218            36,096            
Depreciation 185,000          145,638          39,362            150,593          

Total operating expenses 448,850          301,270          147,580          184,310          

Operating Income (Loss) (382,350)        (224,509)        157,841          (105,668)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 10,000            23,148            13,148            16,349            
Net realized gain (loss) 300                  1,755              1,455              371                  
Net change in fair value

of investments -                       18,455            18,455            (4,565)             

Total nonoperating 
revenue (expenses) 10,300            43,358            33,058            12,155            

Income (Loss) Before Capital 
Contributions (372,050)        (181,151)        190,899          (93,513)           

Capital Contributions -                       3,468              3,468              82,754            

Change in Net Position (372,050)$      (177,683)        194,367$        (10,759)           

Net Position, Beginning of Year 2,880,200      2,890,959      

Net Position, End of Year 2,702,517$    2,880,200$    

Business-Type Activities  - Enterprise Fund
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Eureka County 
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds 

June 30, 2024 

Individuals
State Eureka Range Range Department Total Property

Accident County School State of Improvement Improvement of Mineral Inter- Sale
Indigent Fund District Nevada District #1 District #6 Resources governmental Trust Fund Total

Assets
Cash and investments (1,307)$         (6,216)$         (1,409)$         44,503$        99,897$        -$  135,468$      86,239$        221,707$      
Accounts receivable 21,220          - 841 - - - 22,061          - 22,061 
Property taxes receivable 340                25,187          3,862 - - - 29,389          - 29,389 
Accrued interest receivable - - - 222                498                - 720 - 720 

Total assets 20,253          18,971          3,294             44,725          100,395        - 187,638 86,239          273,877        

Liabilities
Accounts payable - 1,787 (692) 6 12 - 1,113 - 1,113 

Net Position
Restricted for

Governments 20,253          17,184          3,986             44,719          100,383        - 186,525 - 186,525 
Individuals - - - - - - - 86,239          86,239 

Total net position 20,253$        17,184$        3,986$          44,719$        100,383$      -$  186,525$      86,239$        272,764$      

Intergovernmental
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Eureka County 
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Custodial Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Individuals
State Eureka Range Range Department Total Property

Accident County School State of Improvement Improvement of Mineral Inter- Sale
Indigent Fund District Nevada District #1 District #6 Resources governmental Trust Fund Total

Additions
Investment Income

Interest earnings -$  -$  -$  1,320$          2,488$          -$  3,808$          -$  3,808$          

Other
Taxes and fees collected for 

other governments 237,362        5,522,917     1,658,617     - - - 7,418,896     - 7,418,896 
Other - - - - 4,750             288,240        292,990        29,996          322,986 

237,362        5,522,917     1,658,617     - 4,750 288,240        7,711,886     29,996          7,741,882     

Total additions 237,362        5,522,917     1,658,617     1,320             7,238             288,240        7,715,694     29,996          7,745,690     

Deductions
Payments of taxes and fees to

other governments 224,388        5,644,122     1,685,998     27,047          33,782          288,240        7,903,577     - 7,903,577 

Changes in Net Position 12,974          (121,205)       (27,381)         (25,727)         (26,544)         - (187,883) 29,996          (157,887)       

Net Position, Beginning of Year 7,279             138,389        31,367          70,446          126,927        - 374,408 56,243          430,651        

Net Position, End of Year 20,253$        17,184$        3,986$          44,719$        100,383$      -$  186,525$      86,239$        272,764$      

Intergovernmental
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Eureka County, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented 
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eureka County, 
State of Nevada (the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control, described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2024-001 that we consider to be a 
material weakness.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Eureka County’s Response to Findings 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the County’s 
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs. The County’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
 
Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Eureka County, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Eureka County, State of Nevada’s (the County) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2024. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Eureka County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
County’s federal programs. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal 
program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 
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Auditor’s Comments 
 
 
To the Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Eureka County, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 
 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Eureka County, State of Nevada (the County) as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, nothing came to our attention that caused 
us to believe that the County failed to comply with the specific requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes 
other than those cited below. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures other matters 
may have come to our attention regarding the County’s noncompliance with the requirements of 
Nevada Revised Statutes cited below, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 
 
Current Year Statute Compliance 
 
The County conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the 
year.  
 
Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance 
 
The County conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration in the prior 
year. 
 
Disposition of Prior Year Recommendations 
 
Finding 2023-001 was reported in the current year as Finding 2024-001.  
 
Current Year Audit Recommendations 
 
See items noted in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  
 
 

 
 
 
Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Federal Financial Pass-Through Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Assistance Identifying
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Listing Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Program

Food Distribution Cluster
Emergency Food Assistance Program 10.569 n/a 26,145$         

Passed through the Nevada Division of Forestry
State and Private Forestry Cooperative Fire Assistance

2023 Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant 10.698 19-DG-11046013623 45,600 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 71,745 

U.S Department of the Interior
Direct Program

Secure Rural Schools and Communities Self-Determination 15.234 n/a 96,218           
Direct Program - Bureau of Land Management

Invasive and Noxious Plant Management 15.230 n/a 62,080           

Total U.S. Department of Interior 158,298         

U.S Department of Justice
Direct Program

Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 n/a 4,038             

U.S Department of Transportation
Direct Program - Federal Aviation Administration

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0007-018-2022 92,575           

U.S. Department of the Treasury
Passed through the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

COVID 19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 ARPA00818 49,140           
Direct Program

COVID 19 - Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund 21.032 n/a 869,553         

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 918,693         

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed through White Pine County Social Services

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) 93.569 G-21-01NVCOSR 6,409             
Passed through State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services

Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 07-000-07-1X-23 6,345
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 07-000-07-1X-24 18,941
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 07-000-04-24-23 5,667
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 07-000-04-24-24 19,817
Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) 93.053 07-000-57-NX-23 941
Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) 93.053 07-000-57-NX-24 1,260

Total Aging Cluster 52,971

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 59,380           

Total Federal Financial Assistance 1,304,729$   
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Eureka County 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 1 -  Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of Eureka County under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The 
information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Eureka County, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in financial position, changes in net 
position/fund balance or cash flows of Eureka County. 
 
 
Note 2 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. When 
applicable, such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal financial 
assistance has been provided to a subrecipient. 
 
 
Note 3 -  Indirect Cost Rate 
 
The Eureka County has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate. 
 
 
Note 4 -  Food Donation 
 
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in this schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and 
disbursed.  
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section I – Summary of Auditor Results 

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiency identified not considered to be material weaknesses None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiency identified not considered to be material weaknesses None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516 (a) No

Identification of major programs:

Federal Financial
Assistance Listing

Name of Federal Program Number

COVID 19 - Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund 21.032

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
2024-001: Report Preparation 
  Material Weakness 
 
Criteria:  Management of Eureka County, State of Nevada (the County) is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal control over 
financial reporting. One of the key components of an effective system of 
internal control is a finance staff with adequate resources available to prepare 
the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and to be capable of maintaining accounting records that do not 
require adjustments as part of the audit process. 

 
Condition:  The County staff does not prepare financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, Eide Bailly LLP prepared 
the County’s audited financial statements including related note disclosures. In 
addition, based on our audit procedures performed at June 30, 2024, we 
proposed the following audit adjustments to properly state various account 
balances in order to fairly present the financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP):  

 
• $1,753,687 reduction in depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation 

due to an incorrect life associated with an asset in the government-wide 
governmental activities.  

 
In addition, during our audit procedures we noted immaterial differences within 
the allocation of real property tax revenue amongst the funds. This appears to 
be an issue with the tax rate changes within the funds and the application of the 
abatement to the various funds.  

 
Effect: The County’s internally prepared annual financial statements submitted to the 

Commission prior to the audit do not contain all the information required by 
GAAP and could include material audit adjustments.  

 
Cause:  The County did not have adequate controls in place to ensure appropriate 

recording of transactions in accordance with GAAP. Given the daily 
responsibilities of management, the resources of time and training necessary to 
prepare the County’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP are not 
available. As a result, the County has chosen to contract with Eide Bailly LLP to 
prepare the financial statements. This circumstance is not unusual in an 
organization of this size, due to time constraints of management and costs 
associated with compliance of the standards.
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Eureka County 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Recommendation: Management should perform a detailed review of all financial statements and 
fund trial balances throughout the year to ensure that all significant transactions 
have been appropriately reported. Management should review the allocation of 
property taxes amongst the funds each year. In addition, management and 
those charged with governance should annually make the decision to accept the 
degree of risk associated with this condition because of costs or other 
considerations. 

Views of Responsible Officials:  We agree with the finding and the County believes the most cost-effective 
approach is to outsource the financial preparation function to the external 
auditors. In addition, lives placed on capital assets will be reviewed for 
reasonableness and management will work with the software provider for 
property taxes to ensure the allocation is appropriate.  

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

No federal award findings were reported for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
Eureka County Television District, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, 
and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the 
District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. 
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We have applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis in accordance 
with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 12, 
2024, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 

 
 
 
Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 
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Eureka County Television District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
As management of the Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada, we offer readers of the Eureka County 
Television District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Eureka County Television District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The assets of the Eureka County Television District’s governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at 
June 30, 2024 by $1,338,371 (net position). Of this amount $822,498 (unrestricted) may be used to meet 
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• At June 30, 2024, the total fund balance for the General Fund was $822,328.  
• Eureka County Television District at June 30, 2024 had no bonded debt.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Eureka County Television District’s basic 
financial statements. Eureka County Television District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Eureka 
County Television District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of Eureka County Television District’s assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Eureka County Television District 
is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Eureka County Television District that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The governmental 
activities of Eureka County Television District include the general government function. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9-10 of this report. 
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Eureka County Television District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Fund financial statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Eureka County Television District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The Eureka County Television District has one fund, which is the General Fund. 
 
Governmental funds 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
 
Eureka County Television District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary 
comparison schedule has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements and reconciliations can be found on pages 11-16 of this 
report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 17-25 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, Eureka County Television District’s net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government’s financial position. In the case of Eureka County Television District, assets exceeded liabilities by 
$1,338,371 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
A large portion of Eureka County Television District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
improvements, buildings, machinery, and equipment). There is no outstanding related debt used to acquire 
those assets. Eureka County Television District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  
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Eureka County Television District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
The following table provides a comparative summary of Eureka County Television District’s net position: 
 

2024 2023

Current and Other Assets 831,264$          767,114$          
Capital Assets 515,873            558,757            

Total assets 1,347,137         1,325,871         

Current Liabilities 8,766                2,830                

Net Position
Investment in capital assets 515,873            558,757            
Unrestricted 822,498            764,284            

Total net position 1,338,371$      1,323,041$      

Eureka County Television District’s Net Position

 
Eureka County Television District’s unrestricted net position of $822,498 may be used to meet the government’s 
ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors. 
 
The District no longer has any benefitted employees and is therefore no longer subject to a net pension liability, 
deferred outflow of resources or deferred inflow of resources related to pensions. The salaries for the District 
are a stipend for the Board members. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, Eureka County Television District was able to report positive balances in all 
categories of net position. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
 
Governmental activities 
Governmental activities increased Eureka County Television District’s net position by $15,330. Overall District 
revenues increased $22,153 during fiscal year 2024 compared to fiscal year 2023. This was mainly a result of an 
increase in investment earnings, refunds, interest and rent space on the mountain top repeater sites.  
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Eureka County Television District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
The following table provides a comparative summary of Eureka County Television District’s changes in net 
position: 
 

2024 2023
Revenues

General revenues
Taxes 134,503$          136,183$          
Intergovernmental 55,078              55,078              
Other 70,147              46,314              

Total revenues 259,728            237,575            

Expenses
General government 244,398            201,219            

Change in Net Position 15,330              36,356              

Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,323,041         1,286,685         

Net Position, End of Year 1,338,371$      1,323,041$      

Eureka County Television District’s Changes in Net Position

 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
Major Governmental Fund Balance Changes 
The Eureka County Television District General Fund ending fund balance increased to $822,328 in fiscal year 
2024 compared to $763,686 at the end of fiscal year 2023. This is mainly due to a decrease in capital outlay.  
 
Budgetary Highlights - Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 
The budget statements reflect a comparison of budgeted revenues and expenditures to actual for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget as filed with the Nevada 
Department of Taxation. 
 
Significant Budgetary Variances Between the Final Budget and Actual Results 
 
General Fund 
Revenues 
In the General Fund, there was an increase in revenues overall. Revenues were greater than budgeted by 
$48,823. The General Fund revenues were $260,156 and the budgeted total was $211,333. The increase can 
mainly be attributed to increased rents, interest earnings and a decreased loss on investments. Rents were 
$18,270 more than budgeted, interest earnings were $12,825 more than budgeted, and the net increase in fair 
value of investments were $12,231 more than budgeted.  
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Eureka County Television District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Expenditures and Fund Balance 
Actual expenditures were $201,514, which was $114,511 less than the budget appropriations for the year. 
Overall, the total ending fund balance was $822,328, which is $196,681 more than budgeted.  
 
Capital Assets 
Eureka County Television District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2024 
amounts to $515,873 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes buildings, 
improvements, machinery and equipment. Eureka County Television District’s net change in investment in 
capital assets for fiscal year 2024 was decreased by $42,884. Current year major additions included $26,110 in 
camera installation.  
 
Additional information regarding capital assets can be found at Note 3 on page 24. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 

• The tax rate assessed will not change in fiscal year 2025 for the District. Revenues and expenditures are 
expected to be consistent with fiscal year 2024. 

• Projects budgeted for the District in fiscal year 2025 include a camera system at Tank Hill. 
• The unemployment rate for Eureka County as of June 30, 2024 was 6.89 percent, which is a higher rate 

from one year ago. The State of Nevada average unemployment rate of 5.2 percent exceeds the national 
average rate of 4.1 percent. 

• Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.  
 
All of these factors were considered in preparing Eureka County Television District’s budget for the 2025 fiscal 
year. 
 
Eureka County Television District has appropriated $252,725 for General Fund spending in the 2025 fiscal year 
budget.  
 
Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Eureka County Television District’s finances for 
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Eureka 
Comptroller, P.O. Box 852, Eureka, Nevada 89316, Telephone Number 775-237-6128, E-mail 
ktodd@eurekacountynv.gov. 
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Eureka County Television District 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

Governmental
Activities  

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 804,981$          
Due from other governments 22,002              
Taxes receivable, delinquent 192                    
Accrued interest receivable 4,089                

831,264            
Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 515,873            

Total assets 1,347,137         

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 7,193                
Due to other governments 1,573                

Total liabilities 8,766                

Net Position
Investment in capital assets 515,873            
Unrestricted 822,498            

Total net position 1,338,371$      
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Eureka County Television District 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in 
Net Position

Operating Capital 
Grants and Grants and Governmental

Expenses Contributions Contributions Activities

Primary Government
Governmental activities

General government 244,398$          -$                       -$                       (244,398)$        

General Revenues
Property taxes 134,503            
Various state collected pass-through revenues not

restricted to specific programs 55,078              
Interest and investment earnings 30,056              
Miscellaneous revenue 40,091              

Total general revenues 259,728            

Change in Net Position 15,330

Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,323,041         

Net Position, End of Year 1,338,371$      

Program Revenues

Functions/Programs
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Eureka County Television District 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

General
Fund

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 804,981$          
Due from other governments 22,002              
Taxes receivable, delinquent 192                    
Accrued interest receivable 4,089                

Total assets 831,264$          

Liabilities
Accounts payable 7,193$              
Due to other governments 1,573                

Total liabilities 8,766                

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - delinquent property taxes 170                    

Fund Balance
Assigned - subsequent year operations 15,582              
Unassigned 806,746            

Total fund balance 822,328            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balance 831,264$          
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Eureka County Television District 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balance, governmental funds 822,328$          

Capital assets net of the related depreciation are not reported in the 
governmental funds financial statements because they are not 
current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement
of net position.

Capital assets 2,715,449$      
Less accumulated depreciation (2,199,576)       515,873            

Deferred inflows of resources for delinquent property taxes represent 
amounts that are not yet available to fund current expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds balance sheet. 170                    

Net position of governmental activities 1,338,371$      
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Eureka County Television District 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

General
Fund

Revenues
Taxes 134,931$          
Intergovernmental revenues 55,078              
Miscellaneous 70,147              

Total revenues 260,156            

Expenditures
Current

General government 175,404            
Capital outlay 26,110              

Total expenditures 201,514            

Net Change in Fund Balance 58,642              

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 763,686            

Fund Balance, End of Year 822,328$          
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Eureka County Television District 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 58,642$            

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in 
governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are 
shown in the statement of net position and allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement
of activities.

Capital outlay to purchase capital assets 26,110$            
Current depreciation expense (68,994)             (42,884)             

Property taxes that are collected in time to pay obligations of the 
current period are reported as revenue in the fund statements. 
However, amounts that relate to prior periods that first become 
available in the current period should not be reported as
revenue in the statement of activities.

Current year change in unavailable property taxes revenue (428)                  

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 15,330$            
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Eureka County Television District 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Taxes
Ad valorem taxes

Secured-real property 66,823$          66,823$          50,258$          (16,565)$        
State unitary tax -                       -                       3,770              3,770              
Personal property roll -                       -                       8,618              8,618              
Net proceeds of mines 62,932            62,932            72,285            9,353              

129,755          129,755          134,931          5,176              

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenue

Consolidated tax 55,078            55,078            55,078            -                       

Miscellaneous
Rents 20,000            20,000            38,270            18,270            
Refunds 1,500              1,500              1,821              321                  
Interest earned 5,000              5,000              17,825            12,825            
Net change in fair value

of investments -                       -                       12,231            12,231            

26,500            26,500            70,147            43,647            

Total revenues 211,333          211,333          260,156          48,823            

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County Television District 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
Expenditures

General government
Television administration

Salaries 26,000$          26,000$          12,000$          14,000$          
Employee benefits 3,000              3,000              748                  2,252              
Services and supplies 92,450            92,450            44,087            48,363            

121,450          121,450          56,835            64,615            

Tank Hill
Services and supplies 28,875            28,875            18,419            10,456            
Capital outlay 10,000            10,000            8,704              1,296              

38,875            38,875            27,123            11,752            

Mary's Mountain
Services and supplies 29,000            29,000            20,916            8,084              

29,000            29,000            20,916            8,084              

Prospect Peak
Services and supplies 55,700            55,700            39,843            15,857            
Capital outlay 10,000            10,000            8,703              1,297              

65,700            65,700            48,546            17,154            

Argenta Ridge
Services and supplies 51,000            51,000            39,391            11,609            
Capital outlay 10,000            10,000            8,703              1,297              

61,000            61,000            48,094            12,906            

Total expenditures 316,025          316,025          201,514          114,511          

Net Change in Fund Balance (104,692)        (104,692)        58,642            163,334          

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 730,339          730,339          763,686          33,347            

Fund Balance, End of Year 625,647$        625,647$        822,328$        196,681$        

Budgeted Amounts
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada, (the “District”) is a local government created and operated 
under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 318. The District is governed by an elected Board 
of five members who possess final decision-making authority and is held primarily accountable for those 
decisions. The District is responsible for establishing spending limitations, funding any deficits and borrowing 
funds and/or issuing bonds to finance county system operations and construction. Eureka County provides 
assistance with day-to-day operations, budget preparation and accounting functions of the District. The Eureka 
County Commission must also approve and sign the tentative and final budgets along with the District Board of 
Directors.  
 
The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for establishing these accounting and financial principles.  
 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are as follows:  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The financial statements included herein present the District. The District has no component units and is a 
discretely presented component unit of Eureka County.  
 
The Eureka County Television District is a special district providing television broadcast services to Eureka 
County television citizens. 
 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements and the fund financial statements. The 
government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities.  
 
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the District at year-end. The statement of 
activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include 1) charges to patrons who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and revenues not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Those programs or functions with 
a net cost not supported by program revenues are generally dependent on general-purposes revenues, such as 
taxes, to remain operational. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year 
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Grant revenues are reflected as unearned revenue if 
funds have been received prior to meeting such requirements.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available. Gross receipts and sales taxes are considered “measurable” when in the hands of intermediary 
collecting agents or governments. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period. 
Anticipated refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable, 
and the payment seems certain. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to employment 
benefits, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual, and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the District. 
 
The major revenue sources of the District include tax revenues, ad valorem (property) taxes, consolidated tax 
(sales tax), rents, and interest income. Ad valorem taxes are reflected as deferred inflows of resources in the 
individual funds if they are not available to finance the activities of the current period.  
 
The District’s financial records are organized on the basis of funds, which are independent fiscal and accounting 
entities with a separate set of self-balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their 
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and 
contractual provisions.  
 
The District reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

• General Fund – The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all 
financial resources and costs of operations traditionally associated with the District, which are not 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
Eureka County Television District adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated in 
Section 354 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The District is required to legally adopt budgets for all funds except 
fiduciary funds. The budgets are filed as a matter of public record with the Clerk of the Board of Eureka County 
and State Department of Taxation. The District staff uses the following procedures to establish, modify and 
control the budgetary information that is reflected in these financial statements. 
 

1. On or before April 15, the Eureka County Commission and the District Board file a tentative budget with 
the Nevada Department of Taxation for all funds for the fiscal year beginning the following July 1. The 
tentative budget is prepared by fund, function and department and includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

2. Public budget hearings on the tentative budget are held in May to obtain taxpayer comments. 
3. Prior to June 1, the Board/Commission indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative budget and 

adopts a final budget by a majority vote of the Board/Commissioners. The final budget must then be 
forwarded to the Nevada Department of Taxation for final approval. The above dates may be adjusted 
as necessary during legislative years. 

4. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to enhance management 
control during the year, however encumbrance accounting is not utilized. All appropriations lapse at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

5. The appropriated budget amounts may be transferred between functions, funds, or contingency 
accounts if the transfer does not increase the total appropriations for fiscal year amounts subject to 
advisement of the Board of Directors at the next subsequent meeting and must be recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting. Budget augmentations and amendments in excess of original budgetary 
amounts require prior approval of the Eureka County Commission and the District Board of Directors, 
following a scheduled and noticed public hearing. 

6. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP). Budgeted amounts reflect budget amendments made during the 
year in accordance with the above procedures.  

7. In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the 
various functions of the individual governmental funds, except for bond repayments, short-term 
financing repayment and any other long-term contract expressly authorized by law, and certain other 
items specified in NRS 354.626.  

 
Property Taxes 
 
All real property in Eureka County, which the District is located in, is assigned a parcel number in accordance 
with state law, with each parcel being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used 
to adjust the appraised value during the years between physical appraisals. The assessed valuation of the 
property and its improvements is assessed at 35% of "taxable value" as defined by statute. The amount of tax 
levied is determined by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in which the 
property is located. In 2005, the Nevada State Legislature passed Assembly Bill 489 which provides for a partial 
abatement of the property tax levied on qualified property. For qualified property, the abatement may limit the 
increase of property taxes based on the previous year’s assessed value. 
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June 30, 2024 
 
 
The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at $5.00 per hundred dollars of assessed 
valuation; however, as a result of the 1979 legislative session, the tax rate was further limited to $3.64 per 
hundred dollars of assessed valuation unless the electorate approves an additional rate. Legislation passed 
during the 1981 legislative session provided for a reduction in the property tax rate based upon a legislatively 
derived formula.  
 
To help offset this loss in property tax revenue, the state sales tax was increased from 3.5% to 5.75% by the 
State Legislature. The 1991 legislature further increased the minimum sales tax to 6.5%. This increase in sales 
tax, less .5% of collections to cover administrative costs, is being returned to the local governments as a part of 
the consolidated tax. The amount of sales tax to be distributed to each governmental entity in Nevada is 
determined by a formula developed and approved by the State Legislature. 
 
Taxes on real property are levied and the lien on the property attached on July 1 (the levy date) of the year for 
which the taxes are levied. Taxes are due on the third Monday in August; however, they may be paid in four 
installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October, January and March. Any 
tax paid more than ten days late is assessed a penalty. In the event of nonpayment, the Eureka County Treasurer 
records a Trustee’s Certificate holding the property for a period of two years after the first Monday in June of 
the year the certificate is dated, unless sooner redeemed upon payment of taxes, penalties and costs together 
with interest at the rate of 10% per year from the date the taxes were due until paid. If delinquent taxes are not 
paid within the two-year redemption period, the Eureka County Treasurer, obtains a tax deed to the property 
free of all encumbrances. Upon receipt of a deed, the Eureka County Treasurer may sell the property to satisfy 
the tax lien once all requirements are met. 
 
Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and 
the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax 
rates described above. The major classifications of personal property are commercial, mobile homes, marine, 
aircraft and agricultural. In Eureka County, taxes on motor vehicles are also collected by the Eureka County 
Assessor and remitted to the State. The taxes are then returned to the County of origin to be apportioned based 
on a statutory formula as part of Consolidated Tax Revenue. 
 
Eureka County collects property taxes for all entities with a tax rate within the County and remits the tax 
collected the month following collection to the appropriate entity. 
 
Property tax revenue and the related receivable have been recognized for property tax assessments in the fiscal 
year for which they were levied, provided that such taxes were collected within 60 days after the District’s year-
end. Taxes receivable not collected within such time period are recorded as unavailable revenue at the District’s 
year-end in the individual fund financial statements. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand or demand deposits and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The District’s cash and 
cash equivalents are held by the Eureka County Treasurer in the County’s pooled cash accounts and invested in 
accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes. 
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June 30, 2024 
 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued in accordance with policy adopted as detailed below: 
 

1. All assets acquired are recorded at cost. 
2. Expenditures over $3,500 are capitalized as capital assets. 
3. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date donated. 

 
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, 
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the 
assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives 
by type of asset is as follows: 
 

Improvements other than buildings 5 - 10 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment and vehicles 5 - 10 years

 
The District reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future 
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected 
future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which 
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this 
assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, 
and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment 
there was no impairment at June 30, 2024. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures by the General Fund upon acquisition. 
 
Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.  
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide Statement of Net Position utilizes a net position 
presentation. Net position is categorized as investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. Investment 
in capital assets includes capital assets net of depreciation. The District currently does not have restricted net 
position and unrestricted net position represents all available financial resources of the District. 
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Fund Financial Statements – In the governmental fund financial statements, the following classifications of fund 
balance are used: 
 

• Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in form or are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The District has no nonspendable fund balance. 

• Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions, 
enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the law or regulations of other governments. The District has no restricted fund balance. 

• Committed – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund balance may only be 
established, rescinded, or changed pursuant to resolutions passed by the District, the District’s highest 
level of decision-making authority. The District has no committed fund balance. 

• Assigned – Amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the definitions 
of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the District’s adopted policy, amounts may be assigned by 
the Budget Officer under the authorization of the Board. 

• Unassigned – Amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to a specific purpose within 
the General Fund. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available, 
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of 
Directors have provided otherwise in their commitment or assignment actions. 
 
The District does not have a minimum fund balance policy.  
 
Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources  
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position/Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate statement element represents the consumption of net 
position/fund balance that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense) until then. The District does not report any deferred outflows of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position/Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate statement element represents an acquisition of 
net position/fund balance that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The District reflects deferred inflows of resources which are unavailable revenue 
reported in the government fund balance sheet for delinquent property taxes under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting.  
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Net Proceeds of Mines Tax 
 
Net proceeds of mines are paid on an annual, calendar year basis. For the year ended June 30, 2024, net 
proceeds of mines received on actual business from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 are reflected in 
the financial statements. Net proceeds of mines from January 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024 are neither 
measurable nor available to meet obligations existing at June 30, 2024. Overpayments must be credited toward 
the payment due the next calendar year, the amount of the remaining overpayment, after being credited to any 
other tax or fee due from the taxpayer, may be refunded. The overall financial impact to the District of future 
additional amounts due or future credits is not determinable at June 30, 2024 and are not reflected in these 
financial statements.  
 
Risk Management 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries of employees; and natural disasters, as are all entities. The District has joined 
together with similar public agencies (cities, counties and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to 
create a pool under the Nevada Inter-local Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) is 
a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its 
members. 
 
The District pays an annual premium and specific deductibles, as necessary to POOL for its general insurance 
coverage. POOL is considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide liability coverage for its members up to 
$10,000,000 per event and a $13,000,000 general aggregate per member. Property, crime and equipment 
breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various sub-limits established 
for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities. 
 
The District has also joined together with similar public agencies, under the Nevada Inter-local Cooperation Act, 
to create an intergovernmental self-insured association for workers compensation insurance, the Public Agency 
Compensation Trust (PACT). 
 
The District pays premiums based on payroll costs to PACT. PACT is considered a self-sustaining pool that will 
provide coverage based on established statutory limits. 
 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years.
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 2 -  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
A summary schedule of cash and cash equivalents for the District at June 30, 2024 is as follows:  
 
Balances Classified by Depository and Category

Deposits
Cash and investments held in Eureka County pooled cash 804,981$          

 
Custodial Credit Risk – the risk that in the event of bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned. The 
District’s bank deposits are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized by the 
Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral Pool. The District does not have a formal policy relating to 
custodial credit risk but follows NRS. The District participates in the State of Nevada Collateral Pool which 
requires depositories to maintain as collateral acceptable securities having a fair market value of at least 102 
percent of the amount of the uninsured balances of the public money held by the depository. Under NRS 
356.360, the State Treasurer manages and monitors all collateral for all public monies deposited by members of 
the pool. As of June 30, 2024, all deposits were collateralized under the Nevada Pooled Collateral Program or 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  
 
 
Note 3 -  Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, being depreciated

Improvements other than 
buildings 54,599$            -$                       -$                       54,599$            

Buildings and improvements 324,539            -                         -                         324,539            
Equipment and vehicles 2,310,201         26,110              -                         2,336,311         

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 2,689,339         26,110              -                         2,715,449         

Less accumulated depreciation 2,130,582         68,994              -                         2,199,576         

Total Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, net 558,757$          (42,884)$           -$                       515,873$          

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities

General government 68,994$            
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Eureka County Television District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 
Note 4 -  Rents  
 
On March 1, 2014, the District established a lease with Mt. Wheeler Power to allow the use of the 
communication tower and/or equipment shelter at the Prospect Peak site. Under the terms of this lease, 
monthly payments of $200 are made to the District until March 2019. This lease agreement was renewable and 
was renewed for an additional 5-years, ending March 2024. The lease continued on a monthly basis through 
June 2024. The lease contains a 60-day termination clause under certain circumstances by either party. 
 
On March 6, 2014, the District established a lease with GRP Pan, LLC and Eureka County to allow the use of the 
communication tower and/or equipment shelter at the Prospect Peak site. Under the terms of this lease, 
monthly payments of $375 are made to the District until March 2019. This lease agreement was renewable and 
was renewed for an additional 5-years, ending March 2024. The lease contains a 60-day termination clause 
under certain circumstances by either party. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the District established a lease with T-Mobile West, LLC to allow the use of 
the communication tower and/or equipment shelter at the Prospect Peak site. Under the terms of this lease, 
monthly payments of $1,500 for rent and $200 for utilities are made to the District until September 2022. This 
lease agreement is renewable for additional 5-years terms at 110% of the rental payment of the prior period. 
The lease was renewed for an additional 5-years, ending September 2027. Monthly payments of $1,850 for rent 
and $200 for utilities are made during this period. The lease contains a 90-day termination clause by either 
party. 
 
On November 1, 2023, the District established a lease with White Pine Television District to allow the use of the 
communication tower and/or equipment shelter at the Prospect Peak site. Under the terms of this lease, 
monthly payments of $100 are made to the District until November 2028. The lease contains a 60-day 
termination clause under certain circumstances by either party. 
 
On August 1, 2023, the District established a lease with Lander County General Improvement District #1 to allow 
the use of the communication tower and/or equipment shelter at the Argenta Peak site. Under the terms of this 
lease, monthly payments of $800 are made to the District until July 2025. The lease contains a 30-day 
termination clause under certain circumstances by either party. 
 
 
Note 5 -  Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Administrative Code 
 
The District confirmed to all significant statutory and legal constraints on its financial administration during the 
year.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Eureka County Television District, 
State of Nevada (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 
2024-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.



 

27 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Eureka County Television District’s Response to Finding 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s 
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 
and Responses. The District’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
 
Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 
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Auditor’s Comments 

To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada 
Eureka, Nevada 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major 
fund of the Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada (the “District”) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, nothing came to our attention 
that caused us to believe that the District failed to comply with the specific requirements of Nevada 
Revised Statutes. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such 
noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures other matters may have come to 
our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes, 
insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 

Current Year Statute Compliance 

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the 
year. 

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance 

There were no prior year statute violations.  

Disposition of Prior Year Recommendations 

Finding 2023-001 was reported in the current year as Finding 2024-001. 

Current Year Audit Recommendations 

See items noted in the Schedule of Findings and Responses.  

Elko, Nevada 
December 12, 2024 
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Eureka County Television District 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 
 
2024-001: Report Preparation 
  Significant Deficiency  
 
Criteria:  Management of Eureka County Television District, State of Nevada (the District) 

is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal 
control over financial reporting. One of the key components of an effective 
system of internal control is a finance staff with adequate resources available to 
prepare the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  

 
Condition:  The District staff does not prepare financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, Eide Bailly LLP prepared 
the District’s audited financial statements including related note disclosures. 

 
Effect: The District’s internally prepared annual financial statements submitted to the 

Board prior to the audit do not contain all the information required by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  

 
Cause: Given the daily responsibilities of management, the resources of time and 

training necessary to prepare the District’s financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles are not available. As a result, the 
District has chosen to contract with Eide Bailly LLP to prepare the financial 
statements. This circumstance is not unusual in an organization of this size, due 
to time constraints of management and costs associated with compliance of the 
standards. 

 
Recommendation:  Management should perform a detailed review of all financial statements and 

fund trial balances throughout the year to ensure that all significant transactions 
have been appropriately reported. In addition, management and those charged 
with governance should annually make the decision to accept the degree of risk 
associated with this condition because of costs or other considerations. 

 
Management’s Response:  We agree with the finding and the District believes the most cost-effective 

approach is to outsource the financial preparation function to the external 
auditors.  



Black Rock Resource Services LLC 
Natural Resource Services 

P.O. Box 360, Cedarville, CA 96104 
 (530) 640-1451 
EXHIBIT A  

 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES: 

CLASSIFICATION       HOURLY RATE  
    
PRINCIPALS: 
 
 Professional Land Surveyor, Water Right Surveyor,  
  Landman, GIS, CAD, Manager, Expert testimony  $ 225 
 
SURVEY CREWS, WITH SURVEY GRADE GPS: 
 1 Person          225 
 2 People          325 
 
SURVEY GRADE GPS EQUIPMENT BEYOND BASIC SETUP: 
 per Receiver            40 
  
OFFICE - MAPPING, PLOTTING: 
 Principal, research, mapping, etc.        225 
  
DIRECT EXPENSES: 
 Copies, supplies, etc.       cost + 10% 
 
TRAVEL EXPENSES (outside of Cedarville, CA): 
 Non-emergency travel time      125 

Standard Per Diem meals      75/day 
 Motels, Airlines, rental vehicles     at cost 
 Camp costs are $75 per person per day with no motel cost 
 
VEHICLE MILEAGE (outside of Cedarville, CA) : 
 Standard mileage       IRS rate 

                                                 
 All charges are F.O.B Cedarville, CA. 
 



   
EXHIBIT B 

 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 

 
 
CONSULTANT’s Care and Skill: 
 

The only warranty or guarantee made by CONSULTANT is that all work performed by 
CONSULTANT in connection with this CONTRACT shall be performed with the care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by Professional Land Surveyors practicing under similar 
conditions at the same time and in the same or a similar locality. 

 
Limitation on Liabilities: 
 

Upon completion of the PROJECT outlined in this CONTRACT, CLIENT’s Liabilities 
shall be limited to the maximum amount allowed under this CONTRACT, plus any 
additional amounts that are subsequently approved by CLIENT in writing. 

 
CONSULTANT’s Liabilities for failure to complete the PROJECT according to the level 
of Care and Skill described above shall be limited to the actual amount paid by CLIENT 
for services performed. 

 
Applicable Law: 
 

This agreement shall be interpreted and enforced according to the laws of The State of 
Nevada. 

 
Assignment: 
 

This agreement may not be assigned by CONSULTANT, unless such assignment is 
authorized in writing by CLIENT. 

 
Attorney’s Fees: 
 

Should either party bring suit against the other in connection with this CONTRACT, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys fees 
in connection with such suit. 

 
Access to Worksite: 
 

CLIENT agrees that it will make Access to the PROJECT available to CONSULTANT at 
all times this CONTRACT is in effect. 

 









 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  25563360
Created On:  Nov-20-2024
Valid Until:   Dec-31-2024

 
NV-County of Eureka  

 
Misty Rowley
Phone: 775-237-5201
Fax:  
Email: it@eurekacountynv.gov

 
Ian Golden
Phone: 
Fax:
Email: ian_golden@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Perimeter Defense Plan 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_PERM-DEF_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $38.72 $3,988.16

 
2 Mimecast C1 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_C1_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2024

103 $33.44 $3,444.32

 
3 Mimecast A1 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_A1_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $51.92 $5,347.76

 
4 Add On- Secure Messaging 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_SM_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $10.56 $1,087.68

 
5 Privacy Pack 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_HPUSA_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $7.04 $725.12

 
6 Add On - Sync and Recover for Exchange and Office 365 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_SREO365_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $20.24 $2,084.72

 
7 DMARC Analyzer – T4 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_DMA-T4_1_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 

1 $4,400.00 $4,400.00



   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

 
8 DMARC Analyzer – Managed Service – T4 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_DMA-MS-T4_1_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

1 $550.00 $550.00

 
9 Advanced BEC Protection 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_ADV-BEC_100_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

103 $35.20 $3,625.60

 
10 Advanced Support 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_ADV-SP_1_A 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

1 $5,610.88 $5,610.88

 
11 DMARC Analyzer - Implementation 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_DMARC-IMP_1_OO 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

1 $0.00 $0.00

 
12 PS - Mimecast Consulting Services 

   Mimecast - Part#: M_PSD_1_OO 
   Contract Name: OMNIA Partners - IT Solutions 
   Contract #: 2018011-02 
   Coverage Term: Dec-20-2024 – Dec-19-2025

1 $0.00 $0.00

 
Total $30,864.24

Additional Comments

Mimecast has a no returns policy.

Please Note: all MIMECAST maintenance/subscriptions are auto-renewed and require cancellation prior to 90 days of the executed
renewal date. Customers who purchased Mimecast before August 2023 will still fall under Mimecast’s 30-day auto-renewal policy. 

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations. 

This manufacturer has the potential for auto-renewal. You will receive an automated notification prior to the cancellation deadline
informing you of the upcoming renewal date. If SHI doesn’t receive written confirmation to cancel the renewal within the
manufacturer’s required time period prior to the renewal date, SHI will automatically be invoiced against the original PO. Once SHI
has been invoiced, you will be invoiced against the original PO. If your company requires a new PO, please be sure to provide that
prior to invoicing.

State of Nevada NASPO Contract: ADSPO16-130651
PA #8496

First time user for SHI Direct website? Please use the following information when registering.

Nevada Gov't:
http://www.publicsector.shidirect.com/slg/nv
Token: 8521
Access Key: PQ7Z7MHZ!A

Invoice terms are Net30. Invoices not paid within Net30 will be assessed 1% late charge per month until paid.



Returns on unopened, not yet downloaded software will be granted up to 30 days, unless otherwise stated. After 30 days the
publisher may deny request for return and/or will include a restocking fee.

The products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract referenced under
that applicable line item.



 

              
                

              
                 

               

 

 

      
   

         
           

         
         

          
         

            
          

            
          

   

             
         

          

      

EXTENSION | EUREKA COUNTY  
Annual Report  | Fiscal  Year 2023  - 2024  

University of Nevada, Reno Extension is engaged in Nevada communities, presenting research-based knowledge to 
address critical community needs in the areas of agriculture; children, youth and families; community and economic 
development; horticulture; health and nutrition; and natural resources. It is a county-state-federal partnership providing 
practical education to people, businesses and communities. It is a unit of the University’s College of Agriculture, 
Biotechnology & Natural Resources and plays a vital role in fulfilling the University’s land-grant mission. 

Extension,  Eureka  County  Office  
641  S.  Main  Street  Eureka,  NV  89316  

Jessica (JJ) Hendrickson, Extension County Coordinator 
jessicahendrickson@unr.edu | 775-237-6135 

PEOPLE IN EXTENSION  

Jessica JJ Hendrickson joined the team as Extension County Coordinator for 
White Pine and Eureka counties on June 24, 2024. Her primary role as 
Extension County Coordinator is to work with community members to identify 
community-based educational needs and bring in programming that meet those 
needs in the areas of agriculture, children, youth and families, horticulture, 
community development, natural resources, and health and nutrition. Another 
role of the position is to supervise the White Pine and Eureka Extension offices 
and staff to ensure programing address community needs. 

As the county coordinator for White Pine and Eureka counties, Hendrickson looks forward to 
engaging with community members and introducing valuable programs tailored to the unique needs 
of each community. 

Gary McCuin transitioned roles from a split appointment between Extension as the Eureka County 
Extension Educator and (GBREC) Great Basin Research and Experiment 
Station as Extension Center Director to Extension Agricultural Specialist on 
January 1, 2024. 

His principal  role  as  Extension  Agricultural  Specialist  in  Eureka  County  is to  
advance  agricultural  production  in  Eureka  County  and  across  Nevada  by  
researching  and  teaching  producers  innovative,  sustainable  solutions to  
agriculture  issues.  Another  role  is to  assist  producers in  identifying  and  
understanding  issues that  are  affecting  their  operation/s and  research  those  

issues to  discover  practical  ways in  which  new  knowledge  can  be  applied  to  resolve  or  prevent  those  
issues.   

mailto:jessicahendrickson@unr.edu


 
                

                 
                 

    
          

 

 
                 

                    

              
               

     

              
             

PEOPLE  IN  EXTENSION  CONTINUED  

Yelena  Hage  is our  Administrative  Assistant  here  at  the  Eureka  Extension  Office.  
She  has worked  for  the  GBREC  (Great  Basin  Research  and  Extension  Center)  
since  June  of  2023  and  recently  in  May  of  2024  accepted  a  full-time  position  that  
has her  working  the  Extension  Office  side  of  things,  as well  as still  offering  sup-
port for GBREC. She plays an important role in organizing, managing, and  keep-
ing  our  office  running.  While  she  is mainly  responsible  for  the  clerical  side  of  
things you  can  often  find  her  helping  the  community  with  radon  kits,  signing  up  
the  local  4-H  youth  for  program  activities,  or  helping  with  the  ram  sale.   

Please do not hesitate to stop in and say hello to her or ask for information on 
any of the Programs that we provide. She is here to help and link our community to the specialists in 
our area regarding a wide range of topics, including but not limited to; farming, ranching, soil heath, 
improving nutrition and food safety, water testing, how to prepare and respond to emergencies and 
protecting our environment, as well as everything else in-between. 

Tosha  Kerby  is our  Community  Based  Instructor  (CBI  lll)  She  works primarily  
with  the  4-H  Program  and  focuses  on  Youth  Development  within  our  communi-
ties.  She  started  with  the  University  in  March  of  2020.  Tosha  brings knowledge  
of  the  4-H  program  as  she  herself  is  4-H  Alumni.  As  the  Extension  CBI  she  
plays a  vital  role  in  supporting  the  development  of  area  youth,  particularly  
through  4-H  programs.  Her  responsibilities include  organizing  community  re-
sources,  overseeing  the  community  clubs,  and  coordinating  various extension  
and  outreach  programs for  youth  ages 5- 19  years old.  These  programs  en-
compass workshops,  after-school  activities,  youth  mentoring,  special  interest  

programs,  summer  camps,  and  day  camps,  all  covering  a  wide  range  of  topics and  themes.   

Please reach out if you are interested in volunteering and sharing your passions with the youth of 
our community or if you have a youth that you think would love to be a part of 4-H. 

4-H  &  YOUTH  DEVELOPMENT  

The key to the 4-H Program is the development of life skills that help participants lead productive 
and satisfying lives. The program focused on fostering skills that are healthy and productive for both 
youth and their communities. 

This year we helped youth meet their basic needs and acquire the competencies important to their 
immediate and future success both within the 4-H program, as well as the community. 

The  Eureka  4-H  Program  had  a  total  of  12  Volunteers  that  helped  57  youth  that  are  currently  en-
rolled  in  the  program,  with  over  175  Projects done  among  them.  Our  4-H  workshops  also  included  

28  non  4-H  enrolled  youth.  Some  of  those  projects include  but  are  not  
limited  to:  

Sewing,  Floral  Arrangements,  Hunter  Safety,  Wood-burning,  Photog-
raphy,  Educational  Posters,  Horse,  Market  Livestock,  Show  Livestock,  
Shooting  Sports and  more!  

During  the  year  we  had  several  new  volunteers join  forces with  exist-

ing  volunteers  and  leaders contributing  to  800  volunteer  hours being  
poured  back  into  the  Eureka  County  Community  by  way  of  teaching  

youth  and  helping  them  expand  their  knowledge  through  hands on  experiences.  4-H  youth  complet-

ed  540  community  service  hours directly  benefiting  the  Eureka  community.  In  total,  both  groups con-



 

 
    

   

tributed  1,340  hours of  time  into  the  Eureka  County  community.  The  monetary  value  of  a  volunteer’s 

time  in  the  state  of  Nevada  is  $29.76  per  hour.  The  fiscal  impact  of  the  time  contributed  back to  com-

munity  equaled  $39,878.40.  This  means,  $39,878.40  would  have  been  required  to  accomplish  the  
time  our  volunteers and  youth  freely  gave  back to  the  community!  Although  this number  is  stagger-

ing,  the  positive  impacts contributed  by  the  volunteers,  leaders and  youth  into  life-long  memories,  
experiences and  knowledge  outweighs a  monetary  value.    

EVENTS  

Some  events during  this year  included  the  Eureka  Lyons  Club  Pumpkin Patch where  4-H  youth  
helped  sell  pumpkins  and  raise  money  by  setting  up  fun  games during  the  event  as  well  as  a  photo  
booth  for  the  community  to  take  family  photos in  front  of.  The  youth  and  their  families also  baked  
goods to  contribute  to  the  bake  sale.   

We  also  had  the  Eureka  Jr.  Livestock  Club  Show  and  Sale  this year  with  22  participants.  26  Buy-
ers Registered  for  the  Sale  and  showed  up  to  show  their  support for  all  the  hard  work  our  Youth  Ex-
hibitors  put  in  on  their  Market  Livestock  Projects.  17  total  Market  Animals were  sold  during  the  Sale.   

A Valentines  Day  Party  was held  on  February  14th  during  school  hours to  provide  activities and  en-
richment  for  some  of  the  local  homeschool  families.  This was a  successful  event  in  which  12  youths  
and  their  families showed  up  to  play  games and  pass around  Valentine’s goodies to  each  other.  

We  had  a  very  special  guest  at  one  of  our  Community  Club  meetings:  Senator Pete  Goicoechea! 
Senator  Goicoechea  came  in  to  teach  our  Club  Officers and  Members 
about Roberts  Rules of Order, the  importance  of leading  a  meeting, and  
the  basics of  how meetings work.  We  are  very  lucky  to  have  members in  
our  Community  that  value  the  youth  and  take  time  to  invest  in  them.  
CURRICULUM 

Eureka  staff  and  others around  the  state  are  working  on  developing  cur-
riculum  and  project  synthesis for  Rangeland  and  Pasture  Beef  Breeding  
Project.  This new  project  will  focus on  the  production  model  utilized  by  

cattle  producers in  the  western  states.  It  is based  on  learning  about  and  utilizing  range  and  pasture  
resources,  business/enterprise  budgeting  and  management  and  beef  breeding  and  production.  

NEVADA ECONOMIC ASSESTMENT PROJECTS (NEAP)  

NEAP  is a  statewide  program  with  the  mission  to  develop  and  maintain  an  extensive  data  archive  
with  timely,  meaningful,  and  consistent  characteristics and  a  set  of  analytical  tools used  to  provide  
Nevada’s communities with  research  and  analysis of  emerging  issues through  outreach  and  en-
gagement.  

Rural Housing Baseline Assessments 
Housing  affordability  and  availability is an  ongoing  issue  in  Nevada.  NEAP  and  Nevada  Rural  Hous-
ing  have  worked  together  to  gather  and  analyze  data  to  present  the  current  housing  situation.  Base-
line  data  collection  and  initial  analysis was performed  for  Eureka  County.  Reports  and  fact  sheets  
will  be  available  around  December  2024.  

Foundational Public Health Services 
A  national  Foundational  Public Health  Services  (FPHS)  framework  describes the  baseline  level  of  
services that  should  be  offered  through  all  governmental  health  departments.  The  results of  the  sur-
vey  will  help  guide  future  public health  advocacy  and  investment,  including  the  development  of  re-
gional  public health  services.  Online  surveying  for  Eureka  County  was conducted  and  an  in-person  
community  review  and  verification  workshop  was  conducted  on  May  23,  2024.  County  fact  sheets 
will  be  available  around  the  end  of  2024.  



 

          
     

           

            

             

              

   

 

           
           
        

         
          

           
   

INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  

Noxious and  invasive  weeds  are  widespread  throughout  Nevada  and  threaten  the  productivity  of  
cropland,  pasture  and  rangeland.  I  continue  to  serve  on  the  county  weed  and  rodent  committee  and  
assist  local  producers,  Nevada  Department  of  Agriculture,  and  Conservation  Districts to  provide  re-
search-based  information  for  weed  issues they  encounter.    

• Assisted Eureka County Public works in location and treating invasive weeds 
• Participated in Pesticide Applicators workshops. 

AGRICULTURE/SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURAL PRACTICES PROGRAM  

Agriculture  is a  primary  economic and  social  component  of  Eureka  County.  Providing  research-

based  information  to  stakeholders to  ensure  sustainability  of  agriculture  is important  to  all  stakehold-

ers in  the  county  to  assist  long  term  economic and  social  viability  of  individual  operations and  the  
community.  

• Provided  Soil  Health  presentations in  Eureka  County  and  monitoring  of  soil  health  princi-

ples on  farms in  DV  and  Cottonwood  Ranch.   
• Participating  in  an  alternative  energy  review  in  Diamond  Valley  by  the  Nature  Conservan-

cy  for  location  of  solar  energy  projects in  Diamond  Valley  that  incorporate  agriculture  as a  
dual  purpose  of  the  project.  Working  on  securing  a  grant  to  implement  an  agrivoltaics so-

lar  demonstration  project  with  Eureka  County  Natural  Resources department,  The  Nature  
Conservancy,  and  UNR  Extension,  and  a  Diamond  Valley  producer  to  determine  feasibil-

ity  and  potential  dryland  forage  species to  be  utilized  in  agrivoltaics or  dryland  pasture  lo-

cations.  

RANGELAND RESOURCES  

Rangeland  resources on  both  private  and  publicly  managed  lands are  a  crucial  resource  for  Eureka  
County  agricultural  producers,  hunters and  recreationists and  community.  As a  rural  county,  range-
land  resources provide  the  foundations for  all  agricultural  enterprises and  serve  as the  basis for  ru-
ral  life  and  the  culture  and  custom  of  the  community.   

• Continued serving on the Eureka County Natural Resources Advisory Committee (NRAC) 
to review natural resource issues on federally managed lands in Eureka County. Assisting 
NRAC update of the Natural Resources section of the Eureka County Master Plan by 
drafting new natural resource policy section to be vetted through NRAC and submitted to 
the County Commissioners. 

GREAT BASIN RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER (GBREC) 

GBREC in Diamond Valley, Nevada, is home to the Rafter 7 Merinos, 
where our mission is to enhance profitability in the sheep industry through 
top-tier genetics. We focus on dual-purpose bloodlines that improve wool 
production, lambing rates, hardiness, longevity, and herding instinct. Every 
September, we hold a Ram Sale featuring high-quality purebred Merino 
rams and our Rafter 7 Line of Merino X Rambouillet rams, both yearlings 
and two-year-olds. 

With  over  30  years of  experience,  we’re  dedicated  to  helping  sheep  producers improve  their  opera-
tions.  Scott  Huber  has recently  taken  on  the  role  of  manager  as of  January  1,  2024,  and  Fabrizio  
Cartagena  continues  to  manage  our  range  and  sheep  operations,  bringing  over  two  years of  exper-
tise  to  the  team.  We  look  forward  to  supporting  your  sheep  operation  by  being  a  resource  for  edu-
cational  based  knowledge,  just  as we  have  for  our  loyal  clients!  



From: Ed Kilgore <edkilgore2010@yahoo.com> 

 

 

Date: December 11, 2024 at 08:21:23 PST 

Acting Sheriff Umina, 

Thank you for reaching out to me to assist in updating the Sheriffs Office budget process. I have 
extensive knowledge about public actor budgets and specifically Sheriffs budgets.  

I would be happy to provide you with a better product moving forward. 

I have 30 years of experience in law enforcement. Eighteen of those years were in executive 
positions that directly worked with the budget.  

I estimate the process to be no more than 80 hours to complete.  

As discussed, my fee is $80 per hour plus Eurreka county mileage and per diem. In addition, the 
Sheriffs office will pay the cost of lodging while I am there.  

If there are any questions, please reach out via email or telephone.  

 

Thank you in advance 

Ed Kilgore 



 
THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 
Contract Records Order Details
Account Number:  A-651352 Order #:  Q-346005
Customer:  Eureka, County of (NV) Valid Until:  12/27/2024
Effective Employee Count: 106    
Sales Rep:  Austin McCarthy Start Date:  Last signature date
 
Customer Contact
Billing Contact:  Eureka, County of (NV) Shipping Contact :  Eureka, County of (NV)
    Jason Flanagan
Billing Address:  Shipping  Address: 
  Eureka, NV    Eureka, NV 
Billing Contact Email:  Shipping Contact Email:  jflanagan@eurekacountynv.gov
Billing Phone:  Shipping Phone:  (775) 237-5330
 
Payment Terms
Payment Term:  Net 30 Notes: 
PO Number: 

Subscription Service

Year 1

Item Type Term
(Months)

License Type Total (USD)

Vetted Subscription Recurring 12 Usage Based $1,375.00

Background investigation software to manage process required for vetting a new employee. Provides centralized place to manage candidates through selection process
for both recruiters and background investigators. Pricing for Vetted is based on the Quantity purchased where Quantity represents the anticipated use of the Vetted product
taking into account Customer's historical use over the prior twelve month period. If Customer’s usage exceeds the Quantity during a given subscription year, NEOGOV will
adjust the pricing for any subsequent year to take into account Customer's increased usage based on Customer’s actual usage in the twelve-month period preceding the new
subscription year or in the case of a renewal term, the twelve month period preceding the generation of the renewal quote (or an annualization of usage if twelve months of
usage are not yet available). For avoidance of doubt, nothing restricts NEOGOV from increasing its per unit pricing in the ordinary course of business.

Vetted Setup Services 12 Usage Based $1,500.00

Services to setup Vetted for an organization includes enabling the product, creating standard templates for PHS, questionnaires, correspondence and checklists; access to
online training courses, online guidance from a NEOGOV implementation consultant during initial setup and implementation.

Year 1 TOTAL: $2,875.00

Year 2

Item Type Term
(Months)

License Type Total (USD)

Vetted Subscription Recurring 12 Usage Based $2,887.50

Background investigation software to manage process required for vetting a new employee. Provides centralized place to manage candidates through selection process
for both recruiters and background investigators. Pricing for Vetted is based on the Quantity purchased where Quantity represents the anticipated use of the Vetted product
taking into account Customer's historical use over the prior twelve month period. If Customer’s usage exceeds the Quantity during a given subscription year, NEOGOV will
adjust the pricing for any subsequent year to take into account Customer's increased usage based on Customer’s actual usage in the twelve-month period preceding the new
subscription year or in the case of a renewal term, the twelve month period preceding the generation of the renewal quote (or an annualization of usage if twelve months of
usage are not yet available). For avoidance of doubt, nothing restricts NEOGOV from increasing its per unit pricing in the ordinary course of business.

Year 2 TOTAL: $2,887.50

Page 1 of 2



                                                                                                                
                                                                          Total:   |       $5,762.50

 

                                                                                                                    This price does NOT include any sales tax. Total in USD
Additional Terms and Conditions

License Terms:  Enterprise license denotes that Customer has purchased an enterprise wide license up to the employee count specified above.
User based license denotes that Customer has purchased the number of licenses set forth in the quantity column. Item count denotes the number
of items that Customer has licensed as set forth in the quantity column. 
 
Payment Terms:  All invoices issued hereunder are due upon the invoice due date. If the Order is for a period longer than one year, the fees for
the first period shown shall be invoiced immediately and the fees for future years/periods shall be invoiced annually in advance of each 12 month
period shown on the Order, but regardless of the billing cycle, Customer is responsible for the fees for the entire Order. The fees set forth in this
Service Order are exclusive of all applicable taxes, levies, or duties imposed by taxing authorities and Customer shall be responsible for payment of
any such applicable taxes, levies, or duties. All payment obligations are non-cancellable, and all fees paid are non-refundable. Payment for services
ordered hereunder shall be made to Governmentjobs.com, Inc.,  (D/B/A NEOGOV).
 
Terms & Conditions:  This Order Form creates a legally binding contract on the parties.  Unless otherwise agreed in a written agreement
between GovernmentJobs.com, Inc. (D/B/A/ NEOGOV), parent company of PowerDMS, Inc., Cuehit, Inc., Ragnasoft LLC (D/B/A/ PlanIT Schedule),
and Design PD, LLC (D/B/A Agency360) (collectively, “NEOGOV”) and Customer, this Order Form and the services to be furnished pursuant to
this Order Form are subject to the terms and conditions set forth here: https://www.neogov.com/service-specifications. The Effective Date (as
defined in the terms and conditions) shall be the Subscription Start Date.

Special Condition:

 
 

If this Order Form is executed and/or returned to NEOGOV by the Customer after the Subscription Start Date stated in this Order Form, NEOGOV
may adjust the Subscription Start Date and the corresponding Subscription End Date, without increasing the total fees, based on the date NEOGOV
activates the subscription, provided the total length of the subscription term does not change. Following activation, any adjustments to such
Subscription Start Date and Subscription End Date may be confirmed by reference to the invoice sent by NEOGOV.

 
Your signature below constitutes acceptance of terms herein and contractual commitment to purchase
the items listed above.

Accepted and Agreed By Authorized Representative of:
Eureka, County of (NV)

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date
 
 

THE INFORMATION AND PRICING CONTAINED IN THIS ORDER FORM IS STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL.

Page 2 of 2
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CORRESPONDANCE 
• Mt. Wheeler Power Christmas Card 
• Nevada Division of Water Resources budget for FY 2025/2026 
• Nevada Gold Mines Renewal Application 
• Allison MacKenzie Christmas Present 
•  



NEVADA GOLD IIINES LLC
1655 Mountan C[y Hwy

Elko Nevada 89801

DA
GOLD MINES
OPERATED BY BARRICK www.nevadagoldmines com

RE

Deenmber 4,2Q24

USPS CERTIFIED MAIL: 9589 0710 s270 0210 1450 17

Board of Commissioners
Eureka Coung
P.O. Box 677
Eureka, NV 89316

2024 Renewal Application
South Area Leach Proiect
Water Pollution Control Permit NEV0088011

Dear Commissioners:

Nevada Gold Mines LLC - Carlin Complex (Carlin) will be applying for a renewal of the South Area Leach
Project Water Pollution Control Permit (WPCP) NEV0088011 with the Bureau of Mining Regulation and
Reclamation. The renewal application will include the South Area Leach Poect and all components
(Property and Non-Property Leach Pads, process ponds, carbon adsorption plant, and James Creek Dry
Stack Facility). Upon approval, the renewal application would authorize Carlin to extend the active \AIPCP
an additional 5 years. Carlin plans to submit the application by December '10,2024.

Notice of this application is provided to you, the Board of Eureka County Commissioners, as required by
the Nevada Administrative Code 2145,q.394.

lf you have any questions, please contact Tristan Tom at 77 5778-2557 or me at 775- 7784005

Sincerely,

Amanda n
Environmental Manager
Nevada Gold Mines LLC
Carlin Complex

AS:TT

Amber Moran - NGM
Janice Stadelman - Elko BLM
Keith Johnson - BMRR
Ronald Clarke - NGM

Legal - 2024
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Nevada Division of

WATER RESOURCES

STATE OF NEVAOA

Departm€nt of Conservation and Natural Resources

Joe Lombardo, 6overror
James A. Settelmeyer, Director

Adam Sullivan, P.E., Stote Engineer

December 2, 2024

Board of County Commissioners
Eureka County
P.O. Box 694
Eureka, NV 89316
Certified Mail# 9489 0090 0027 6554244309

ln accordance with the provisions of NRS 59 533.280, 533.285 and 533.290, we respectfully submit the
budget for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026. The assessment must be charged against each

water user, which must be based upon the proportion which the water right ofthat water user bears to
the aggregate water rights in the stream system, for the distribution of the waters of the Humboldt River

as decreed and as prorated to those claimants within Eureka county and itemized on the accompanyinB

list.

The amount of 527,709.08 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses incurred for supervision

over distribution of the decreed water and include, but not limited to salaries of the water commissioners,

special studiet water measurements, crop inventories, field investigations, associated data collection and

management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate necessary to
support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the amount certified to
the Assessor.

Sincerely,

PE
Adam Sullivan, P.E

State Engineer

As/kw
Enclosure

cc: Pernecia Johnson, Email, piohnson@eurekacountvnv.gov

90'l S. Stewan Street, Suite 2002 , Carson City, NevadaA9TO1 . pt Wst 68+2aOO. f:177516a+2A11 . water.nv.gov

.{/dz*





Dear Mr. Sullivan

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the County
Commissioners of EUREKA COUNTYon the day of 20_, and the
amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF EUREKA COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK

Adam Sullivan, P.E., State Engineer

Division of Water Resources

901S. Stewart Stree! Suite 2002

Carson City, Nevada 89701

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the supervision over
the waters of the Humboldt River Distribution for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026, in the
amount ofTwenty-seven Thousand Seven Hundred Nine Dollars and Eight Cents (527,709.08), has been

received by EUREKA county in accordance with the provisions of NRS 55 533.280, 533.285 and 533.290.
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